STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING
2/19/2019 10:00 A.M.

26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

AGENDA

MARSHALL MCBRIDE ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
LLANCE GILMAN
VICE-CHAIRMAN
JAY CARMONA VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

Members of the Board of County Commissioners also serve as the Board of Fire Commissioners for
the Storey County Fire Protection District, Storey County Brothel License Board, Storey County
Water and Sewer System Board and the Storey County Liquor and Gaming Board and during this
meeting may convene as any of those boards as indicated on this or a separately posted agenda.

All matters listed under the consent agenda are considered routine, and may be acted upon by the
Board of County Commissioners with one action, and without an extensive hearing. Pursuant to
NRS 241.020 (2)(d)(6) Items on the agenda may be taken out of order, the public body may combine
two or more agenda items for consideration, and the public body may remove an item from the
agenda or delay discussion relating to an item on the agenda at any time. Any member of the Board
or any citizen may request that an item be taken from the consent agenda, discussed, and acted
upon separately during this meeting. The Commission Chair reserves the right to limit the time
allotted for each individual to speak.

All items include discussion and possible action to approve, modify, deny, or continue unless
marked otherwise.

1. CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING AT 10:00 A. M.
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
5 DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of the Agenda for February 19, 2019.




CONSENT AGENDA

I For possible action, approval of 1st reading for general business license for Little
Hands of the Highlands (Home Daycare). Applicant Joy Evans. Place of Business:
2440 Grizzley Rd, Reno, NV 89440.

I For possible action, approval of 1st reading for general business license Union
Brewery Virginia City, LLC. Applicant Lisa Mathney. Place of Business: 63 S C St.,
Virginia City, NV 89440.

III For possible action, approval of claims in the amount of $931,483.71.

IV For possible action, approval of Business License First Readings:
A. WINGS N THINGS, LLC - Food Truck / 1213 Jacob Ln ~ Fernley, NV
B. H & D CONSTRUCTION, LLC - Contractor / PO Box 10025 ~ Reno, NV
C. ] HARRIS INDUSTRIAL - Water Services / 3151 Sturgis Road ~ Oxnard, CA
D. 295 CABLING, LLC - Contractor / 1359 Lublin Drive ~ Sparks, NV
E. PAC MACHINE CO. INC Contractor / 8570 23rd Ave ~ Sacramento, CA
F. ELKO OVERHEAD DOOR - Contractor / 1076 River Street ~ Elko, NV

V  For possible action, approval of Assessor's Recommended Corrections to 2018-19
Supplemental Tax Roll for Factual Error.

VI For possible action, approval of Assessor's Recommended Corrections to Unsecured
2017-18 Tax Roll for Overassessment.

VIl For possible action, approval of Assessor's Recommended Corrections 2018-19
Secured Tax Roll for Exemptions.

DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports
BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)

DISCUSSION ONLY/NO ACTION:

Switch Presentation to Virginia City Silver Bricks FIRST Robotics.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Consideration of approval for Option and License Agreement between Storey County
(Licensor) and New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC. (Licensee), for the right to use a
portion of property owned by Storey County and located at 160 East Toll Road (APN
002.023.11), Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada, for the purposes of a commercial
wireless communications facility.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:




10.

11.

12.

13

14.

15.

16.

17.

Review and possible approval of Auditors Recommendations pertaining to Storey
County Audit Report for the period ended June 30, 2018.

RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY LIQUOR BOARD
DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of first reading for On-Sale, Off-Sale & Cabaret Union Brewery Virginia
City, LLC. Applicant Lisa Mathney. Place of Business: 63 S C St., Virginia City, NV
89440.

ADJOURN TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Consideration and possible acceptance of deed of dedication from Tahoe-Reno
Industrial Center, LLC a southern portion of existing Amsterdam Court at the Tahoe-
Reno Industrial Center, McCarran, Storey County, Nevada.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Consideration and possible acceptance of Grant, Bargain, and Sale Deed, that being a
northern portion of existing Amsterdam Court from Sierra Pacific Power Company,
doing business as NV Energy, to Storey County. The subject property is located at
McCarran, Storey County, Nevada, and is described in Exhibit “A” to Grant, Bargain,
and Sale deed in this report.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Consideration and possible conveyance of Easement from Storey County (grantor) to
Sierra Pacific Power Company, doing business as NV Energy (grantee), conveying a
perpetual right and easement to construct, operate, add to, modify, maintain, and
remove aboveground and/ or belowground communications facilities and electric line
systems upon, over, under, and though property described in Exhibit A and Exhibit B
of this report at McCarran, Storey County, Nevada.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Special Use Permit (2019-001) request to operate a home enterprise. The home
enterprise will consist of beekeeping (with a maximum of 20 hives), a greenhouse to
grow produce and an aqua farm structure for raising fish. No retail sales of product
will occur at the site. The property is approximately 2.70 acres in size and is located at
144 Elizabeth Lane, Mark Twain, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number
(APN) 003-314-23.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:




18.

19.

20.

21.

22,

23.

24,

Consideration and possible approval of Storey County Multidisciplinary
Memorandum of Understanding to strengthen community support and services for
vulnerable populations in Storey County.

RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
BOARD

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Consideration and possible approval of Storey County Multidisciplinary
Memorandum of Understanding to strengthen community support and services for
vulnerable populations in Storey County.

ADJOURN TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of Business License Second Readings:

A. AAA FIRE SPRINKLER - Professional / 630 Kregge Ln ~ Sparks, NV

B. SLONE GEAR INTERNATIONAL, INC - General / 714 East Monument Ave ~
Dayton, NV

C. ATCO INDUSTRIES, INC - General / 7200 Fifteen Mile Road ~ Sterling Heights,
MI

D. CSG ELECTRIC LLC - Contractor / 600 Valle Verde ~ Sparks, NV

E. “C” STREET MASSAGE - Massage/ 240 C Street ~ Virginia City, NV

F. CASS NV, LLC - General/ 2555 USA Parkway ~ McCarran, NV

G. WINBCO TANK COMPANY - 1200 East Main Street ~ Ottumwa, 1A

H. PINYON POTTERY, LLC - 4250 Hobart Road ~ Carson City, NV

I. CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS HOLDING, LLC - Contractor/ 9335 Prototype
Drive, Reno, NV

PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)
ADJOURNMENT OF ALL ACTIVE AND RECESSED BOARDS ON THE AGENDA

CLOSED SESSION INVOLVING STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS AND THE STOREY COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
COMMISSIONERS

Call to Order Closed Session meeting pursuant to NRS 288.220 for the purpose of
conferring with:

a. County management and legal counsel regarding labor negotiations with the Storey
County Employees’ Association Comstock Chapter, AFSCME Local 4041. This
meeting will begin immediately after the regular meeting of the Board of County
Comrmissioners.




b. Fire Protection District management and legal counsel regarding labor negotiations
with the Storey County Firefighters” Association IAFF Local 4227. This meeting will
begin immediately after the regular meeting of the Board of County Commissioners.

NOTICE:

Anyone interested may request personal notice of the meetings.

Agenda items must be received in writing by 12:00 noon on the Monday of the week preceding
the regular meeting. For information call (775) 847-0969.

Items may not necessarily be heard in the order that they appear.

Public Comment will be allowed at the end of each meeting (this comment should be limited
to matters not on the agenda). Public Comment will also be allowed during each item upon
which action will be taken on the agenda (this comment should be limited to the item on the
agenda). Time limits on Public Comment will be at the discretion of the Chairman of the
Board. Please limit your comments to three minutes.

Storey County recognizes the needs and civil rights of all persons regardless of race, color,
religion, gender, disability, family status, or nation origin.

In accordance with Federal civil rights law and U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) civil
rights regulations and policies, the USDA, its Agencies, offices, and empioyees, and
institutions participating in or administering USDA programs are prohibited from
discriminating based on race, color, national origin, religion, sex, gender identity (including
gender expression), sexual orientation, disability, age, marital status, family/ parental status,
income derived from a public assistance program, political beliefs, or reprisal or retaliation for
prior civil rights activity, in any program or activity conducted or funded by USDA (not all
bases apply to all programs). Remedies and complaint filing deadlines vary by program or
incident.

Persons with disabilities who require alternative means of communication for program
information (e.g., Braille, large print, audiotape, American Sign Language, etc.) should contact
the responsible Agency or USDA’s TARGET Center at (202) 720-2600 (voice and TTY) or
contact USDA through the Federal Relay Service at (800) 877-8339. Additionally, program
information may be made available in languages other than English.

To file a program discrimination complaint, complete the USDA Program Discrimination
Complaint Form, AD-3027, found online at

http:/ / www.ascr.usda.gov/complaint_filing_cust.html and at any USDA office or write a
letter addressed to USDA and provide in the letter all of the information requested in the form.
To request a copy of the complaint form, call (866) 632-9992. Submit your completed form or
letter to USDA by:

(1) mail: U.S. Department of Agriculture
Office of the Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights
1400 Independence Avenue, SW
Washington, D.C. 20250-9410;

(2) fax: (202) 690-7442; or




(3) email: program.intake@usda.gov.

USDA is an equal opportunity provider, employer, and lender.

Notice to persons with disabilities: Members of the public who are disabled and require special
assistance or accommodations at the meeting are requested to notify the Commissioners” Office in
writing at PO Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada 89440.

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING
I, Vanessa Stephens , Clerk to the Board of Commissioners, do hereby certify that I posted, or caused
to be posted, a copy of this agenda at the following locations on or before 2/12/2019; Virginia City Post
Office at 132 S C St, Virginia City, NV, the Storey County Courthouse located at 26 S B St, Virginia City,
NV, the Virginia City Fire Department located at 145 N C St, Virginia City, NV, the Virginia City
Highlands Fire Department located a 2610 Cartwright Rd, VC Highlands, NV and Lockwood Fire
Department located at 431 Canyon Way, Lockwooed, NV.

By J@m@m@fffw_
Vanessa Stephens Clerk-Treasurer




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: N A Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent { X ] Regular agenda[] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Approval of 1% reading for general business license for Little Hands of the Highlands
(Home Daycare). Applicant Joy Evans. Place of Business: 2440 Grizzley Rd., Reno, NV 89440,

2. Recommended motion: | motion to approve the first reading for a general business license
for Little Hands of the Highlands (Home Daycare}. Applicant Joy Evans. Place of Business: 2440
Gnzzley Rd., Reno, NV 89440.

3. Prepared by: Brandy Gavenda, Administrative Assistant %,/_/
Department: SCSO Telephone: 775-847-0959
4. Staff summary: The first reading for a general business license for Little Hands of the

Highlands (Home Daycare). Applicant Joy Evans. Place of Business: 2440 Grizzley Rd., Reno,
NV 89440,

S. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda letter

6. Fiscal impact: None

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

__ Dastrict Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
X Department Head Department Name: Gerald Antinoro

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[1] Approved [] Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [] Continued

Agenda ltem No. 4I



STOREY COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE

Gerald Antinoro
Sheriff

January 16, 2019

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office
Pat Whitten, County Manager

Fr: Brandy Gavenda

Please add the following item(s} to the February , | 2019 Commissioners Agenda:

LIQUOR BOARD
A. First reading Liquor License (On-sale, Off-sale & Cabaret) - Union
Brewery Virginia City, LLC. Applicant Lisa Matheny. Place of
Business: 63 S C St., Virginia City, NV 89440.

PO Box 498
205 South C Street
Virginia City, NV 89440
Office: (775) 847-0959 Fax: (775) 847-0924



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: oy /19 Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [ X ] Regular agenda [ ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Approval of 1* reading for general business license Union Brewery Virginia City, LLC.
Applicant Lisa Matheny. Place of Business: 63 S C St., Virginia City, NV §9440.

2. Recommended motion: [ motion to approve the first reading for general business license
Union Brewery Virginia City, LLC. Applicant Lisa Matheny. Place of Business: 63 S C St.,

Virginia City, NV 89440.
.
3. Prepared by: Brandy Gavenda, Administrative Assistant %

Department: SCSO Telephone: 775-847-0959

4. Staff summary: The first reading for general business license Union Brewery Virginia City,
LLC. Applicant Lisa Matheny. Place of Business: 63 S C St., Virginia City, NV 89440.

5. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda letter

6. Fiscal impact: None

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
___ District Attomey
8. Reviewed by:
X  Department Head Department Name: Gerald Antinoro
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[1] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

—p—
[

Agenda Item No. 4]1



STOREY COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE

Gerald Antinoro
Sheriff

January 16, 2019

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office
Pat Whitten, County Manager

Fr: Brandy Gavenda

Please add the following item(s) to the February : { 2019 Commissioners Consent
Agenda:

LICENSE BOARD

First Reading;:
A. General Business License — Union Brewery Virginia City LLC
B. General Business License — Little Hands of the Highlands

PO Box 498
205 South C Street
Virginia City, NV 89440
Office: (775) 847-0959 Fax: (775) 847-0924



Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: Estimate of Time Required: 0-5 min
Agenda Item Type: Consent

1.

2

County Manager Other Agency Review:

Title: For possible action, approval of claims in the amount of $931,483.71.
Recommended motion: Approve claims as part of the Consent Agenda.
Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens

Department: Treasurer Contact Number: 775.847.0969

Staff Summary: A list of claims is attached.

Supporting Materials: See attached

Fiscal Impact: No

Legal review required: No

Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name: Treasurer

Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification

[ ] Denied [ ] Continued




Check Register

Packet: APPKT00399 - 2018-02-08 PR Payment cw

By Check Number

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Date Payment Type Discount Amount Payment Amount Number

Bank Code: AP Bank-AP Bank

300007 USAA 529 College Savings Plans 02/08/2019 EFT 0.00 50.00 10009
300003 AFLAC 02/08/2019 Regular 0.00 1,057.17 954794
300008 AFSCME Union 02/08/2019 Regular 0.00 603.12 94795
300001 Colonial Life & Accident 02/08/2019 Regular 0.00 111.69 94796
404704 DVM INSURANCE AGENCY 02/08/2019 Regular 0.00 105.72 94797
405264 FIDELITY SEC LIFE INS CO 02/08/2019 Regular 0.00 1,450.56 94798
404366 HOMETOWN HEALTH 02/08/2019 Regular 0.00 112,667.90 94799
405263 KANSAS CITY LIFE INS CO 02/08/2019 Regular 0.00 742,26 94800
300011 Nevada State Treasurer 02/08/2019 Regular 0.00 4.00 94801
405456 Public Employees Retirement 02/08/2019 Regular 0.00 115,163.82 94802
103233 PUBLIC EMPLY RETIREMENT SYSTEM 02/08/2019 Regular 0.00 46.66 94803
102441 ST CO SHERIFF 02/08/2019 Regular 0.00 692.91 94804
300010 State Collection & Disbursement Un 02/08/2019 Regular 0.00 197.70 94805
300006 Storey Co Fire Fighters Assoc 02/08/2019 Regular 0.00 1,200.00 94806
405076 UMNITEDHEALTHCARE INS CO 02/08/2019 Regular 0.00 7.931.69 94807
404639 VOYA RETIREMENT INS 02/08/2019 Regular 0.00 7,806.50 94808
200005 Washington National Ins 02/08/2019 Regular 0.00 521.02 94809
300002 Woestern Insurance Specialties 02/08/2019 Regular 0.00 328.89 94810

Bank Code AP Bank Summary

Payable Payment

Payment Type Count Count Discount Payment
Regular Checks £ 17 0.00 250,631.61
Manual Checks 0 0 0.00 0.00
Voided Checks 0 0 0.00 0.00
Bank Drafts o] 0 0.00 0.00
EFT's 1 1 0.00 50.00

39 18 0.00 250,681.61

Approved by the Storey County Board of Commissners:

Chairman Commissioner Commissioner

Comptroller

Treasurer



Check 'Relister

Fund
999

Name
Pooled Cash Account

Fund Summary

Period
2/2019

Packet: APPKT00359-2018-02-08 PR Payment cw

Amount

250,681.61
250,681.61




Check Register

Packet: APPKTO0391 - 2018-02-01 AP Payment Process cw

By Check Number

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Date Payment Type Discount Amount Payment Amount Number
Bank Code: AP Bank-AP Bank
404813 ACTN 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 40.00 94678
405020 ALL COMSTOCK LLC 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 4,000.00 94679
100135 ALSCO INC 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 236.62 94680
405113 AXON ENTERPRISE, INC 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 130.00 94681
405254 BARKDULL-SPENCER, ELAINE 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 1,780.41 946382
405103 BATTLE BORN CONSULTING SE 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 11,354.00 94683
405332 Battle Born Digital Media and Marke 02/01/201% Regular 0.00 250.00 94684
404634 BRANDON, RUSSELL D 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 60.00 94685
403671 BURRELL, SCOTT LEWIS 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 243.00 94686
405477 Byassee, Joe Del & Jeannie 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 32.16 94687
100560 CARSON TAHOE REGIONAL HEA 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 65.00 94688
403268 CELLCO PARTNERSHIP 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 1,828.82 954689
**Void** 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 0.00 94690
403635 CENTRAL SANITARY SUPPLY 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 59.00 94691
404096 CENTURY PUBLISHING CO INC 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 3,437.38 94692
405235 CHARTWELL STAFFING SERV 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 6,927.60 94693
100505 CITY OF CARSON TREASURER 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 101.80 94654
403822 COLLECTION SERVICE OF NEV 02/01/201% Regular 0.00 330.33 94695
100655 COMMUNITY CHEST INC 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 15,791.00 94696
4043868 COMPLETE DOCUM MNGMNT SOL  02/01/2015% Regular 0.00 414.30 94657
405213 CONNELL, RICHARD 02/01/2015 Regular 0.00 25.00 94698
405354 Crisis Collections Management, LLC 02/01/2015 Regular 0.00 1,358.12 94699
404466 DAIOHS USA INC 02/01/2015 Regular 0.00 51.90 94700
405128 DEVNET, INC 02/01/201% Regular 0.00 150.00 94701
402905 DISH DBS CORPORATION DISH NETV 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 B7.03 94702
403576 DOMINION VOTING SYSTEMS Inc. 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 44,00 94703
405210 DUNCAN, CANDY L 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 3,350.00 94704
404547 ELLIOTT AUTO SUPPLY INC 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 2,068.59 94705
405008 ERICKSON THORPE B SWAINSTON L 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 495.00 94706
404723 F AND P CONSTRUCTION CO t 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 39,824.89 94707
100775 FARMER BROS CO 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 66.07 94708
404509 FASTENAL COMPANY 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 345.57 94709
403975 FERRELLGAS LP 02/01/201% Regular 0.00 3,570.86 94710
405264 FIDELITY SEC LIFE INS CO 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 22213 94711
404117 FLEET HEATING & AIR INCOR 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 1,590.16 94712
102818 GFOA 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 310.00 94713
403963 GIURLANI, DEREK 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 125.00 94714
404896 GOLDEN GATE/SET PETROLEUM 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 2,823.49 94715
304468 GOPHER CONSTRUCTION INC 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 278.44 94716
304508 GRANSBERY, TOM 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 630.00 94717
103470 GREAT BASIN TERMITE & PES 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 340.00 94718
405473 GSA Services 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 24699 94719
404394 GTP INVESTMENTS LLC 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 410.06 94720
100897 HARRY'S BUSINESS MACHINES 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 22450 94721
404778 HAT, LTD 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 4,072.32 94722
103218 HD SUPPLY CONST SUPPLY LT 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 70.00 94723
403040 HENRY SCHEIN 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 2,463.43 94724
100889 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICE 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 527.61 54725
404366 HOMETOWN HEALTH 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 15,296.23 94726
403753 HOT SPOT BROADBAND INC 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 272.50 94727
405302 Institute for Enviornmental Health i 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 350.00 94728
403834 IT1 SOURCE LLC 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 31,221.60 94729
404583 JAMES C MCLENNAN MDPC 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 S00.00 94730

103317 JBPLLC 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 5,517.89 954731



Check Register Packet: APPKT00391-2018-02-01 AP Payment Process cw

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Date Payment Type Discount Amount Payment Amount Number
405263 KANSAS CITY LIFE INS CO 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 15.92 94732
405470 Kerr, Christoper 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 500.00 94733
103489 KIMBALL MIDWEST 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 310.42 94734
103284 KNECHT, RAQUEL 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 116.35 94735
405184 LAS VEGAS TACTICAL LLC. 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 444.47 94736
101030 LIFE-ASSIST INC 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 265.32 94737
404102 LIQUID BLUE EVENTS LLC 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 2,300.00 94738
404363 MA LABORATORIES INC 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 1,409.69 94739
405077 MACKAY MANSION 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 148.00 94740
404691 MARK TWAIN COMMUNITY CTR 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 1,666.67 94741
404899 MCCARTHY, TIMOTHY 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 50.00 94742
102857 MICHAEL HOHL MOTOR CO 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 61.12 94743
101343 NEV DEPT HUMAN RESOURCES 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 2,302.97 94744
403731 NEV DEPT OF PUBLIC SAFETY 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 808.33 94745
101225 NEV DIV OF FORESTRY 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 2,500.00 94746
101218 NEV DIV OF HEALTH BUREAU 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 140.00 94747
404118 CPTUMINSIGHT INC 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 273.75 94748
405127 O'REILLY AUTO ENTERPRISES LLC 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 61159 94749
403855 PETRINI, ANGELO D 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 21.00 94750
101434 PITNEY BOWES INC 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 80.74 94751
101417 POST NEV 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 350.00 94752
103032 POWERPLAN 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 146.16 94753
404471 PUBLIC AGENCY TRAINING 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 325.00 94754
100348 PURCELL TIRE & RUBBER CO 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 679.40 94755
405458 Rapid Space, LLC 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 3,215.40 94756
402937 RAY MORGAN CO INC (CA) 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 54.62 94757
405476 Regional Emergency Medical Service 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 1,259.82 94758
10026 RUPPCO INC 02/01/201% Regular 0.00 83.64 94759
101369 SAFEGUARD WEB & GRAPHICS 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 402.36 94760
103241 SBC GLOBAL SERVICES IN LD 02/01/201% Regular 0.00 57.81 94761
405073 SESMA, RAY 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 125.00 94762
405081 SHERMARK DISTRIBUTQRS INC 02/01/201% Regular 0.00 190.00 94763
102462 SIERRA ENVIRONMENTAL MONITOF 02/01/201% Regular 0.00 S08.00 94764
101530 SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 12,567.76 94765
**yoid** 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 0.00 94766
403421 SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 507.10 94767
404195 SOUTHERN GLAZERS WINE & S 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 825.40 94768
403234 SPALLONE, DOMINIC N 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 188.48 94769
101727 ST CO CLERK 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 11,092.59 94770
101745 ST CO WATER SYSTEM 02/01/2018 Regular 0.00 653.85 94771
405475 Staples Contract & Commercial, Inc  02/01/201% Regular 0.00 163.06 94772
404871 STARZSTAR COMMUNICATIONS, LLC 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 1,862.60 94773
404314 STARSCUND AUDIO, INC 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 300.00 94774
405474 Storey County Ambulance 02/01/201% Regular 0.00 300.00 94775
403892 SUN PEAK ENTERPRISES 02/01/201% Regular 0.00 376.00 94776
405185 THATCHER COMPANY 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 494.90 94777
405472 The Charles Machine Werks, Inc 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 45,832.24 94778
404845 THOMAS PETROLEUM LLC 02/01/2019 Regutar 0.00 2,230.01 94779
404800 TICOR TITLE OF NEVADA 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 22,216.78 94780
404030 TUSSELING, DICK G 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 300.00 94781
405112 TYLER TECHNOLOGIES, INC 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 55.00 94782
101947 UNITED RENTALS 02/01/201% Regular 0.00 9,886.55 94783
405076 UNITEDHEALTHCARE INS CO 02/01/201% Regular 0.00 1,142.71 94784
403983 VCTC 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 20.00 94785
403894 VIRGINIA & TRUCKEE RR CO, INC. 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 30,171.58 94786
403723 VIRGINIA HIGHLANDS VfD 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 3,750.00 94787
101890 WASHOE CO CORONER 02/01/201% Regular 0.00 499.30 94788
103080 WATERS SEPTIC TANK SV DBA 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 1,480.00 94789
101920 WESTERN NEVADA SUPPLY CO 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 240.14 94790
101946 WHITTEN, PAT 02/01/201% Regular 0.00 338.05 94791

405226 WILLAMAN, GABRIEL 02/01/201% Regular 0.00 4,455.00 94792




Chetk Ragistar Packet: APPKT00391-2018-02-01 AP Payment Process cw

Vendor Number Vendor Neme Paymaent Date Paymaent Type Discount Amount Payment Amount Number
404856 WILSON, CARLA JEAN 02/01/2019 Regular 0.00 2,006.67 94793
404295 WELLS ONE COMMERCIAL CARD 02/01/201% Bank Draft 0.00 17,899.07 DFTO000099
Bank Code AP Bank Summary
Pryable Payment

Payment Type Count Count Discount Payment

Regular Checks 172 114 0.00 341,470.52

Manual Checks [¢] 0 0.00 0.00

Voided Checks o 2 0.00 0.00

Bank Drafts 13 1 0.00 17,899.07

EFT's 0 0 0.00 0.00

T mws 0 0.00  359,369.59

Approved by the Storey County Board of Commissners:

Chairman Commissioner Commissioner

Comptroller

Treasurer



Check Register Packet: APPKT00391-2018-02-01 AP Payment Process cw

Fund Summary

Fund Name Period Amount

999 Pooled Cash Account 2/2019 359,369.59
359,369.59




Payroll Check Register
Report Summary

Pay Perlod: 1/21/2019-2/3/2019

Packet: PRPETO0196 - 2018-02-08 Payroll cw
Payroll Set: Storey County - 01

Regular Checks 2 2,388.09
Manual Checks ¢] 0.00
Reversals 0 0.00
Yoided Checks o 0.00
Direct Depaosits 161 311,192.22
Total 163 313,500.31

Approved by the Storey County Board of Commissners:

Chairman Commissioner Commissioner

Comptroller

Treasurer




Payroll Check Register

Report Summary
Pay Period: 2/1/2019-2/1/2019

Type . .. Lount ~  Amount
Regular Checks 1 7,852.20
Manual Checks 0 0.00
Reversals 0 0.00
Voided Checks 0 0.00
Direct Deposits 0 0.00
Total ' 1 7,852.20

Approved by the Storey County Board of Commissners:

Chairman Commissioner Commissioner

Comptroller

Treasurer



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 3.19-19 Estimate of time required: 0 - 5

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda[] Public hearing required [ |

1. Title: Business License First Readings -- Approval

2. Recommended motion: None required (if approved as part of the Consent Agenda) [ move to
approve all first readings (if removed from consent agenda by request).

* 3.Prepared by: Sarah Dillon
Department; Community Development ‘Telephone: B47-0966
4. Staff summgry: First readings of submitted business license applications are normally

approved on the consent agenda. The applications are then submitted a1 the next
Commissioners’ mecting for approval.

S. Supporting materigly: See attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal impact;

Funds Available: Fund: _ ... Comptroller
7. Legal review reguired:

District Attomey

8. Reviewed by

X __ l"l Department Name:

P ]
_ Coun Other agency review: .

9. Board action:

(] Approved (1] Approved with Modifications

[] Denied {1 Continued

Agenda Item No. 4 E



Storey County Community Bevelopment
Buginess e Licensing

P O Box 526 - Virginia City NV 89440 « (775) 847-0966 - Fax (775) 847-0835 smfield@storeycounty.org

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office February 11 2019
Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email
Fr: Sarah Dillon

Please add the following item(s) to the February 19, 2019 COMMISSIONERS Consent Agenda:
LICENSING BOARD
FIRST READINGS:

A. WINGS N THINGS, LLC - Food Truck / 1213 Jacob Ln ~ Femley, NV

B. H & D CONSTRUCTION, LLC - Contractor / PO Box 10025 ~ Reno, NV
C. JHARRIS INDUSTRIAL — Water Services / 3151 Sturgis Road ~ Oxnard, CA
D. 295 CABLING, LLC - Contractor/ 1359 Lublin Drive ~ Sparks, NV

E. PAC MACHINE CO. INC Contractor/ 8570 23" Ave ~ Sacramento, CA

F. ELKO OVERHEAD DOOR - Contractor / 1076 River Street ~ Elko, NV

Ec: Community Development Planning Department Sheriff’s Office
Commissioners’ Office Comptroller’s Office



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: February 19, 2019 Estimate of time required: 0-5 mins

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda[] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: For Possible Action — Approval — Assessor’s Recommended Corrections to 2018-19
Supplemental Tax Rol! for Factual Error

2. Recommended motion: Approval
3. Prepared by: Tobi Whitten

Department: Assessor’s Office Telephone: 847-0961

4, Staff summary: A factual error on parcel number 003-393-02 occurred on the 2018-19
Supplemental Tax Roll (billed under account # NC 000148). The weighted year of
construction and percentage of completion was incorrect. Our office was not aware of this
until the taxpayer contacted us. Therefore the tax bill was generated based on incorrect
values, and require adjustment per NRS 361.768.

5. Supporting materials: Please see attached letter with adjusted assessed values and tax
amounts.

6. Fiscal impact: Unknown

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Assessor’s Office
County Manager Other agency review:
9. Board action:
[1] Approved [] Approved with Modifications
[1] Denied [] Continued

Agenda Item No. 4_‘1‘



Sana Sedden

STOREY COUNTY ASSESSOR

February

11,2019

Memo to: Storey County Commissioners

Re: 003-393-02 (NC 000148)

STOREY COUNTY COURTHOUSE

26 South B Street
P.O. Box 494
Virginia City, NV 83440

(775) 8470961 Phone
(775) 8470904 Fax
Assessor@storeyCounty.org

The above referenced parcel was billed in error for the 2018-19 tax year on the Supplemental
Roll. The weighted year of construction and percentage of completion was incorrect. In
accordance with NRS 361.768, [ am requesting the following changes:

Xssdccad Loid Assessed Net Assessed |New Assessed TR Po— Balance
Improvements Value Value Owing
Billed - 112,454 112,454 5 3,891.70 | 5 1,946.70 | §  1945.00
Cofrected . 86,407 86,407 68,339 |5 289809|$5 1946705 95039

Please approve these corrections, and advise the Treasurer and/or Assessor to make the changes
and issue a corrected tax bill to the taxpayer.

Thank You,

k=~

Senior Appraiser
Storey County Assessor’s Office

C{L

Tobi Whi

Storay County s an Equal Opportunily Provider




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: February 19, 2019 Estimate of time required: 0-5 mins

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda[] Public hearing required { }

1. Title: For Possible Action — Approval — Assessor’s Recommended Corrections to Unsecured
2017-18 Tax Roll for Overassessment

2. Recommended motion: Approval
3. Prepared by: Tobi Whitten
Department: Assessor’s Office Telephone: 847-0961
4. Staff summary: Sky Fiber Internet (DC 000015) was assessed an estimate per NRS 361.265 on
the 2017-18 Unsecured Tax Roll. The taxpayer has since provided a complete and actual
listing of assets that were located in Storey County as of July 1, 2017. The 2017-18

unsecured taxes should be recalculated based on the information provided. No refund is
required at this time as payment on the 2017-18 billed estimate was never made.

5. Supporting materials: Pleasc see attached letter with adjusted assessed value.

6. Fiscal impact: Unknown

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Assessor’s Office
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

— —
il et

Agenda Item No. 4_ YL



STOREY COUNTY COURTHOUSE
26 South B Street

P.0. Box 494

virginia City, Nv 89440

Sana Seddon

STOREY COUNTY ASSESSOR

{775) 847-0961 Phone
(775) B47-0904 Fax
Assessor@StoreyCounty.org

January 24, 2019

Memo to: Storey County Commissioners

Re: DC 000015, Sky Fiber Internet

The above referenced account was processed and billed based on an estimate of value pursuant

to NRS 361.265 for the 2017-18 tax year. The taxpayer provided a detailed asset listing after the
close of the Unsecured Tax Roll. The corrected assessed value should be (also see attached):

2017-18 Original Adjustment Amended
Personal Property Acquisition Cost 1,000,000 {993,401) 6,599
Personal Property Assessed Value 350,000 {347,690) 2,310
Improvements Assessed Value 2 : 2
Abatement {in Tax $5)
2017-18 Unsecured TaxBill Amt | $  12,112.45{ S (12,032.50) 79.95

Please approve these corrections, and advise the Treasurer and/or Assessor to make the changes
and issue an amended bill. No refund is necessary at this time as payment has not been received.

Thank You,

B

Tobi Whitten
Senior Appraiser

Storey County Assessor’s Office

Storay County is an Equal Opportunity Provider




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: February 19, 2019 Estimate of time required: 0-5 mins

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda [ ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: For Possible Action — Approval — Assessor’s Recommended Corrections to 2018-19
Secured Tax Roll for Exemptions

2. Recommended motion: Approval
3. Prepared by: Tobi Whitten
Department: Assessor’'s Office Telephone: 847-0961

4. Staff summary: NRS 361 provides for property tax exemptions to individuals who meet
certain criteria. Exemption applications and renewals are typically due to our office on or
before June 15™ of each fiscal year, but circumstances beyond a taxpayer’s control may
cause a delay and, as a result, an exemption not being applied to the tax bill. In cases where
the Assessor’s Office feels that the taxpayer could not have reasonably filed their
exemption application or renewal by the deadline, or if there is an unforeseeable error
causing the exemption to not be applied correctly, the tax bill may be amended by the
Clerk-Treasurer at the direction of the Board and a new tax bill or a refund be mailed to the
affected taxpayer.

5. Supporting materials: Please sce attached letter with adjusted assessed values.

6. Fiscal impact: Unknown

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorey
8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Assessor’s Office
County Manager Other agency review:
9. Board action:
[] Approved [] Approved with Modifications
(] Denied (1] Continued

Agenda Item No. 4 m



STOREY COUNTY COURTHOUSE

26 South B Street

P.0. Box 494

STOREY COUNTY ASSESSOR Virginia City, NV 89440

(775) 8470961 Phone
(775) 8470904 Fax
Assessor@StoreyCounty.org

February 11, 2019
Memo to: Storey County Commissioners
Re: Correction for Exemption

The owner of the property listed below should have had a higher personal exemption applied to
their property for the 2018-19 tax year. The owner did not receive proper paperwork from the
VA until after the close of the tax roll, even though his rating was increased in 2017. Therefore,
the correct exemption was not applied to the tax bill. The adjusted net assessed values and the
net assessed value overrides should be:

Outrant Youy fiat
N8 Adisiad et P d
AN 19 tog Demption Amoynt  Exemption WS SYQAY Overide ImGe% masred Yals
Apsenny Aupaingd Yalus Omatis
345112 9,16 20,550 361 091-8 71906 BME Iom 59,605

Please approve this correction, and advise the Treasurer to make the changes and send a new tax
bill or refund as necessary.

Thank You,

Senior Appraiser
Storey County Assessor’s Office

Storey County is an Equal Qpportunity Provider



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: February 19, 2019 Estimate of time required: 20 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action: Consideration of approval for Option and License Agreement
between Storey County (Licensor) and New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC. (Licensee), for the right
to use a portion of property owned by Storey County and located at 160 East Totl Road (APN
002.023.11), Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada, for the purposes of a commercial wireless
communications facility.

2. Recommended motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff and other findings
deemed appropriate by the Board of County Commissioners, | {county commissioner), move to
approve Option and License Agreement between Storey County (Licensor) and New Cingular
Wireless PCS, LLC. (Licensee), for the right to use a portion of property owned by Storey County
and located at 160 East Toll Road (APN 002.023.11), Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada, for the
purposes of a commercial wireless communications facility.

3 Prepared by: Austin Osborne
4, Department: Planning Telephone: 775.847.1144

5. Staff summary: The license agreement approval is subject to approval of Special Use Permit
2019.056.

6. Supporting materials: Option and License Agreement, MOL Exhibit, Map Exhibit.

7 Fiscal impact: None on local government.

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
8. Legal review required: __x__ District Attomey

9. Reviewed by:

\@epaﬂment Head Department Name: Planning

County Manager Other agency review:
10. Board action:
(1 Approved Approved with Modifications

ey gy

]
[] Denied | Continued

Agenda Item No. 8



Market: Northern California

Cell Site Number CVLO6075

Cell Site Name: Gold Hill

Secarch Ring Name: Gold Hill (NV)
Fixed Asset Number: 10151421

OPTION AND LICENSE AGREEMENT

THIS OPTION AND LICENSE AGREEMENT (“Agreement™), dated as of the latter of the
signature dates below (the “Effective Date™), is entered into by Storey County, a Nevada governmental
entity, having a mailing address of P. O. Box 176, Virginia City, NV 89440 (“Licensor”), and New
Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, having a mailing address of 575
Morosgo Drive NE, Atlanta, GA 30324 (“Licensee”).

BACKGROUND

Licensor owns that certain plot, parcel or tract of land, as described on Exhibit 1, together with
all rights and privileges arising in connection therewith, located at 160 E. Toll Road, Virginia City, in the
County of Storey, State of Nevada [APN: 002-023-11] (collectively, the “Property”). Licensor desires to
grant to Licensee the right to use a portion of the Property in accordance with this Agreement.

The parties agree as follows:

1. OPTION TO LICENSE.

(a) Licensor grants to Licensee an exclusive option (the “Option™) to license (which license
shall be irrevocable for the Term hereof except following a termination of the Agreement in accordance
with the express terms and conditions set forth herein) a certain portion of the Property containing
approximately one thousand two hundred twenty-five (1,225) square feet including the air space above
such ground space, as described on attached Exhibit 1. (the “Premises™), for the placement of a wireless
Communication Facility (as defined in Section 2 below) in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

(b) During the Option Term, and during the Term, Licensee and its agents, engineers,
surveyors and other representatives will have the right to enter upon the Property to inspect, examine,
conduct soil borings, drainage testing, material sampling, radio frequency testing and other geological or
engineering tests or studies of the Property (collectively, the “Tests™), to apply for and obtain licenses,
permits, approvals, or other relief required of or deemed necessary or appropriate at Licensee’s sole
discretion for its use of the Premises and include, without limitation, applications for zoning variances,
zoning ordinances, amendments, special use permits, and construction permits (collectively, the
“Government Approvals”), initiate the ordering and/or scheduling of necessary utilities, and otherwise
to do those things on or off the Property that, in the opinion of Licensee, are necessary in Licensee’s sole
discretion to determine the physical condition of the Property, the environmental history of the Property,
Licensor's title to the Property and the feasibility or suitability of the Property for Licensee’s Permitted
Use, all at Licensee’s expense. Licensee will not be liable to Licensor or any third party on account of
any pre-existing defect or condition on or with respect to the Property, whether or not such defect or
condition is disclosed by Licensee’s inspection. Licensee will restore the Property to its condition as it
existed at the commencement of the Option Term, reasonable wear and tear and loss by casualty or other
causes beyond Licensee's control excepted.

AT&T Site CV1.06075 (Gold Hilly Option and License Agreement 1.31.19 FINAIL



(c) In consideration of Licensor granting Licensee the Option, Licensee agrees to pay
Licensor the sum of Two Thousand Five Hundred and No/100 Dollars ($2,500.00) within thirty (30)
business days after the Effective Date. The Option may be exercised during an initial term of one (1) year
commencing on the Effective Date (the “Initial Option Term™} which term may be renewed by Licensee
for an additional one (1) year (the “Renewal Option Term™)} upon written notification to Licensor and
the payment of an additional Two Thousand Five Hundred and No/100 Dollars ($2,500.00) no later than
five (5) days prior to the expiration date of the Initial Option Term. The Initial Option Term and any
Renewal Option Term are collectively referred to as the “Option Term.”

(d) The Option may be sold, assigned or transferred at any time by Licensee to an Affiliate
(as that term is hereinafier defined) of Licensee. Otherwise, the Option may not be sold, assigned or
transferred without the written consent of Licensor, such consent not to be unreasonably withheld,
conditioned or delayed. From and after the date that the Option has been sold, assigned or transferred by
Licensee to an Affiliate or a third party agreeing to be subject to the terms hereof, Licensee shall
immediately be released from any and all liability under this Agreement, including the payment of any
License Fee or other sums due, without any further action.

(e) During the Option Term, Licensee may exercise the Option by notifying Licensor in
writing. If Licensee exercises the Option, then Licensor grants a license (which license shall be
irrevocable for the Term hereof except following a termination of the Agreement in accordance with the
express terms and conditions set forth herein) to Licensee for the use of the Premises subject to the terms
and conditions of this Agreement. If Licensee does not exercise the Option during the Initial Option
Term or any extension thereof, then this Agreement will terminate, and the parties will have no further
liability to each other.

() If during the Option Term, or during the Term if the Option is exercised, Licensor
decides to subdivide, sell, or change the status of the zoning of the Premises, the Property or any of
Licensor’s contiguous, adjoining or surrounding property (the “Surrounding Property™). or in the event
of a threatened foreclosure on any of the foregoing, Licensor shall immediately notify Licensee in
writing. Licensor agrees that during the Option Term, or during the Term if the Option is exercised,
Licensor shall not initiate or consent to any change in the zoning of the Premises, the Property or the
Surrounding Property or impose or consent to any other use or restriction that would prevent or limit
Licensee from using the Premises for the Permitted Use. Any and all terms and conditions of this
Agreement that by their sense and context are intended to be applicable during the Option Term shall be
so applicable.

{g) For the avoidance of doubt, nothing contained in this Agreement does, or is intended to,
either expressly or by implication, grant to Licensee a leasehold interest or any other real property interest
in or to the Property.

2. PERMITTED USE. Licensee may use the Premises for the transmission and reception of
communications signals and the installation, construction, maintenance, operation, repair, replacement
and upgrade of communications fixtures and related equipment, cables, accessories and improvements,
which may include a suitable support structure (“Structure”), associated antennas, equipment shelters or
cabinets and fencing and any other items necessary to the successful and secure use of the Premises (the
“Communication Facility™), as well as the right to test, survey and review title on the Property; Licensee
further has the right but not the obligation to add, modify and/or replace equipment in order to be in
compliance with any current or future federal. state or local mandated application, including, but not
limited to, emergency 911 communication services, at no additional cost to Licensee or Licensor
(collectively, the “Permitted Use™). Licensor and Licensee agree that any portion of the Communication
Facility that may be conceptually described on Exhibit 1 will not be deemed to limit Licensee’s
Permitted Use. If Exhibit 1 includes drawings of the initial installation of the Communication Facility,
Licensor's execution of this Agreement will signify Licensor’s approval of Exhibit 1. For a period of
ninety (90) days following the start of construction, Licensor grants Licensee, its sublicensees, licensees
and sublicensees, the right to use such portions of the Surrounding Property as may reasonably be

AT&T Site CVLO6075 (Gold Hill) Option and License Agreement 1.31.19 FINAL



required during construction and installation of the Communication Facility. Licensee has the right to
install and operate transmission cables from the equipment shelter or cabinet to the antennas, electric lines
from the main feed to the equipment shelter or cabinet and communication lines from the Property’s main
entry point to the equipment shelter or cabinet, install a generator and to make other improvements,
alterations, upgrades or additions appropriate for Licensee’s Permitted Use, including the right to
construct a fence around the Premises or equipment, install warning signs to make individuals aware of
risks, install protective barriers, install any other control measures reasonably required by Licensee’s
safety procedures or applicable law, and undertake any other appropriate means to secure the Premises or
equipment at Licensee’s expense. Licensee has the right to modify, supplement, replace, upgrade, expand
the Communication Facility (including, for example, increasing the number of antennas or adding
microwave dishes) or relocate the Communication Facility within the Premises at any time during the
Term. Licensee will be allowed to make such alterations to the Property in order to ensure that the
Communication Facility complies with all applicable federal, state or local laws, rules or regulations. The
Communication Facility must also conform to the conditions and restrictions of any applicable special use
permit. In the event Licensee desires to modify or upgrade the Communication Facility, in a manner that
requires an additional portion of the Property (the “Additional Premises”) for such modification or
upgrade, Licensor agrees to license to Licensee the Additional Premises, upon the same terms and
conditions set forth herein, except that the License Fee shall increase, in conjunction with the license of
the Additional Premises by the amount equivalent to the then-current per square foot License Fee rate
charged by Licensor to Licensee times the square footage of the Additional Premises. Licensor agrees to
take such actions and enter into and deliver to Licensee such documents as Licensee reasonably requests
in order to effect and memorialize the license of the Additional Premises to Licensee.

3. TERM.

(a) The initial license term will be five (5) years (the “Initial Term™), commencing on the
effective date of written notification by Licensee to Licensor of Licensee’s exercise of the Option (the
“Term Commencement Date”). The Initial Term will terminate on the fifth (5th) anniversary of the
Term Commencement Date.

()] This Agreement will automaticaily renew for four (4) additional five (5) year term(s)
{each additional five (5) year term shall be defined as an “Extension Term"), upon the same terms and
conditions set forth herein unless Licensee notifies Licensor in writing of Licensee’s intention not to
renew this Agreement at least ninety (90) days prior to the expiration of the Initial Term or the then-
existing Extension Term.

(<) Unless (i) Licensor or Licensee notifies the other in writing of its intention to terminate
this Agreement at least six (6) months prior to the expiration of the final Extension Term, or (ii) the
Agreement is terminated as otherwise permitted by this Agreement prior to the end of the final Extension
Term. this Agreement shall continue in force upon the same covenants, terms and conditions for a further
term of one (1) year, and for annual terms thereafter (*Annual Term™) until terminated by either party
hereto by giving to the other party hereto written notice of its intention to so terminate at least six (6)
months prior to the end of any such Annual Term. Monthly License Fee during such Annual Terms shall
be equal to the License Fee paid for the last month of the final Extension Term. If Licensee remains in
possession of the Premises afier the termination of this Agreement, then Licensee will be deemed to be
occupying the Premises on a month-to-month basis (the “Holdover Term™), subject to the terms and
conditions of this Agreement.

(d) The Initial Term, any Extension Terms. any Annual Terms and any Holdover Term are
collectively referred to as the “Term.”

AT&T Site CV1O6075 (Gold Hilly Option and License Agreement 1.31.19 FINAL



4. LICENSE FEE.

(a) Commencing on the first day of the month following the date that Licensee commences
construction (the “License Fee Commencement Date™), Licensee will pay Licensor on or before the fifth
(5™ day of each calendar month in advance, One Thousand Nine Hundred and No/100 Dollars
($1,900.00) (the “License Fee™), at the address set forth above. In any partial month occurring after the
License Fee Commencement Date, the License Fee will be prorated. The initial License Fee payment will
be forwarded by Licensee to Licensor within forty-five (45) days after the License Fee Commencement
Date.

(b) In year two (2) of the Initial Term, and each year thereafter, including throughout any
Extension Terms exercised, the monthly License Fee will increase by three percent (3%) over the License
Fee paid during the previous year.

() All charges payable under this Agreement such as utilities and taxes shall be billed by
Licensor within one (1) year from the end of the calendar year in which the charges were incurred; any
charges beyond such period shall not be billed by Licensor, and shall not be payable by Licensee. The
foregoing shall not apply to monthly License Fee which is due and payable without a requirement that it
be billed by Licensor. The provisions of this subsection shall survive the termination or expiration of this
Agreement.

5. APPROVALS.

(a) Licensor agrees that Licensee’s ability to use the Premises is contingent upon the
suitability of the Premises and Property for the Permitted Use and Licensee’s ability to obtain and
maintain all Government Approvals. Licensor authorizes Licensee to prepare, execute and file all
required applications to obtain Government Approvals for the Permitted Use and agrees to reasonably
assist Licensee with such applications and with obtaining and maintaining the Government Approvals.

(b) Licensee has the right to obtain a title report or commitment for a licensehold title policy
from a title insurance company of its choice and to have the Property surveyed by a surveyor of its choice.

(c) Licensee may also perform and obtain, at Licensee’s sole cost and expense, soil borings,
percolation tests, engineering procedures, environmental investigation or other tests or reports on, over,
and under the Property, necessary to determine if Licensee's use of the Premises will be compatible with
Licensee’s engineering specifications, system, design, operations or Government Approvals.

6. TERMINATION. This Agreement may be terminated, without penalty or further liability, as
follows:

{a) by either party on thirty (30) days prior written notice, if the other party remains in
default under Section 15 of this Agreement afier the applicable cure periods;

(b) by Licensee upon written notice to Licensor, if Licensee is unable to obtain, or maintain,
any required approval(s) or the issuance of a license or permit by any agency, board, court or other
governmental authority necessary for the construction or operation of the Communication Facility as now
or hereafier intended by Licensee; or if Licensee determines, in its sole discretion that the cost of or delay
in obtaining or retaining the same is commercially unreasonable;

(c) by Licensee, upon written notice to Licensor, if Licensee determines, in its sole
discretion, due to the title report results or survey results, that the condition of the Premises is
unsatisfactory for its intended uses;

(d) by Licensee upon written notice to Licensor for any reason or no reason, at any time prior
to commencement of construction by Licensee; or

ATET Site CVLO607S (Gold Hill) Option and License Agreement 1.31.19 FINAL



(¢) by Licensee upon sixty (60) days’ prior written notice to Licensor for any reason or no
reason, so long as Licensee pays Licensor a termination fee equal to three (3) months™ License Fee, at the
then-current rate, provided, however, that no such termination fee will be payable on account of the
termination of this Agreement by Licensee under any termination provision contained in any other
Section of this Agreement. including the following: Section 5 Approvals, Section 6(a) Termination,
Section 6(b) Termination, Section 6(c) Termination, Section 6(d) Termination, Section 11(d)
Environmental, Section 18 Condemnation or Section 19 Casualty.

7. INSURANCE. During the Option Term and throughout the Term, Licensee will purchase and
maintain in full force and effect such general liability policy as Licensee may deem necessary. Said
policy of general liability insurance will at a minimum provide a combined single limit of One Million
and No/100 Dollars ($1,000,000.00). Notwithstanding the foregoing, Licensee shall have the right to
self-insure such general liability coverage.

8 INTERFERENCE.

(a) Prior to or concurrent with the execution of this Agreement, Licensor has provided or
will provide Licensee with a list of radio frequency user(s) and frequencies used on the Property as of the
Effective Date. Licensee warrants that its use of the Premises will not interfere with those existing radio
frequency uses on the Property, as long as the existing radio frequency user(s) operate and continue to
operate within their respective frequencies and in accordance with all applicable laws and regulations.

(b) Licensor will not grant, after the Effective Date, a lease, license or any other right to any
third party, if the exercise of such grant may in any way adversely affect or interfere with the
Communication Facility, the operations of Licensee or the rights of Licensee under this Agreement.
Licensor will notify Licensee in writing prior to granting any third party the right to install and operate
communications equipment on the Property.

(c) Licensor will not, nor will Licensor permit its employees, tenants, licensees, invitees,
agents or independent contractors to interfere in any way with the Communication Facility. the operations
of Licensee or the rights of Licensee under this Agreement. Licensor will cause such interference to
cease within twenty-four (24) hours after receipt of notice of interference from Licensee. In the event any
such interference does not cease within the aforementioned cure period, Licensor shall work with
Licensee to cease all operations which are reasonably suspected of causing interference (except for
intermittent testing to determine the cause of such interference) until the interference has been corrected.

(d) For the purposes of this Agreement, “interference” may include, but is not limited to, any
use on the Property or Surrounding Property that causes electronic or physical obstruction with, or
degradation of, the communications signals from the Communication Facility.

9, INDEMNIFICATION.
(a) Licensee agrees to indemnify, defend and hold Licensor harmless from and against any

and all injury, loss, damage or liability . costs or expenses in connection with a third party claim
(including reasonable attorneys’ fees and court costs) arising directly from the installation, use,
maintenance, repair or removal of the Communication Facility or Licensee's breach of any provision of
this Agreement. except to the extent attributable to the negligent or intentional act or omission of
Licensor, its employees, invitees, agents or independent contractors.

(b) Licensor agrees to indemnify, defend and hold Licensee harmless from and against any
and all injury, loss, damage or liability , costs or expenses in connection with a third party claim
(including reasonable attorneys’ fees and court costs) arising directly from the actions or failure to act of
Licensor, its employees, invitees, agents or independent contractors, or Licensor’s breach of any
provision of this Agreement, except to the extent attributable to the negligent or intentional act or
omission of Licensee, its employees, agents or independent contractors.

AT&T Site CVLO6075 (Gold Hill) Option and [icense Agreement 1.31.19 FINAL



(c) The indemnified party: (i) shall promptly provide the indemnifying party with written
notice of any claim, demand, lawsuit, or the like for which it seeks indemnification pursuant to this
Section 9 and provide the indemnifying party with copies of any demands, notices, summonses, or legal
papers received in connection with such claim, demand. lawsuit, or the like; (ii) shall not settle any such
claim, demand, lawsuit, or the like without the prior written consent of the indemnifying party; and (iii)
shall fully cooperate with the indemnifying party in the defense of the claim, demand, lawsuit, or the like,
A delay in notice shall not relieve the indemnifying party of its indemnity obligation, except (1) to the
extent the indemnifying party can show it was prejudiced by the delay; and (2) the indemnifying party
shall not be liable for any settlement or litigation expenses incurred before the time when notice is given.

10. WARRANTIES.

(a) Each of Licensee and Licensor (to the extent not a natural person) each acknowledge and
represent that it is duly organized, validly existing and in good standing and has the right, power, and
authority or capacity, as applicable, to enter into this Agreement and bind itself hereto through the party
ot individual set forth as signatory for the party below.

(b) Licensor represents, warrants and agrees that: (i) Licensor solely owns the Property as a
legal lot in fee simple; (ii) the Property is not and will not be encumbered by any liens, restrictions,
mortgages, covenants, conditions, easements, leases, or any other agreements of record or not of record,
which would adversely affect Licensee's Permitted Use and enjoyment of the Premises under this
Agreement; (iii) then Licensor grants to Licensee sole, actual, quiet and peaceful use, enjoyment and
possession of the Premises in accordance with the terms of this Agreement without hindrance or ejection
by any persons lawfully claiming under Licensor: (iv) Licensor’s execution and performance of this
Agreement will not violate any laws, ordinances, covenants or the provisions of any mortgage, lease or
other agreement binding on Licensor including, NV Rev Stat Sec. 244.2833; and (v} if the Property is or
becomes encumbered by a deed to secure a debt, mortgage or other security interest, then Licensor will
provide promptly to Licensee a mutually agreeable subordination, non-disturbance and attornment
agreement executed by Licensor and the holder of such security interest. Licensee may conclusively rely
upon the representations and warranties of Licensor without regard to whether or not such information
might have been ascertainable from due diligence of public records including without limitation,
investigations of title to the Property available at the County Recorder’s Office for Storey County.

11. ENVIRONMENTAL.

(a) Licensor represents and warrants, except as may be identified in Exhibit 11 attached to
this Agreement, (i) the Property, as of the Effective Date, is free of hazardous substances, including
asbestos-containing materials and lead paint, and (ii) the Property has never been subject to any
contamination or hazardous conditions resulting in any environmental investigation, inquiry or
remediation. Licensor and Licensee agree that each will be responsible for compliance with any and all
applicable governmental laws, rules, statutes, regulations, codes, ordinances, or principles of common law
regulating or imposing standards of liability or standards of conduct with regard to protection of the
environment or worker health and safety, as may now or at any time hereafter be in effect, to the extent
such apply to that party's activity conducted in or on the Property.

(b) Licensor and Licensee agree to hold harmless and indemnify the other from, and to
assume all duties, responsibilities and liabilities at the sole cost and expense of the indemnifying party
for. payment of penalties, sanctions, forfeitures, losses. costs or damages. and for responding to any
action, notice. claim, order, summons, citation, directive, litigation, investigation or proceeding
(*Claims"}, to the extent arising from that party’s breach of its obligations or representations under
Section t1(a). Licensor agrees to hold harmless and indemnify Licensee from, and to assume all duties,
responsibilities and liabilities at the sole cost and expense of Licensor for, payment of penalties,
sanctions, forfeitures, losses, costs or damages, and for responding to any Claims, to the extent arising
from subsurface or other contamination of the Property with hazardous substances prior to the Effective
Date or from such contamination caused by the acts or omissions of Licensor during the Term. Licensee

ATET Site CV1LO6075 (CGold Hill) Option and License Agreement 1.31 19 FINAL



agrees to hold harmless and indemnify Licensor from, and to assume all duties, responsibilities and
liabilities at the sole cost and expense of Licensee for, payment of penalties, sanctions, forfeitures, losses,
costs or damages, and for responding to any Claims, to the extent arising from hazardous substances
brought onto the Property by Licensee.

() The indemnification provisions contained in this Section 11 specifically include
reasonable costs, expenses and fees incurred in connection with any investigation of Property conditions
or any clean-up, remediation, removal or restoration work required by any governmental authority. The
provisions of this Section 11 will survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement.

(d) In the event Licensee becomes aware of any hazardous materials on the Property, or any
environmental, health or safety condition or matter relating to the Property. that, in Licensee’s sole
determination, renders the condition of the Premises or Property unsuitable for Licensee’s use, or if
Licensee believes that the leasing or continued leasing of the Premises would expose Licensee to undue
risks of liability to a government agency or other third party, then Licensee will have the right, in addition
10 any other rights it may have at law or in equity, to terminate this Agreement upon written notice to
Licensor.

12. ACCESS. At all times throughout the Term of this Agreement, and at no additional charge to
Licensee, Licensee and its employees, agents, and subcontractors, will have twenty-four (24) hour per
day, seven (7) day per week pedestrian and vehicular access (“Access”) to and over the Property, from an
open and improved public road to the Premises, for the installation, maintenance and operation of the
Communication Facility and any utilities serving the Premises. As may be described more fully in
Exhibit 1, Licensor grants to Licensee license (which license shall be irrevocable for the Term hereof
except following a termination of the Agreement in accordance with the express terms and conditions set
forth herein) for such Access and Licensor agrees to provide to Licensee such codes, keys and other
instruments necessary for such Access at no additional cost to Licensee. Upon Licensee’s request,
Licensor will execute a separate recordable license (which license shall be irrevocable for the Term
hereof except following a termination of the Agreement in accordance with the express terms and
conditions set forth herein) evidencing this right. Licensor shall execute a letter granting Licensee Access
to the Property substantially in the form attached as Exhibit 12; upon Licensee’s request. Licensor shall
execute additional letters during the Term. If Licensee elects to utilize an Unmanned Aircraft System
(*UAS™) in connection with its installation, construction, monitoring, site audits, inspections,
maintenance, repair, modification. or alteration activities at a Property, Licensor hereby grants Licensee,
or any UAS operator acting on Licensee’s behalf, express permission to fly over the applicable Property
and Premises, and consents to the use of audio and video navigation and recording in connection with the
use of the UAS. Licensor acknowledges that in the event Licensee cannot obtain Access to the Premises,
Licensee shall incur significant damage. If Licensor fails to provide the Access granted by this Section
12, such failure shall be a default under this Agreement. Licensor shall not be responsible for any snow
removal on the Property to provide Licensee Access to the Premises.

13. REMOVAL/RESTORATION, All portions of the Communication Facility brought onto the
Property by Licensee will be and remain Licensee’s personal property and, at Licensee's option, may be
removed by Licensee at any time during the Term. Licensor covenants and agrees that no part of the
Communication Facility constructed, erected or placed on the Premises by Licensee will become, or be
considered as being affixed to or a part of, the Property, it being the specific intention of Licensor that all
improvements of every kind and nature constructed, erected or placed by Licensee on the Premises will
be and remain the property of Licensee and may be removed by Licensee at any time during the Term.
Within one hundred twenty (120) days after the termination of this Agreement, Licensee will remove all
of Licensee’s above-ground improvements and Licensee will, to the extent reasonable, restore the
Premises to its condition at the commencement of the Term of this Agreement, reasonable wear and tear
and loss by casualty or other causes beyond Licensee's control excepted. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
Licensee will not be responsible for the replacement of any trees, shrubs or other vegetation, nor will

AT&T Site CVLO607S (Gold Hill) Option and License Agreement 1.31.19 FINAL



Licensee be required to remove from the Premises or the Property any structural steel, foundations or
underground utilities.

14. MAINTENANCE/UTILITIES.

(a) Licensee will keep and maintain the Premises in good condition, reasonable wear and tear
and damage from the elements excepted. Licensor will maintain and repair the Property and access
thereto and all areas of the Premises where Licensee does not have exclusive control, in good and
tenantable condition, subject to reasonable wear and tear and damage from the elements.

(b) Licensee will be responsible for paying on a monthly or quarterly basis all utilities
charges for electricity, telephone service or any other utility used or consumed by Licensee on the
Premises. In the event Licensee cannot secure its own metered electrical supply, Licensee will have the
right, at its own cost and expense, to sub-meter from Licensor. When sub-metering is required under this
Agreement, Licensor will read the meter and provide Licensee with an invoice and usage data on a
monthly basis. Licensee shall reimburse Licensor for such utility usage at the same rate charged to
Licensor by the utility service provider. Licensor further agrees to provide the usage data and invoice on
forms provided by Licensee and to send such forms to such address and/or agent designated by Licensee.
Licensee will remit payment within sixty (60) days of receipt of the usage data and required forms.
Licensor shall maintain accurate and detailed records of all utility expenses, invoices and payments
applicable to Licensee's reimbursement obligations hereunder. Within fifteen (15) days after a request
from Licensee, Licensor shall provide copies of such utility billing records to Licensee in the form of
copies of invoices, contracts and cancelled checks. If the utility billing records reflect an overpayment by
Licensee, Licensee shall have the right to deduct the amount of such overpayment from any monies due to
Licensor from Licensee.

(©) As noted in Section 4(c) above, any utility fee recovery by Licensor is limited to a twelve
(12) month period. If Licensee submeters electricity from Licensor, Licensor agrees to give Licensee at
least twenty-four (24) hours advance notice of any planned interruptions of said electricity. Licensor
acknowledges that Licensee provides a communication service which requires electrical power to operate
and must operate twenty-four (24) hours per day, seven (7) days per week. If the interruption is for an
extended period of time, in Licensee’s reasonable determination, Licensor agrees to allow Licensee the
right to bring in a temporary source of power for the duration of the interruption. Licensor will not be
responsible for interference with, interruption of or failure, beyond the reasonable control of Licensor, of
such services to be furnished or supplied by Licensor.

(d) Licensee will have the right to install utilities, at Licensee’s expense, and to improve
present utilities on the Property and the Premises. Licensor hereby grants to any service company
providing utility or similar services, including electric power and telecommunications, to Licensee a
license (which license shall be irrevocable for the Term hereof except following a termination of the
Agreement in accordance with the express terms and conditions set forth herein) over the Property, from
an open and improved public road to the Premises, and upon the Premises, for the purpose of
constructing, operating and maintaining such lines, wires, circuits, and conduits, associated equipment
cabinets and such appurtenances thereto, as such service companies may from time to time require in
order to provide such services to the Premises. Upon Licensee’s or service company’s request. Licensor
will execute a separate recordable license (which license shall be irrevocable for the Term hereof except
following a termination of the Agreement in accordance with the express terms and conditions set forth
herein) evidencing this grant, at no cost to Licensee or the service company.

15. DEFAULT AND RIGHT TO CURE.

(a) The following will be deemed a default by Licensee and a breach of this Agreement: (i)
non-payment of the License Fee if such License Fee remains unpaid for more than thirty (30) days after
written notice from Licensor of such failure to pay; or (ii) Licensee’s failure to perform any other term or
condition under this Agreement within forty-five (45) days after written notice from Licensor specifying
the failure. No such failure, however, will be deemed to exist if Licensee has commenced to cure such

ATET Site CVLO6075 (Gold Hill) Option and License Agreement 1 31.19 FINAL



default within such period and provided that such efforts are prosecuted to completion with reasonable
diligence. Delay in curing a default will be excused if due to causes beyond the reasonable control of
Licensee. If Licensee remains in default beyond any applicable cure period, then Licensor will have the
right to exercise any and all rights and remedies available to it under law and equity.

AT&T Site CVLO6075 (Gold Hill) Option and License Agreement 1.31 19 FINAL



(b) The following will be deemed a default by Licensor and a breach of this Agreement: (i)
Licensor’s failure to provide Access to the Premises as required by Section 12 within twenty-four (24)
hours after written notice of such failure; (ii) Licensor’s failure to cure an interference problem as
required by Section 8 within twenty-four (24) hours after written notice of such failure; or (iii) Licensor’s
failure to perform any term, condition or breach of any warranty or covenant under this Agreement within
forty-five (45) days after written notice from Licensee specifying the failure. No such failure, however,
will be deemed to exist if Licensor has commenced to cure the default within such period and provided
such efforts are prosecuted to completion with reasonable diligence. Delay in curing a default will be
excused if due to causes beyond the reasonable control of Licensor. If Licensor remains in default
beyond any applicable cure period. Licensee will have: (i} the right to cure Licensor’s default and to
deduct the costs of such cure from any monies due to Licensor from Licensee, and (ii) any and all other
rights available to it under law and equity.

16. ASSIGNMENT/SUBLICENSE. Licensee will have the right to assign, sell or transfer its
interest under this Agreement, in whole or part, without Licensor’s consent, to: (a) any Affiliate of
Licensee, (b) any entity with a net worth of at least Twenty Million Dollars ($20,000,000), or (c) any
entity that acquires all or substantially all of Licensee’s assets in the market as defined by the Federal
Communications Commission in which the Property is located. Upon notification to Licensor of such
assignment, transfer or sale, Licensee will be relieved of all future performance, liabilities and obligations
under this Agreement. Licensee shall have the right to sublicense the Premises, in whole or in part,
without Licensor's consent. Licensee may not otherwise assign this Agreement without Licensor’s
consent, Licensor’s consent not to be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed.

17. NOTICES. All notices, requests and demands hereunder will be given by first class certified or
registered mail, return receipt requested, or by a nationally recognized overnight courier, postage prepaid,
to be effective when properly sent and received, refused or returned undelivered. Notices will be
addressed to the parties hereto as follows:

If to Licensee: New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC
Attn: Tower Asset Group — Lease Administration
Re: Cell Site No.: CVL06075
Search Ring Name: Gold Hill
Cell Site Name: Gold Hill (NV)
Fixed Asset No.: 10151421
575 Morosgo Drive NE
Atlanta, GA 30324

With a copy to: New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC
Attn.: Legal Dept — Network Operations
Re: Cell Site No.: CVL06075
Search Ring Name: Gold Hill
Cell Site Name: Gold Hill (NV)
Fixed Asset No.: 10151421
208 S. Akard Street
Dallas, TX 75202-4206

The copy sent to the Legal Department is an administrative step which alone does not constitute legal
notice.

AT&T Site CVLO6075 (Gold Hill) Option and [icense Agreement 1.31.19 FINAL



If to Licensor: Storey County
P.O. Box 176
Virginia City, NV 89440

Either party hereto may change the place for the giving of notice to it by thirty (30) days’ prior written
notice to the other party hereto as provided herein.

18. CONDEMNATION. In the event Licensor receives nofification of any condemnation
proceedings affecting the Property. Licensor will provide notice of the proceeding to Licensee within
twenty-four (24} hours. If a condemning authority takes all of the Property, or a portion sufficient, in
Licensee's sole determination, to render the Premises unsuitable for Licensee, this Agreement will
terminate as of the date the title vests in the condemning authority. The parties will each be entitled to
pursue their own separate awards in the condemnation proceeds, which for Licensee will include, where
applicable, the value of its Communication Facility, moving expenses, prepaid License Fee, and business
dislocation expenses. Licensee will be entitled to reimbursement for any prepaid License Fee on a pro
rata basis.

19, CASUALTY. Licensor will provide notice to Licensee of any casualty or other harm affecting
the Property within twenty-four (24) hours of the casualty or other harm. If any part of the
Communication Facility or the Property is damaged by casualty or other harm as to render the Premises
unsuitable, in Licensee's sole determination, then Licensee may terminate this Agreement by providing
written notice to Licensor, which termination will be effective as of the date of such casualty or other
harm. Upon such termination, Licensee will be entitled to collect all insurance proceeds payable to
Licensee on account thereof and to be reimbursed for any prepaid License Fee on a pro rata basis.
Licensor agrees to permit Licensee to place temporary transmission and reception facilities on the
Property, but only until such time as Licensee is able to activate a replacement transmission facility at
another location; notwithstanding the termination of this Agreement, such temporary facilities will be
governed by all of the terms and conditions of this Agreement, including License Fee. If Licensor or
Licensee undertakes to rebuild or restore the Premises and/or the Communication Facility, as applicable,
Licensor agrees to permit Licensee to place temporary transmission and reception facilities on the
Property at no additional License Fee until the reconstruction of the Premises and/or the Communication
Facility is completed. If Licensor determines not to rebuild or restore the Property, Licensor will notify
Licensee of such determination within thirty (30) days after the casualty or other harm. If Licensor does
not so notify Licensee and Licensee decides not to terminate under this Section 19, then Licensor will
promptly rebuild or restore any portion of the Property interfering with or required for Licensee’s
Permitted Use of the Premises to substantially the same condition as existed before the casualty or other
harm. Licensor agrees that the License Fee shall be abated until the Property and/or the Premises are
rebuilt or restored, unless Licensee places temporary transmission and reception facilities on the Property.

20. WAIVER OF LICENSOR’S LIENS. Licensor waives any and all lien rights it may have,
statutory or otherwise, concerning the Communication Facility or any portion thereof.  The
Communication Facility shall be deemed personal property for purposes of this Agreement, regardless of
whether any portion is deemed real or personal property under applicable law; Licensor consents to
Licensee's right to remove all or any portion of the Communication Facility from time to time in
Licensee’s sole discretion and without Licensor’s consent.

AT&T Site CV1.06075 (Gold Hill) Option and License Agreement 1.31.19 FINAL



21. TAXES.

(a) Licensor shall be responsible for (i} all taxes and assessments levied upon the lands,
improvements and other property of Licensor including any such taxes that may be calculated by a taxing
authority using any method, including the income method, (ii) all sales, use, license, value added,
documentary, stamp, gross receipts, registration, real estate transfer, conveyance, excise, recording, and
other similar taxes and fees imposed in connection with this Agreement, and (iii) all sales, use, license,
value added, documentary, stamp, gross receipts, registration, real estate transfer, conveyance, excise,
recording, and other similar taxes and fees imposed in connection with a sale of the Property or
assignment of License Fee payments by Licensor. Licensee shall be responsible for (y) any taxes and
assessments attributable to and levied upon Licensee's improvements on the Premises if and as set forth
in this Section 21 and (z) all sales, use, license, value added, documentary, stamp, gross receipts,
registration, real estate transfer, conveyance, excise, recording, and other similar taxes and fees imposed
in connection with an assignment of this Agreement or sublicense by Licensee. Nothing herein shall
require Licensee to pay any inheritance, franchise, income, payroll, excise, privilege, rent, capital stock,
stamp, documentary, estate or profit tax, or any tax of similar nature, that is or may be imposed upon
Licensor.

{b) In the event Licensor receives a notice of assessment with respect to which taxes or
assessments are imposed on Licensee’s improvements on the Premises. Licensor shall provide Licensee
with copies of each such notice immediately upon receipt, but in no event later than thirty (30) days after
the date of such notice of assessment. If Licensor does not provide such notice or notices to Licensee in a
timely manner and Licensee’s rights with respect to such taxes are prejudiced by the delay. Licensor shall
reimburse Licensee for any increased costs directly resulting from the delay and Licensor shall be
responsible for payment of the tax or assessment set forth in the notice, and Licensor shall not have the
right to reimbursement of such amount from Licensee. If Licensor provides a notice of assessment to
Licensee within such time period and requests reimbursement from Licensee as set forth beiow, then
Licensee shall reimburse Licensor for the tax or assessments identified on the notice of assessment on
Licensee's improvements, which has been paid by Licensor. If Licensor seeks reimbursement from
Licensee, Licensor shall, no later than thirty (30) days after Licensor’s payment of the taxes or
assessments for the assessed tax year, provide Licensee with written notice including evidence that
Licensor has timely paid same, and Licensor shall provide to Licensee any other documentation
reasonably requested by Licensee to allow Licensee to evaluate the payment and to reimburse Licensor.

(c) For any tax amount for which Licensee is responsible under this Agreement, Licensee
shall have the right to contest, in good faith, the validity or the amount thereof using such administrative,
appellate or other proceedings as may be appropriate in the jurisdiction, and may defer payment of such
obligations, pay same under protest, or take such other steps as permitted by law. This right shall include
the ability to institute any legal, regulatory or informal action in the name of Licensor, Licensee, or both,
with respect to the valuation of the Premises. Licensor shall cooperate with respect to the commencement
and prosecution of any such proceedings and will execute any documents required therefor. The expense
of any such proceedings shall be borne by Licensee and any refunds or rebates secured as a result of
Licensee’s action shall belong to Licensee, to the extent the amounts were originally paid by Licensee. In
the event Licensee notifies Licensor by the due date for assessment of Licensee’s intent to contest the
assessment, Licensor shall not pay the assessment pending conclusion of the contest, unless required by
applicable law.

(d) Licensor shall not split or cause the tax parcel on which the Premises are located to be
split, bifurcated, separated or divided without the prior written consent of Licensee.
(e) Licensee shall have the right but not the obligation to pay any taxes due by Licensor

hereunder if Licensor fails to timely do so, in addition to any other rights or remedies of Licensee. In the
event that Licensee exercises its rights under this Section 21(e) due to such Licensor default, Licensee
shall have the right to deduct such tax amounts paid from any monies due to Licensor from Licensee as
provided in Section 15(b), provided that Licensee may exercise such right without having provided to
Licensor notice and the opportunity to cure per Section 15(b).

AT&T Site CVLO6075 (Gold Hill) Option and License Agreement 1.31.19 FINAL



(H Any tax-related notices shall be sent to Licensee in the manner set forth in Section 17.
Promptly after the Effective Date, Licensor shall provide the following address to the taxing authority for
the authority’s use in the event the authority needs to communicate with Licensee. In the event that
Licensee’s tax address changes by notice to Licensor, Licensor shall be required to provide Licensee’s
new tax address to the taxing authority or authorities.

New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC

Attn: Tower Asset Group — Lease Administration
Re: Cell Site No.: CVL06075

Search Ring Name: Gold Hill

Cell Site Name: Gold Hill (NV)

Fixed Asset No.: 10151421

575 Morosgo Drive NE

Atlanta, GA 30324

(g) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Section 21, Licensee shall
have no obligation to reimburse any tax or assessment for which the Licensor is reimbursed or rebated by
a third party.

22, SALE OF PROPERTY.

(a) Licensor may sell the Property or a portion thereof to a third party, provided: (i) the sale
is made subject to the terms of this Agreement; and (ii) if the sale does not include the assignment of
Licensot's full interest in this Agreement, the purchaser must agree to perform, without requiring
compensation from Licensee or any sublicensee, any obligation of Licensor under this Agreement,
including Licensor’s obligation to cooperate with Licensee as provided hereunder.

b) If Licensor, at any time during the Term of this Agreement, decides to rezone or sell,
subdivide or otherwise transfer all or any part of the Premises, or all or any part of the Property or the
Surrounding Property, to a purchaser other than Licensee, Licensor shall promptly notify Licensee in
writing, and such rezoning, sale, subdivision or transfer shall be subject to this Agreement and Licensee’s
rights hereunder. In the event of a change in ownership. transfer or sale of the Property. within ten (10)
days of such transfer, Licensor or its successor shall send the documents listed below in this Section 22(b)
to Licensee. Until Licensee receives all such documents, Licensee’s failure to make payments under this
Agreement shall not be an event of default and Licensee reserves the right to hold payments due under
this Agreement.

i, 0Old deed to Property

ii. New deed to Property

iii. Bill of Sale or Transfer

iv. Copy of current Tax Bill

v. New [RS Form W-9

vi. Completed and Signed Licensee Payment Direction Form

vii, Full contact information for new Licensor including phone number(s)

ATET Site CVL0607S (Gold Hill) Option and License Agreement 1.31.19 FINAL



{c) Licensor agrees not to sell, lease or use any areas of the Property or the Surrounding
Property for the installation, operation or maintenance of other wireless communication facilities if such
installation, operation or maintenance would interfere with Licensee’s Permitted Use or communications
equipment as determined by radio propagation tests performed by Licensee in its sole discretion.
Licensor or Licensor’s prospective purchaser shall reimburse Licensee for any costs and expenses of such
testing. If the radio frequency propagation tests demonstrate levels of interference unacceptable to
Licensee, Licensor shall be prohibited from selling, leasing or using any areas of the Property or the
Surrounding Property for purposes of any installation, operation or maintenance of any other wireless
communication facility or equipment.

(d) The provisions of this Section 22 shall in no way limit or impair the obligations of
Licensor under this Agreement, including interference and access obligations.

23. RIGHT OF FIRST REFUSAL. Notwithstanding the provisions contained in Section 22, if at
any time after the Effective Date, Licensor receives a bona fide written offer from a third party seeking
any sale. conveyance, assignment or transfer, whether in whole or in part. of any property interest in or
related to the Premises, including without limitation any offer seeking an assignment or transfer of the
License Fee payments associated with this Agreement or an offer to purchase an easement with respect to
the Premises (“*Offer™), Licensor shall immediately furnish Licensee with a copy of the Offer. Licensee
shall have the right within ninety (90) days after it receives such copy to match the financial terms of the
Offer and agree in writing to match such terms of the Offer. Such writing shall be in the form of a
contract substantially similar to the Offer but Licensee may assign its rights to a third party. If Licensee
chooses not to exercise this right or fails to provide written notice to Licensor within the ninety (90) day
period, Licensor may sell, convey, assign or transfer such property interest in or related to the Premises
pursuant to the Offer, subject to the terms of this Agreement. If Licensor attempts to sell, convey, assign
or transfer such property interest in or related to the Premises without complying with this Section 23, the
sale, conveyance, assignment or transfer shall be void. Licensee shall not be responsible for any failure to
make payments under this Agreement and reserves the right to hold payments due under this Agreement
until Licensor complies with this Section 23. Licensee’s failure to exercise the right of first refusal shall
not be deemed a waiver of the rights contained in this Section 23 with respect to any future proposed
conveyances as described herein. The rights granted by this Section shall not apply to any transaction
other than the assignment by Licensor solely of the License Fee stream hereunder under the terms of this
Section 23. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing. nothing in this Section shall be construed to
apply 1o (1) Licensor’s grant of a security interest hereunder in connection with any mortgage, loan or
other extension of credit; (2) Licensor’s retention of a contractor to manage and maintain the Property or
a portion thereof for a consideration that includes, in whole or in part, the right to share in License Fee
payments or other revenues; (3) Licensor’s retention of a contractor to collect the License Fee or other
accounts receivable on Licensor’s behalf: or (4) the assignment of revenue under any agreement other
than this Agreement or of rentals/license fees due from any tenant/licensee of Licensor other than
Licensee.

24, MISCELLANEOUS.

(a) Amendment/Waiver. This Agreement cannot be amended, modified or revised unless
done in writing and signed by Licensor and Licensee. No provision may be waived except in a writing
signed by both parties. The failure by a party to enforce any provision of this Agreement or to require
performance by the other party will not be construed to be a waiver, or in any way affect the right of
either party to enforce such provision thereafter.

AT&T Site CYLO6075 (Gold Hill) Optien and License Agreement 131 19 FINAL



(b) Memorandum of License. Contemporaneously with the execution of this Agreement,
the parties will execute a recordable Memorandum of License substantially in the form attached as
Exhibit 24(b). Either party may record this Memorandum of License at any time during the Term, in its
absolute discretion. Thereafter during the Term, either party will, at any time upon fifteen (15) business
days’ prior written notice from the other, execute, acknowledge and deliver to the other a recordable
Memorandum of License.

(c) Limitation of Liability. Except for the indemnity obligations set forth in this
Agreement, and otherwise notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, Licensee and
Licensor each waives any claims that each may have against the other with respect to consequential,
incidental or special damages, however caused, based on any theory of liability.

(d) Compliance with Law. Licensee agrees to comply with all federal, state and local laws,
orders, rules and regulations (*“Laws”) applicable to Licensee’s use of the Communication Facility on the
Property. Licensor agrees to comply with all Laws relating to Licensor’s ownership and use of the
Property and any improvements on the Property.

(¢) Bind and Benefit. The terms and conditions contained in this Agreement will run with
the Property and bind and inure to the benefit of the parties, their respective heirs, executors,
administrators, successors and assigns.

(H Entire Agreement. This Agreement and the exhibits attached hereto, all being a part
hereof. constitute the entire agreement of the parties hereto and will supersede all prior offers,
negotiations and agreements with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement. Exhibits are numbered
to correspond to the Section wherein they are first referenced. Except as otherwise stated in this
Agreement, each party shall bear its own fees and expenses (including the fees and expenses of its agents,
brokers, representatives, attorneys, and accountants) incurred in connection with the negotiation, drafting,
execution and performance of this Agreement and the transactions it contemplates.

g Governing Law. This Agreement will be governed by the laws of the state in which the
Premises are located, without regard to conflicts of law,

(h) Interpretation. Unless otherwise specified, the following rules of construction and
interpretation apply: (i) captions are for convenience and reference only and in no way define or limit the
construction of the terms and conditions hereof} (ii) use of the term “including” will be interpreted to
mean “including but not limited to™; (iii) whenever a party’s consent is required under this Agreement,
except as otherwise stated in the Agreement or as same may be duplicative, such consent will not be
unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed; (iv) exhibits are an integral part of this Agreement and are
incorporated by reference into this Agreement; (v) use of the terms “termination” or “expiration” are
interchangeable: (vi) reference to a default will take into consideration any applicable notice, grace and
cure periods; (vii) to the extent there is any issue with respect to any alleged, perceived or actual
ambiguity in this Agreement, the ambiguity shall not be resolved on the basis of who drafted the
Agreement; (viii) the singular use of words includes the plural where appropriate; and (ix) if any
provision of this Agreement is held invalid, illegal or unenforceable, the remaining provisions of this
Agreement shall remain in full force if the overall purpose of the Agreement is not rendered impossible
and the original purpose, intent or consideration is not materially impaired.

() AfTiliates. All references to “Licensee” shall be deemed to include any Affiliate of New
Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC using the Premises for any Permitted Use or otherwise exercising the rights
of Licensee pursuant to this Agreement. “Affiliate” means with respect to a party to this Agreement, any
person or entity that (directly or indirectly) controls, is controlled by, or under common control with, that
party. “Control” of a person or entity means the power (directly or indirectly) to direct the management
or policies of that person or entity, whether through the ownership of voting securities, by contract, by
agency or otherwise,

) Survival. Any provisions of this Agreement relating to indemnification shall survive the
termination or expiration hereof. In addition, any terms and conditions contained in this Agreement that
by their sense and context are intended to survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement shall so
survive.

AT&T Site CVLO6075 (Gold Hill) Option and License Agreement 131,19 FINAL



(k) W-9. As a condition precedent to payment, Licensor agrees to provide Licensee with a
completed IRS Form W-9, or its equivalent, upon execution of this Agreement and at such other times as
may be reasonably requested by Licensee, including any change in Licensor’s name or address. A copy of
the IRS Form W-9 in its current form is attached hereto as Exhibit 24(k).

() Execution/No Option. The submission of this Agreement to any party for examination
or consideration does not constitute an offer, reservation of or option for the Premises based on the terms
set forth herein, This Agreement will become effective as a binding Agreement only upon the
handwritten legal execution, acknowledgment and delivery hereof by Licensor and Licensee. This
Agreement may be executed in two (2) or more counterparts, all of which shall be considered one and the
same agreement and shall become effective when one or mote counterparts have been signed by each of
the parties. All parties need not sign the same counterpart.

(m) Attorneys’ Fees. In the event that any dispute between the parties related to this
Agreement should result in litigation, the prevailing party in such litigation shall be entitled to recover
from the other party all reasonable fees and expenses of enforcing any right of the prevailing party,
including reasonable attorneys’ fees and expenses. Prevailing party means the party determined by the
court to have most nearly prevailed even if such party did not prevail in all matters. This provision will
not be construed to entitle any party other than Licensor, Licensee and their respective Affiliates to
recover their fees and expenses.

(n) WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL. EACH PARTY, TO THE EXTENT PERMITTED BY
LAW, KNOWINGLY, VOLUNTARILY AND INTENTIONALLY WAIVES ITS RIGHT TO A TRIAL
BY JURY IN ANY ACTION OR PROCEEDING UNDER ANY THEORY OF LIABILITY ARISING
OUT OF OR IN ANY WAY CONNECTED WITH THIS AGREEMENT OR THE TRANSACTIONS IT
CONTEMPLATES.

(0) Incidental Fees. Unless specified in this Agreement, no unilateral fees or additional
costs or expenses are to be applied by either party to the other party, including review of plans, structural
analyses, consents, provision of documents or other communications between the parties.

(P Further Acts. Upon request, Licensor will cause to be promptly and duly taken,
executed, acknowledged and delivered all such further acts, documents, and assurances as Licensee may
request from time to time in order to effectuate, carry out and perform all of the terms, provisions and
conditions of this Agreement and all transactions and permitted use contemplated by this Agreement.

[SIGNATURES APPEAR ON NEXT PAGE]

AT&T Site CVLO607S {Gold Hill} Option and License Agreement 1.31.19 FINAL



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be effective as of the
Effective Date.

“LICENSOR”

Storey County,
a Nevada governmental entity

By:

Name:

Its:

Date: , 2019

“LICENSEE”

New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC,
a Delaware limited liability company

By: AT&T Mobility Corporation
Its: Manager

By:

Name:

Its:

Date: , 2019

AT&T Site CYLO607S (Gold Hill) Option and License Agreement 1.31.19 FINAL



EXHIBIT 1

DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY AND PREMISES
Page 1 of 10

to the Option and License Agreement dated as of , 2019, by and between
Storey County, a Nevada governmental entity, as Licensor. and New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC. a
Delaware limited liability company, as Licensee.

The Property is legally described as follows:

PARCEL 1: THIS PARCEL IS A COMBINATION OF AN' 18.423 ACRE PARCEL AS
SHOWN ON RECORD OF SURVEY LOT LINE ADJUSTMENT MAP DOC. NO. 67649,
AND LOT 39-8 OF RECORD OF SURVEY DOC. NO. 43761.

IN THIS FIELD SURVEY, NO ORIGINAL CORNERS WERE FOUND FOR THE GOLD HILL
MAP AND NONE WERE BELIEVED TO BE SET. |\

THE EAST LINE OF SAID 18.423 ACRE PARCEL WAS ADJUSTED TO THE RIGHT OF
WAY PER THE NDOT RIGHT OF WAY MAP_DATED JANUARY 1946. THE WEST
BOUNDARY OF THIS 18.423 ACRE-PARCEL~DID NOT'FIT WELL WITH THE ADJOINING
MAYES PARCEL (002—031-03) TO TME WEST,"AND THIS 'PARCELS WEST LINE WAS
ADJUSTED TO THE EAST LINE.OF HAYES® J?ARCEL AT THE' INSTRUCTION OF
STOREY COUNTY. .

SAD LOT 39-8iS BEST-FI_USING. THE RECORD. OF SU MAP DOC. NO.
45761, ADJUSTING/IT TO THE-NORTH. LINE OF SAID- NQ. 67649, THE EAST
LINE OF PARCEL MAP DOC. NO: 97748, AND THE \LINE OF PARCEL MAP
DOC. NO. 62966. ONE SURVEY MONUMENT WAS FOUND ‘iN THE MOST NORTHERLY
CORNER OF PARCEL 1, AND WAS HELD:\FOR LINE AND DISTANCE AT THAT POINT.

The Premises are described and/or depicted as follows:

[100% Zoning Drawings Dated November 28 2018, Prepared by Adaptive Re-Use Engineering, and
Consisting of Nine (9) Pages, Appears on Following Pages]

Notes:

1 THIS EXHIBIT MAY BE REPLACED BY A LAND SURVEY AND/OR CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS OF THE PREMISES ONCE
RECEIVED BY LICENSEL.

2 ANY SETBACK OQF THE PREMISES FROM THE PROPERTY 'S BOUNDARIES SHALL BE THE DISTANCE REQUIRED BY THE
APPLICABLE GOVERNMENTAL AUTHORITIES.

3 WIDTH OF ACCESS ROAD SHALL BE THE WIDTH REQUIRED BY THE APPLICABLE GOVERNMENTAL AUTHORITIES,
INCLUDING POLICE AND FIRE DEPARTMENTS

4 THE TYPE. NUMBER AND MOUNTING POSITIONS AND LOCATIONS OF ANTENNAS AND TRANSMISSION LINES ARE
ILLUSTRATIVE ONLY. ACTUAL TYPES. NUMBERS AND MOUNTING POSITIONS MAY VARY FROM WHAT IS SHOWN
ABOVE.

AT&T Site CVI.06075 (Gold Hill) Option and License Agreement 1.31.19 FINAL



EXHIBIT 11
ENVIRONMENTAL DISCLOSURE

Licensor represents and warrants that the Property, as of the Effective Date, is free of hazardous
substances except as follows:

1. None.



EXHIBIT 12
STANDARD ACCESS LETTER

[FOLLOWS ON NEXT PAGE]



[Licensor Letterhead]

[Insert Date]

Building Staff / Security Staff
[Licensor, Lessee, Licensee]
[Street Address]

[City, State, Zip]

Re:  Authorized Access granted to [ ]
Dear Building and Security Staff,

Please be advised that we have signed a license with [ ] permitting [ ] to install,
operate and maintain telecommunications equipment at the property. The terms of the license grant

[ ] and its representatives, employees, agents and subcontractors (“representatives™) 24 hour
per day, 7 day per week access to the licensed area.

To avoid impact on telephone service during the day, { ] representatives may be seeking
access to the property outside of normal business hours. [ ] representatives have been
instructed to keep noise levels at a minimum during their visit.

Please grant the bearer of a copy of this letter access to the property and to licensed area. Thank you for
your assistance.

Licensor Signature



EXHIBIT 24(b)
MEMORANDUM OF LICENSE

[FOLLOWS ON NEXT PAGE]



Recording Reguested By
& When Recorded Return To:

New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC

Attn: Tower Asset Group — Lease Administration
575 Morosgo Drive NE

Atlanta, GA 30324

APN: 002-023-11

Cell Site No.: CVL06075
Search Ring Name: Gold Hill
Cell Site Name: Gold Hill (NV)
Fixed Asset No.; 10151421
State: Nevada

County: Storey

(Space Above This Line For Recorder’s Use Only)

MEMORANDUM

This Memotandum of License is entered into on this day of

, 2019, by and between

Storey County, a Nevada governmental entity, having its residing mailing address of P.O. Box 176, Virginia City,
NV 89440 (hereinafter called “Licensor™), and New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC, a Delaware limited liability
company, having a mailing address of 575 Morosgo Drive NE, Atlanta, GA 30324 (" Licensee”).

Licensor and Licensee entered into a certain Option and License Agreement as of :
2019 (“Agreement™), for the purpose of installing, operating and maintaining a communication facility
and other improvements. All of the foregoing is set forth in the Agreement.

The initial license term will be five (5) years commencing on the effective date of written notification
by Licensee to Licensor of Licensee’s exercise of its option, with four (4) successive automatic five (5)
year options o renew.

The portion of the land being licensed to Licensee and associated licenses are described in Exhibit 1
annexed hereto.

The Agreement gives Licensee a right of first refusal in the event Licensor receives a bona fide written
offer from a third party secking any sale. conveyance, assignment or transfer, whether in whole or in
part, of any property interest in or related to the Premises, including without limitation any offer
seeking an assignment or transfer of the License Fee payments associated with the Agreement or an
offer to purchase an easement with respect to the Premises.

This Memorandum of License is not intended to amend or modify. and shall not be deemed or
construed as amending or modifying, any of the terms, conditions or provisions of the Agreement. all
of which are hereby ratified and affirmed. In the event of a conflict between the provisions of this
Memorandum of License and the provisions of the Agreement, the provisions of the Agreement shall
control. The Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and their
respective heirs, successors, and assigns, subject to the provisions of the Agreement.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Memorandum of License as of the day and year
first above written.

LICENSOR:

Storey County,
a Nevada governmental entity

By:

Name:

Its:

Date: ,2019

LICENSEE:

New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC,
a Delaware limited liability company

By: AT&T Mobility Corporation
Its: Manager

By:

Name:

Its:

Date: L2019

[ACKNOWLEDGMENTS APPEAR ON NEXT PAGE]



LICENSOR ACKNOWLEDGMENT

A notary public or other officer completing this
certificate verifies only the identity of the individual
who signed the document to which this certificate is
attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or
validity of that document.

State of Nevada
County of )

On before me, .
(insert name and title of the officer)

personally appeared 5
who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the
within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized
capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of
which the person(s) acted. executed the instrument.

I centify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of Nevada that the foregoing paragraph is true
and correct.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

Signature (Seal)

LICENSEE ACKNOWLEDGMENT

A notary public or other officer completing this
certificate verifies only the identity of the individual
who signed the document to which this certificate is
attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or
validity of that document.

State of Califomia
County of )

On before me. .
(insert name and title of the officer)

personally appeared ,
who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the
within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized
capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of
which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument.

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph is
true and correct.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

Signature (Seal)




EXHIBIT 1
TO MEMORANDUM OF LICENSE

DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY AND PREMISES
Page 1 of |

to the Memorandum of License dated , 2019, by and between Storey County, a Nevada
governmental entity, as Licensor, and New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC, a Delaware limited lizbility company, as
Licensee.

The Property is legally described as follows:

PARCEL 1: THIS PARCEL IS A COMBINATION OF AN' 1B.423 ACRE PARCEL AS
SHOWN ON RECORD OF SURVEY LOT LINE ADJUSTMENT MAP DOC. NO. 67649,
AND LOT 39-B OF RECORD OF SURVEY DOC. NO. 45761.

IN THIS FIELD SURVEY, NO ORIGINAL CORNERS WERE FOUND FOR THE GOLD HILL
MAP AND NONE WERE BELJIEVED TO BE SET. 4

THE EAST LINE OF SAID 18.423 ACRE PARCEL WAs AI:UUSTED TO THE RIGHT OF
WAY PER THE NDOT RIGHT OF 'WAY MAP_DATED JANUARY 1946. THE WEST
BOUNDARY OF THIS 18.423 ACRE-PARCEL-DID NOT'FIT WELL WITH THE ADJOINING
HAYES PARCEL (002-031-03) TO TH£ WEST, AND THlS ‘PARCELS WEST LINE WAS
ADJUSTED TO THE EAST LINE.. OF HAYES™- PARCEL A'l' T'HE INSTRUCTION OF
STOREY COUNTY..-

SAID LOT 39-~BiS BEST FI usmic THE Recom OF SURVEY MAP DOC. NO.
45761, ADJUSTINGIT TO THE-NORTN. LINE OF SAID"MAP NG. 67648, THE EAST
LINE OF PARCEL MAP DOC. NO.. 97748, AND THE \LINE, OF PARCEL MAP
DOC. NO. 62366. ONE SURVEY MONUMENT WAS FOUND ‘IN THE MOST NORTHERLY
CORNER OF PARGEL 1, AND WAS HELD:FOR LINE AND DISTANCE AT THAT POINT.

The Premises are described and/or depicted as follows:

[One (1) Page Depiction of the Premises Suitable for Recording in Storey County Appears on Following Page]



EXHIBIT 24(k)

IRS FORM W-9
Page 1 of 2

[IRS FORM W-9 (REVISED OCTOBER 2018) APPEARS ON FOLLOWING PAGE]



Request for Taxpayer
{Rev. October 2018) identification Number and Certification

Dapartment of the Treasury . N . y
Inbesnal Ftveanus Service » Go to www.irs. gov/FormWP for insbuctions and the latest information.
1 Name (a8 shown on your Income tax return}. Name is required on this ng; do Not kv this line blank.

- W=9

Give Form to the

requester. Do not
sond to the iRS.

2 Business nema/disregarded antity nama, i different from above

3 Check appropriake box for federal tax ciassification of the person whoss name is entered on ne 1. Chack only one of the | 4 Exemplions jcodes spply only 10

foliowring seven boxss. cortain entities, nol individuals. see
nsiructions on page 3)
[ wowvicustscle propristor or O ccoporation [ Scoporabon [J Parmersnip O Trestrestate
single-member LLC Exempt payee code @ sny)

] umited sabiity company. Enter the tax classification {C=C corporation, §=5 corporation. P=Partnarship) »
Note: Check the epproprizie bax in the ine above Kr the tax cleasification of the singie-mamber ownar. Do not check | Exemption rom FATCA reporiing
LLC # the LLC ia clanaified as & single-mamber LLC that is disregared from the owner uriess the owner of tha LLC s
another LLC that ia not daregarded from the ownar for U.8, feders! tax purposes. Otherwisa, a singie-member LLC that

[[] Other (sse instructions) »

Is dsragarded from the owner should check the appropriate box for the tax classification of it owner.

Fopiem 0 0counls sl colpkds Fe LX)

& Address (number, strest, and apt. or sulta no.) See insiructions.

Print or type.
See Spedic Instructions on page 3.

Raquaster's name and address (optionsi)

8 City, state, and 2P code

7 List account number(s) here (opbonal)

Taxpayer ldentification Number (TIN}

Enter your TIN in the sppropriate box. The TIN provided muet match the name given on line 1 to avoid
backup withhoiding. For individuale, thia is generally your social secunity number (SSN). However, for a
resident alien, acka proprietor, or disregarded entity, see the inatructions for Part |, lster. For other - -
entitiea, it is your employer identification number (BIN). i you do not have a number, see How lo gef a

TIN, later.

Note: if the acoourt is in more than one name, see the instructions for line 1. Also see What Name and
Number To Give the Requeater for guidelines on whose number to enter.

Certification

Under panalties of perjury, | certdy that:

1. The number shown on this form is my comect taxpayer identification number {or | am waiting for a number o be issued o mej; and
2.1 am not subject fo backup withholding becausa: (a} | am axempt from bachup withholding, or (b) ! have not bean notified by the intarnal Revanue
Suvbeﬂ%]ﬂﬂtlmuﬂectlobadupMnslmhofafﬂmlomﬂdli'itm:rdividencb.or(c)msHSMnoﬁﬁodmﬂmlm

no longer subject to backup withholding; and
3.1am a U.S. citizen or cther U.S. parson (defined below}; and

4. The FATCA code(s) ontered on this form (i any} indicating that | am axempt from FATCA reporting is cortact.
Cerlification instructions. You must croas out ilem 2 abova if you have been natified by the IRS that you are currently subject to backup withholding because
you have fadled to report all interest and dividends on your tax retum. For real estste wansactions, mzmmmmmmm

acquisition or sbandonment of secured property, canceliation of debt, contributions to an individual retirement

{RA), and genarally, payments

mmm'ntuutanddﬁduds.ywnnotmqtiredloa'mﬂnou‘tﬁuﬁon.bmmm.lplwidammm.hmmﬁu-fupmll,m.

Sign Signahure of

Here U.S. person b

Dwia »

General Instructions
WMamMMImWMmmMM

Future developments. For the iateat information about davelopments
related to Form W-9 and its ins¥uctions, such & legialation enacted
after they were publishad, go to www.irz.gov/FormWs.

Purpose of Form

An individual or entity (Form W-8 requester) who is required 1o file an
information retumn with the RS must obtain your correct taxpayer
identification nurnber (TIN) which may be your social security number
taxpayer identification number (ATIN}, or amployer identification number
{EIN), to raport on an information retum the emount paid to you, or other
amount on an information retum. Exampies of nformation
retumna include, but are not kmited to, the following.

« Form 1096-INT (nterest eamed or pasd)

= Form 1099-DIV (dividends, including those from stooks or mutual
funds)

« Form 1099-MISC {varoua typss of income, prizes, awards, of gross
proceeds)

« Form 1099-B (stock or mutual fund sales and certain other
tranaactions by brokers)
* Form 1098-S (proceeds from real estate transactions}
« Form 1099-K {merchant card and third party network transections)
+ Form 1098 (home mortpage interest), 1096-E (student loan interesy),
1098-T Ruition}
« Form 1099-C (canceled debt)
+ Form 1099-A (scquisition or abandonment of secured proparty}

Use Form W-0 only if you are a U.S. person (incluciing a resident
slian), to provide your correct TIN.

# you do not retum Form W-§ to the requester with a TIN, you might
be subject to backup withhoiding. See What is backup withholding,
later,

Cat. No. 10231X

Form W-8 Rev. 10-2018;



£
N¥1d 3118 TWH3AD

HioN

I L18IHX3
10\

lZv 19101
SHIAVNN VS
SL0900AD
-A3GWNN
LS 181V

0E956 VO

WCS104 001
ENRINE=TAL o)
3241000

s09

40 e 15373 AM

€556
¥ NOWYY
NVS 'NOSSMP
‘NOWYY
ONIWYD 0092

med)

OF¥é8 ‘AN
ALID VINISAIA
IPE AYMHOIH
L&

NYWONVYH
TIH Q1090

206t

ML Ao

YR~ BORONS DILYONT MILIN dnv 00T 1LY fo INITRY e Tl
Bea o e mn
D0d M0 RLY () WINNDSSNYYL (3
N ot .,‘Q
TO@V
vo,m




ey S | | |
2 7 B or ; A{A%R E:ﬂ; Ea! o i.iii%‘?lih; §
TE E%g'stia 2 gi§ %éi-f?r;‘g!;gg; gii ik 1R ;’N
TE ‘; ”; i ) ! ! g
b aﬁ*ﬁsg; i byl igqgiiig o
g 5 E i = Eiﬁ g EB,,QE;EEE LA i
o E; B g Eg oty %i i ;
g "" g 5333’5‘333 3-;35355 iﬁg |
@E:gaiigmé Pty i m
: §§e§zgﬁ;55‘§§"‘g — H
L, THEHEHT —
- i 0 2 i gl
9, L g oo
5 . "é :',g : 3
) 2% o[ gé P : ~+
® zla 3
> 2 L L THE
;;;‘%%" IR
g S T iy EEM
g e g gﬁ
\g E
ual!ﬁ m
i i | AR o B
T fis :!:HiF}i EEEEE :ia “%;: ;' ! ]| ==
‘E § i I::‘I' ’I"! 1 ks o m
§ i ! l' iiii' i m g = -
' E :E“.'E:;’!E ;é £l 8 m > cC
. = !§, is i\ eI 3 = S
l E ~. g
' iIES; {E "‘E"‘izg iE% v m o
5 ) T3 P o m
- e 1
H 2 38 o
¥ 17IzIges | | B> sis2 2
' | | M 233 5 =
EE | (T 1 B
A g 3% r o
T 5' DL -t
2| g sl | g ' o
HE gl 13 T
T 8 Egéggga- g(m >
i § 2 T e >
hil: g €3y &
il |3 @
ik = §
i - Z
- m
| P =3
: S B HE
g : E J. HE B ‘li% i; % 3 é £ zT
il = ° s5higs L .!
— 3




iii§ iziﬂi e g o g g
i sgri' gsaami gra;!;
o i 2
|!|ugni ; ;g:; Eojb i ‘il ssiigﬁ 'i I;i=;i ri"l i’ l; L;
:-i|i.=ii|!'i.ii= 1 0 e i L e gy
!‘illl i'ii“ 2 g ,E. EIE'!“ :F;i lili: 1 g
i ARl s b |}l'ﬁ!§ i b e N e
i LT E A g e
- II;. é H i! oh H'Iul it..l.!_sig
: 'Eliil' i ha 'Il:i!: it 11 Hise o i il
d [iiiee A e
ho AR el B G
I. gi il 1} I! ‘I. ! E.,‘ 'ii:l AR E A
T I p b N
AT T L
L B AR
o | | o6® @@@ (? ? i % i e i L U L e L %
L 4 >
T TT[ K ® llli'ﬁi!l!li |il'glilll'l'iiii‘!lﬂl!]!'mli“:iI!"i'iiimlii“l'“
MIHHTHT I )
i‘ﬂliiiggii ti '| '
SR — ,
il | 3 2 Ml LD WL LT DS Ry L S LR Ly
8
&
y 4 i!lr"!i|'i!!!!iiilli'llirii'lilil!l“l'illIii“"E!illﬂ[!sl““
THIT
i; 1 E
l
BSSE!!
I'ii'i
Hl 2 | &= - i fgi: it P
R R G sloff| B ! &' Pl fEE
= || 2 || 347 EfR |5 10| i 1ez7




A‘w ISSUE STATUS J‘

Datt CHICRATON [

TIOTHY SCHAD, L.8,
10889 ROUND VALLEY RD

GRASS VALLEY. CA 95949
PHONE. (530) 2T1-7477
THAAITIALPOWT.COM

ADCRESAFD NERECH THE 18 NOT 4 BOUNDARY SLAVEY

SUR! <Omw nmm‘:m.nbam

AR o PaT OF Tl 7. POCE S5 b v (o0 mpn = WCT LB e SO0RE SSEC
SCHDT YO ACCEATS A B SROMSIR :Tr OV L Al :T5 FOR BOUMDAAY GR TXTLE [IT45

Pogbrapirvls
. [
CABEY 8 e ® X
B o 1KY
LEGEND GEQDETIC LOCATION
morpEY L
Do E OF g ErER ]
AT D 7 M A SO
d i (st A FemPr Cooelt V) STT MAOEA i AN LI
Bigs Y T T
_ — Aoy STEAXMISS 311 e 01
—m——m—— RN A [
— I —i — AWK N SEQDE TN CUDMOWAFS 4 7 "8 CIATERLAE OF ™4 SROPOSED "omg ¥
—_—n— il — e R Y
- LATTLOE W T A 0N, W e
e o - X TORB LR v et T mealal - e ae T ST
\Jllﬁi\\ - LR B v Ty 4 7 O 8
Ceormgreciiq sl e D SRR kv § 0 RO 80 A5
x o o as
”T ST Sy o Cul W ACCLART § T ACHACE O ol AR
» —ra
- T N COORTS TN 75 TR 0,
- ¢ SN OF X AL - WAL R e
[ ] Ay ML
GA N D474 Akt COLLTCTED Y FALD KN P 4R KT AR e A v A (AT B

~— /
-~
SiTE TOPOGRAFHY
1=

TITLE NOTES SURVEY NOTES
WO PRELABMAEY TITLE AEPORT S BEE b POOVTOED A ATTUOE S A L OGO | A AL B AL L HOd R e D

LS55 WOTED O " el
ANt EASEMFATY O OTHEE FALE AEAED SRS T LD B Sl REPORT

7 A BOUNDAAY NEECP S,

DATA PG I W07 A SOERGAT SO T

T DATE OF FELD MINEY ANE X, N4

0 AL A *.FLE RECON k8 BEHA PIOVTED ANT EASEMENTS OF O TR
T f A .!E...uini-.!aliilﬂ.ﬁl o nE
TLE MROCHET MaT R WAT o £ ADOR SH D SAVE O ACCEPTS 5
AESPCosale v 0, ..#3 FOR BOLACARY (W T £ 117 688 ADDRE SO W RECK

Thial 18 AT 4 BOUMDMARY SLITE Y

LEGAL DESCRIFTION

PANERT PACEL

ARCE, ! D«...lﬁr.l\nﬁ.! 1P OF Iy WCOADS OF §TOREY COUATY

A T

LEASE AREX

COMMENCING 4] ol Ma0ST EASTEAL T CORMEN Q_..l..lg DEBCRBED

3 WORTH i e AT FagT W LAY
© SOUTI S W A EAIT MO0 FELT

O THE THUA AOINT OF SECIANING AN § NCOMPASSING 1 29 0 SOUARE #11 P WORE

omuEss

G THEN Wt N SaeeTS O e 36 A DG 1 M TWEE ™ o PAE R T
OFSOMBED ¢ FAE AEA AMD e AU & BT GF st ¥ M) T T T et T
AN ABATAP UTT THS NECESSAM FOR DA CPERATYIN (3F M SACLITY MO BE

B TALLED AITHIN T PREVIOUS, | 0 SORUT | FASE A4

CVLOBOTS
"GOLD HILL™
911 HIGHWAY 341
VIRGINIA CITY, NV. 89440
STOREY COUNTY
APN.OO2-023-11

|

A
F

SE SUREY

L5/




T,

THIS IS NOT A STESURVEY |

GOLD HILL -
HANGMAN

1) HIGHWAY 241

VIRGIHA CITY, KV B¥440

respasEn ioe

& atat

2000 € e R BHHAL T
e borman Colerma f1id1

BPIE

WL IS5 CROGP LL T
Camerel 4g 4 W0 vien marid

amLirg ) Thied’s
£ o4 218 42
%_r oAb 14D
e Criake TE
!
APN. T T
W : £07-623-11 7 i s
—W
1]
AL
W -Dﬂ‘..‘a. wEL
o i o2
; ¥ =
/ .,..WJ (P) ATAT 28 FALN WATIR “CuER
03 (P) A1AT B 1T, /
LEASL Ma iy % FT
F \
2.8
e ton -
-~ o W
-~
s B
— /\QQQ
. 312 LEATHA WaY
m TATEAMEYD DA OMT°
m TR iy I C O
T
OVERALL SITE PLAN
100 ¢ o 100 200
_ _— ]
— IE e
OVERALL SITE PLAN >|A
D= SITE TYPE:WATER TOWER/SHELTER




NORTH

NO|

(£} 1ECO valLT. (P) atal TLLCO

(P) aTRl 200 aP WETER
LOCATON NOLWTED On (7)
H-FRAME

(P} Ml POWER POC

{E} TRanSFORMER

(£) BOULARD, T

j

(PIul SOMER PUN & 3224~

/

{P) UC PORER RN » 120027

% ¥ arg

Pp.kuw “iny

-
=
(=]

kol

APN 002-023-11

{1) LA CONPOUND

[E) e TOwER

{P) PAD GRADE AT 8287

Ak * EwC OSURE P
Qﬂg . "

[P) ATAT J52%Y LEASE AREA
1225 SQFt

{P) ATAT W' FALY WATEQ TOMER

KIE %%

(P) LTS OF CUT FOR SITE LEVILING

AN ]

(P] ATHT F [OUMAEN) SHLTER
B/ X0 KW AL DESEL CEWRATOR

p_,

(P} KMOX BOX AT GATE

(P} TURM AROUND LA AT (E)
RAWLID A GRadl WCT T [&FED
"

ENLARGED SITE PLAN
DorE

SITE TYPE:WATER TOWER/SHELTER

——e,

GOLD HILL -
HANGMAN
911 HIGHWAY 341

VIRGINA CY. HY 89440

SIERABL FCP

& atat

B
for Barer Colfwmag Y131

ATLTSRE G CVLOeC?S
O RCT D 1> 5lazt
b 1AD
S CTED BT CEX
=2
A am
- P o
=

Crowg boreas, PEBdoTd
STa0- X8
I EATA AT
SAZRAMEN'D CAGHT
agrrome Byalon com

ENLARGED SITE PLAN

Ty

A-1.1




KEYNOTES

() Henan
() nweo e
(3) 7 et s 22 e
(&) # oo smyx v
§) Pasgansigm
@) P
() 7 o e e
(3) 7me o m— —
L o
P s v
7
SR
-
7t e —
nra—

12

2y

Arerdr

EQUIPMENT ENCLOSURE PLAN - EXTERIOR WALK IN EQUIPMENT CABINET

LS

§-

SITE TYPE: WATER TOWER/SHELTER

Lk
GOLD HILL -
HANGMAN

211 HIGHWAY 141

WIRGHNA CITY. NY 89440

PREPARLL; FOP

& atat

o Fe SAE
or B T g 94381

®

L.

Crevars opw moain wets

artEea TN
ML R H
AW BT $AD
CPECIEDNT CE

N T

- i
n - .-

ADAPTIVE RE-USE
ENGINEENING
Craag powwer PEBS™Y
27407
32 EN A WA
SACFAMEN'T A T8
o g o e com

SHEST TTLE

EQUIPMENT AREA
PLAN

T A

A-2




AR e

T WL W T

W S MUN PELENS NS HETBE

-r
i
i
i

OC SURGE SUPPRESSION (SQUID)

EPICRION RLg 12
woce, LU XS IR

o, ey

o e e

et o B CLUOI TG AT
M) 47 MRS

Prrenin

Smaret

ERICSSON WCS RRUS 22 REMOTE RADIO UNIT

RF 1CHEDILE
2ECTn [ rmhew: woom W ) ] 3 s oo et | Al mh
NER aw | - [ mm " 0¥ - s WA 1
.‘. Al KATGEN BEO- MOOER (/M AR Al T [ a o nn Wk 1
W] AP KATHEDS ROO-VOBSER [B04/CHR [ »I.AKFI win 2 W a4 R Wk |
A [Tas Jatoutm soo—rosem A=A [ 1o T wm W 3
AR ool CAE =41 [ 206 | A WA w1
HO o wr |+ W [me wa wwr | aum et
." WY amiwny sse- e i AR AT 3 = R a1
[ [ & poanmo sooscems L P ] Wk awof | anm T 3
al® THNER 00— OB or |-+ e [0 = o WA L
HER T - = |+ ow— [mma W awd | anm W &
HET o | 290 [nem i & e X LX)
| [Ccs fravom mmo-iese hoo ey A=A wa swe | e/ Y
& DaTA BT 10000 GATD OBSTONE {u) P
mil
o8 v T

Ty

GOLD HILL -
HANGMAN

F11 HIGHWAY 341

WIRCIA CITY. NV 89440

PREDABLT ISP

° RF SCHEDULE
o 3

ERICSSON RRUS- REMOTE RADIO UMT
1

) oy e v a— T & {1

TR
o r
ot - .
B SR
J [P = I
ol
el = B Ry
oF varw ARSI,
COME BNl W
-
==
wx rosppe
DOUBLE SIDED RRH MOUNT
" -
L]
—t
7 -4
W oy
[
E 4 [
A
|
o

ANTENNA SPEC

ENLARGED ANTENNA PLAN
g

SITE TYPE: WATER TOWER/SHELTER

........................

CRECIED B CES

-

INZLEATHA WAY
SACRAMERID CA933Y
LI romer iy 310G (om

T TR

ANTENNA PLAN &
DETAILS

[EETs

A-3




1) OFDS MY ROIF (OO0 BT TR

(7 s PO ECR W

(1} PL W oF (M)
» O Fa R TRER
-I‘mpaldwl LA 3 (12) ATAT MO (4] PN (T
%W@F Jr— |\||I||‘| T e} a7 AT RAVEELKES
ALRT s
5|IF
oLt i Dt _ S — o
0 LY LT TR (NN WY ¥
= oI W ¥ havuu o _
(R - ) ™R oW AT
It
i
ke, I KT ;
oIMAL
W—eLBTa T e i _
£ - R s

M@=
NEW NORTH ELEVATION
e

1§ R ] L3 i3

A

1) oo it MY (BN I (S

() T Dl (4) O OB

717 s R ;<0 W (0 L
TOTAL oF [N}

LAVELAE R g

£1 7P T DOSR BT OMERS)

1) OVEY PR s

\3.&‘&!-!5!9!

o B i v e R 1/
{% TR ar Qag e
e Vel e
& 24700 RAKR I LIWOUBMR R
AR ST Cae T

A u MEW SOUTH ELEVATICN
e

SITE TYPE: WATER TOWER/SHELTER

T

GOLD HILL -
HANGMAN

S| HIGHWAY 24}

VIRGINA CITY, NV BR440]

PEERARED FCP

& ats

a0 Cararn B AWRKT
lar Samer CalRema Y41

BPIC

VAL FES GROUP LLC
Labracling « Wakiiat Watr

AT FE S TN T
O ACT O 1315431
DeLAn e
cmECrEDmY CE3
=
a ~
e
=

Croag rieorar PE Bl
218407184
37 EATRA WAY
SATIAMEN'D CASSAD
oo iy oo C o

et T

NEWY MONCRDLE -
WATER TANK -

4 SOUTH ELEVA

ImET e

A-4.1




M.
NEW EAST ELEVATION
T

- 0 TN MR SOCF (RER ¥ IWLEE]

) (1) e O ok W/ (1) )
WAL OF (M)

- 07 012) W DS (1] PO MO

) (4] STAT WAL STRLYIT

4 e e iy e

) e Mpelay. p

[F) ACCETS LADER W STy et

5

w

m u2m<<<<mw._. ELEVATION
-

1P LN MES O DERON FY OMUT

) (1) W PR WM N (1) )
oo [H)

9 (12) AT SIS (1] PR SECRN

B0 WY R R

P91 L @ I ey

) MR FONDERS. O

SITE TYPE: WATER TOWER/SHELTER

GOLD HILL -
HANGMAN

P11 HIGHWAY 1)

VIRGINA CITY. NV 85440

i Crpgmomes, TE Sae7a

[ LA

2144073184
A I2LEATHA WAY
TRIFRMENTT 4 308

WATER TANK -
RORTH & SOUTH ELEVATION

T maEr

A-4.2




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Review and possible approval of Auditors Recommendations pertaining to Storey
County Audit Report for the period ended June 30, 2018

2. Recommended motion
I hereby make a motion to approve the recommended actions pertaining to the Auditors
recommendations for the Audit Report Period ended June 30, 2018

3. Prepared by: Hugh Gallagher

Department: Comptroller Telephone: 847-1006

4. Staff summary: The Comptroller will address the Auditors report on current recommendations
and purposed solutions for the next fiscal year.

5. Supporting materials: Provided prior to the meeting

6. Fiscal impact: none
Funds Available: Fund: x Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
County Manager Other agency review:
9. Board action:
[] Approved [] Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [] Continued



STOREY COUNTY
OFFICE OF THE COMPTROLLER
POST OFFICE BOX 432
VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA 89440
STOREY COUNTY
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS February 10, 2019

Pursuant to NRS 354.6245, the following represents corrective action to the Storey County Audit
Report dated June 30, 2018. Under “Auditors Report on Current year’s Recommendations.” Our
outside auditor sited nine current recommendations.

Gentleman:

1. “We recommend monitoring expenditures to prevent exceeding budgeted amounts as
expenditures exceeded appropriations in seven Special Revenue Funds and two
Enterprise Funds,

a. The Virginia City Tourism Special Revenue Fund Exceeded revenue projections by
$9,390.44, however expenses exceeded appropriations by $72,408.21. A letter from
Tourism Director Deny Dotson is attached for your review. In addition, the Virginia
City Tourism Commission was notified that they must also monitor expenditures on a
quarterly basis.

b. Justice Court Revenue exceeded projections by $10,903.35, however expenses
exceeded appropriations by $4,103.81. The furniture and fixture line item was over
budget by $7,102.65 mainly due to increased staff.

c. Indigent Accident Special Revenue fund exceeded revenue projections by $7,336.92,
however anticipated quarterly payments to the State of Nevada increased $13,331.18
over appropriations.

d. Genetic Marking Special Revenue Fund exceeded revenue projections by $2,025.12,
however expense appropriations to Washoe County for DNA testing exceeded budget
amount by $3,295.00.

e. The Capital projects Special Revenue Fund shows expenditures of $2,928,118 and
appropriations of $1,550,200. The appropriations amount is incorrect as the
appropriations amount is $3,550,000 which makes this fund in compliance.

f. The Water System Enterprise Fund expenses exceeded appropriations by $73,176
mainly due to increases in Utilities, Operating Expenses and Fuel in the excess
amount of $18,776 and Capital Outlay increase of $28,738. It should be noted that
Salaries and Benefits showed an overage which is incorrect.

g. The Virginia Divide Sewer Special Revenue Fund has excess expenditures over
appropriations of $203,146. $52,773 overage was attributed to purchase of necessary
equipment and system upgrades, $72,187 was a result of additional interest expense



VirgniaCity

NEUADA

P

Virginia City Tourism Commission
1/28/19

Hugh Gallagher, County Comptroller
Storey County, Nevada

0 6L

Storey County Commissioners

Pat Whitten, County Manager
Virginia City Tourism Commission

RE: VCTC over-expenditure
Dear Mr. Gallagher,

I'm writing this note in regards to explaining the VCTC'’s overage of $72,408 in
total expenditures for fiscal year ending June 30t, 2018.
First of al], total revenues were up by $9400. The main reason we show a
negative in expenses is due to two accounting errors.
¢ Costs of goods (COGS 53061) shows a budget of $51,500 and an actual
expense of $93, 423. The budget number does not reflect our projected
inventory of Cemetery Gin of approx. $75,000 (260cases.) but the final
number does.
» We also had another budgeting error in regards to the website (53073).
This object code changed from the start of the fiscal year. We also did -
not budget properly the expenses incurred for the new website, which
was reimbursed thru a Travel Nevada grant ($20,000)
e Finally, special events (53060) in general were much better that we had
anticipated. While many of them were slightly over in expenses....the
revenue reflected the growth, thus balancing out the event.

Going forward, we will continue to budget and monitor closely with the guidance of
the County Commissioners, VCTC and your office. Please feel free to contact me with

any additional questions.

—Best-Regards, e,
= /’N———
DENY E%ON‘:Dtrector
Virginia City Tourism Commission
775-847-7500

66 SOUTH 'C' STREET~ PO Box 820, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA 89440
(775) 847~7500 ~ Fax (775) 847~7507

EMAIL: isiTORINKO@ISTOREYCOUNTY ORG



and $107,852 of additional depreciation as work in progress commitments were
completed and booked as fixed assets.

h. The Sheriff Department expenses were $18,310 over appropriations due to fuel costs,
garnishments, Body Cameras and special investigation costs.

i. Culture and Recreation recorded expenses which exceeded appropriations in the
amount of $3,427 mainly due to the purchase of playground equipment for Lockwood
in the amount of $10,000.

2. Report Finding 2018-A Cash and Investment Accounts

Investments were in the past recorded on the Cash Basis and for the annual report

adjusted to fair market value. In the future all internal and external statements will be

adjusted to fair market value in to comply with GASB 72,

3. Report Finding 2018-B Report Preparation

This county has always asked the outside auditor to give assistance with the audit report

because of staff constraints. The auditor has explained, “This circumstance is not

unusual in an organization of this size, due to time constraints of management and costs
associated with compliance of the standards.” Understanding this is the second audit
examination by Dipitero and Thornton CPA, we are prepared to provide the necessary
information required.

4. Report Finding 2018-C report Preparation

During the performance of our procedures, it was noted that the County had not reviewed

the collectability of the ambulance receivables, The Comptroller’s department will audit

the ambulance receivable on a monthly basis for the 474 Fire Department.

Sincerely,

Hugh J. Gallagher

Comptroller

Marshall McBride-Chairman

Jay Carmona

Lance Gilman-Commissioner



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

LIQUOR BOARD

Meeting date: ¢ ol & / /1 Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda [ ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: First reading for On-Sale, Off-Sale & Cabaret Union Brewery Virginia City, LLC.
Applicant Lisa Matheny. Place of Business: 63 S C St., Virginia City, NV 89440.

2. Recommended motion: [ motion to approve the first reading for On-Sale, Off-Sale &
Cabaret Union Brewery Virginia City, LLC. Applicant Lisa Matheny. Place of Business:

63 S C St., Virgima City, NV 89440.
3. Prepared by: Brandy Gavenda, Administrative Assistant \'//_
Department: SCSO Telephone: 775-847-0959

4. Staff summary: First reading for On-Sale, Off-Sale & Cabaret Union Brewery Virginia City,
LLC. Applicant Lisa Matheny. Place of Business: 63 S C St., Virginia City, NV 89440.

5. Supporting materials:

6. Fiscal impact: None

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

Distnict Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
_X__ Department Head Department Name: Gerald Antinoro

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

—
e i

Agenda Item No.

|



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 02/19/19 Estimate of time required: 15 min.

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

=~

8.

Title: Discussion/Possible Action: Consideration and possible acceptance of deed of
dedication from Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC a southern portion of existing
Amsterdam Court at the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, McCarran, Storey County, Nevada.

Recommended motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff, I [commissioner]
motion to approve acceptance of deed of dedication from Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC
a southern portion of existing Amsterdam Court at the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center,
McCarran, Storey County, Nevada, as described in Deed of Dedication and Exhibit “A” of

this report.

Prepared by: Austin Osborne
Department: Planning Telephone: 775.847.1144

Staff summary: The subject action will for ten dollars deed and dedicate from Tahoe-Reno
Industrial Center (TRIC) to Storey County approximately one acre of land currently facilitating a
portion of Amsterdam Court in accordance with the development agreement between Storey County
and the TRIC. Amsterdam Court is not built to county standards. As such, Storey County and TRIC
agree that the improvements on the parcel are not subject to infrastructurc cost reimbursement by the

county.
Supporting materials: Deed of Dedication and Exhibit “A” Parcel 2018-31.
Fiscal impact: None on local government.

Funds Availabie: Fund: ___ Comptroller

uired: District Attorney

9. eviewed by:
partment Head Department Name: Planning

10.

County Manager Other agency review:

Board action:
(] Approved

[ Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [

Continued

[F——

Agenda ltem No. | %



After Recording, Retumn To:

Storey County Clerk
26 South B Street
Virginia City, Nevada 89440

APN: Portion of 005-031-20
NRPTT-Exempt

Recorder Affirmation Statement: The undersigned hereby affirms that this document, including
any exhibit, hereby submitted for recording does not contain the social security number of any
person or persons (per NRS 293B.030).

DEED OF DEDICATION

This Deed of Dedication is made between TAHOE-RENQO INDUSTRIAL CENTER,
LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, referred to as “Grantor”; and the COUNTY OF
STOREY, political subdivision of the State of Nevada, referred to as “Grantee”.

In consideration for the sum of Ten Dollars ($10.00) paid by Grantee to Grantor and other
valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, Grantor hereby grants,
bargains, sells and conveys to Grantee, all Grantor’s right, title and interest in the real property
located in Storey County, Nevada, more particularly described on Exhibit “A”, attached hereto

and incorporated herein by this reference.

Reserving and excepting unto Grantor and Grantor’s successors and assigns in perpetuity
all water rights appurtenant to the Real Property, surface or underground, of whatever kind or
nature, including all permits, applications and certificates regarding said water rights, whether
such water rights exist at the time of this conveyance or are obtained in the future by Grantor.

TOGETHER WITH ALL and singular the improvements, tenements, hereditaments and
appurtenances thereunto belonging or in any manner appertaining, and the reversions, remainder
and remainders, rents, issucs and profits thereof, and excepting all casements and encumbrances

of record.
(signatures on next page)

S WainA TRUSsorey County/Deed of Dedicsion — porion of 003-031-15 doc



TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the said premises, together with the appurtenances, unto

Grantee and to its successors and assigns forever.

ACCEPTED AND AGREED:

COUNTY OF STOREY, a political
subdivision of the State of Nevada

GRANTOR:

TAHOE-RENOQO INDUSTRIAL CENTER,
LLC, a Nevada limited liability company

By and Through its Board of County By: Norman Properties, Inc., a California
Commissioners corporation, its Manager
By: @L &M%WW\.
Marshall McBride, Chairman "Don RogJ Norman President
Date: Date: //ﬁ/é ‘-/
STATE OF NEVADA )
COUNTY OF \Waenit
This instrument was acknowledged before me on N pweim bﬂ ¥ , 2018

by Don Roger Norman, President of NORMAN PROPERTIES, INC., a California corporation,
Manager of TAHOE-RENO INDUSTRIAL CENTER, LLC, a Nevada limited liabiljty company.

CHRISTIN WHITLOCK
A\  NOTARY PUBLIC
STATE OF NEVADA
Appt. No. 15-2317-2

My Appt. Expires July 7. 2019 |

8:\\Main\TRLI/Storey CountyDieed of Dedication — portion of 005-031-15 doc

Signature of Notary Officer



EXHIBIT “A”
PARCEL 2018-31

All that certain parcel situate within a portion of the East One-Half (E1/2) of Section Thirty-Three
(33), Township Twenty (20) North, Range Twenty-Two (22) East, Mount Diablo Meridian, Storey
County, Nevada, being Parcel 2018-31 as shown on Record of Survey Map, File No. 128805
recorded on December 6, 2018 in the Official Records of Storey County, Nevada.

Said Parcel 2018-31 containing 44,782 sq. ft.

Prepared by Robert M. Sader, Esq.
8600 Technology Way
Reno, NV 89521

§:\\hdain\ TRL/Storvy CountyDeod of Dodication- Exhibit A Parcel 2018-31



Al - [ SWTL ({6 g by
A BQLITE o

|5

R e
- o v S ‘ ornw i
] [~
E T Vs ekl L 0
5 kv ey~ ety a0
T e a‘—“ i wer?
ORI T L 0 LU i) 0

CAD80u ¥ M LWUK WCIEIL M 3 L s AW
AL EST R R T i

0T HELNSD TYRLLESNAN ONS-30HYL
[ -]

ASAHNE 4O QUOOM

[ T w0

.

M AR B LN D
IO WLy fele wod Th

£ 0L ien

S

M| apracess| o406 | s | | o3
e Lrira| e w] mw [wez) o
wivi ]| wmaein] e | mw %] 0n
AL W Afark| smii | e [ | 0.
Twin | miisun] Geu | i | X% | ®
Rrowe| asuwisli] wiure | 0On | mow]| ®
F- @l Tean] sewe oo | ] o
wril iparcws| ey (sewmif o] s
Deew | wueinem| Teat | ace | Mri] 6
SOME| a0 dn| ILaf. |eEoe ] evatt] v
sotw | asmmars| e [ o o
Ar| o Lpegmetd]| dsan | fvedy | s FE)
arow | amrten| wmm [ oo | mw{ o
i pmg) | ekt bary P ) O
Qo) Minn

T JEE
axsoem| ot | S
arv g
e | oeal e
IS
Il R
1 Erars | Boa "
aaviiim| ma}

anmw| we
[artman| mer |
sxman] sz 0
emdetiodion] G ey A
WITION | atil1 t ol
wrscimu| wes | o
Ty (—5._.-5
Bk U g

T

YO e 0.5
P T e e B TR

]
. v . \ SWOICTZZY NG
YL s - HTE vorl
t e CE Iy 1 .. i
ERF-5 S T N {
LOR RS Singmrany gy w \ -~ gt
T [ G ]

: 2 ia

ST ETEE : \

- ME-RI0Z THIVAL 1 : v
e ;
L L . A

Y T ) - P L

VRN g 3 i

SIdY e
— 0F #OT 1XINVS

¥T07 AYTHILSAY
L4 BN T8 PF

ER PROT PRGSO
i O B0 O eI

Il Coeieii ki SeriEs G a3 Guooie
ToeSa Ry TR0 GlrEva

LU TR S L C IR

ALOM s bt Bl e 3 VS SN AT R

FET

ol
inl




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 02/19/19 Estimate of time required: 15 min.

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action: Consideration and possible acceptance of Grant,
Bargain, and Sale Deed, that being a northern portion of existing Amsterdam Court from
Sierra Pacific Power Company, doing business as NV Energy, to Storey County. The subject
property is located at McCarran, Storey County, Nevada, and is described in Exhibit “A” to
Grant, Bargain, and Sale deed in this report.

2. Recommended motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff, I [commissioner]
motion to approve acceptance of Grant, Bargain, and Sale Deed a northern portion of existing
Amsterdam Court from Sierra Pacific Power Company, doing business as NV Energy to
Storey County, a parcel described in Exhibit “A” to Grant, Bargain, and Sale Deed of this

report.
3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne
4. Department: Planning Telephone: 775.847.1144

4. Staff summary: The subject action will for ten dollars deed and dedicate to Storey County
approximately one acre of land currently facilitating a portion of Amsterdam Court.

6. Supporting materials: Exhibit “A” to Grant, Bargain, and Sale Deed showing Parcel 2018-26 and
Parcel 2018-27; Exhibit “A™ map.

7. Fiseal impact: None on local government.
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
8. Legal review required: District Attorney
9. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Planning
County Manager Other agency review:
10.  Board action:
[] Approved [1 Approved with Modifications
[1] Denied L] Continued

Agenda ltem No, |4



WHEN RECORDED, RETURN TO:

Storey County Clerk
26 South B Street
Virginia City, NV 89400

APN: 004-093-34

Recorder Affirmation Statement: The undersigned hereby affirms that this document, including any exhibit,
hereby submitted for recording does not contain the social security mumber of any person or persons (per NRS
239B.030(2)).

GRANT BARGAIN AND SALE DEED

Sierra Pacific Power Company, a Nevada corporation doing business as NV
Energy, as "Grantor," does hereby Grant, Bargain, Sell and Convey to The County of Storey, a
political subdivision of the State of Nevada, as "Grantee,” the real property in Storey County, State
of Nevada (hereinafter referred to as the "Land") described on Exhibit "A" hereto and incorporated
herein by this reference, excepting therefrom water rights of all kinds, which are reserved to
Grantor.

SUBJECT TO:

1. General and special taxes and assessments for the current fiscal tax year and any
and all unpaid bonds and/or assessments.

2. All covenants, conditions, restrictions, reservations, rights, right-of-way and
easements recorded against the Land prior to or concurrently with this Deed, and all other matters
of record or apparent.

(Signatures on next page)



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Grantor has caused this instrument to be executed on the date
hereinafter written.

Dated as of _ {%_ _,2018.

GRANTOR: ACCEPTED AND AGREED:

Sierra Pacific Power Company, a Nevada COUNTY OF STOREY, a political
corporation, dba NV Energy subdivision of the State of Nevada

By and Through its Board of County
Commissioners

By: __ _ _

By: - - .-
Marshall McBride, Chairman

CEO

STATE OF NEVADA )
! 88,
COUNTY OF WASHOE )

This instrument was acknowledged before me on _ _ _/ A- 05 . _, 2018, by Paul
Caudill, CEQ of Sierra Pacific Power Company, a Nevada corporation d/b/a NV Energy.

N K frd”

Notary Public - Siate of Nevada i
i i o Notary Public
Mox 054011242 - Expives Apel 11, 2081

S/Main/[ RI/S101ev County/OBS (3) NVE - Starey Coumy {APN 004-002-1 | portion)



EXHIBIT "A"
TO GRANT, BARGAIN AND SALE DEED

DESCRIPTION OF THE LAND

All that certain parcel of 1and located within a portion of the East one-half (E1/2) of Section
Thirty-three (33), Township Twenty (20) North, Range Twenty-two (22) East, Mount Diablo
Meridian, Storey County, Nevada, being all of Parcel 2018-27 as shown on Parcel Map, File No.
128803 for Sierra Pacific Power Company, a Nevada corporation dba NV Energy, filed in the
office of the Storey County Recorder, on December 6, 2018.

S/ TRV S0rey CowtyTBS (3) NVE - Siorey Cousty (APN 004-093-11 portion)



“

MDA TV L S Hm Of g g

O MR U 4| R MOy T el R

Lo e L U ]

B w0 RACHE TP TN LKYY UUENTDY O ADERMD ¥

L w1
e

] it 0
TN Yt s wnrio

— ‘-A.Ii“ &
gb.a.ﬂqﬂnl

ol L
BLCTRL I o TR, 0

wie ™

S LarseT
mna Adtirs] st | seege | aifn lI‘W\

[ ] awiman] o] e [ x| o

ol BACTHIEH ]| CPeS | W WG| T (=]
- AL | e T | MG | R INIJ
Tt ascmwn] osca [aimm iveni! 1 ]

L.H‘ \I-hhm n‘—l‘\l- [ Fid) . Ll

| | waimen | ke ]

T awe| macoaus|.srocn | won| max [ o

Radinl] ’!ﬂ’i AROOCY | .8 A6 L0 It
AT g | e e ..sl. wapey | whan ) § sy

) aity)

Lo | M e m

Lmsen | Wik -

TS | atoai | W

snuem| an| D

ARSI | e (3l

vl’“.';l'! B 21 n

.Ph,r:l. e <

I.?.E.'. = 3]

ry\_!l wim] o

fostnam[aw | 0

EIT e S

e

QD) AT EImg

B i I<2a..=5..tic.!:.d. i

Siwrn

Narn e e

!
! . JAwOLY] L
| PO o ey S0V A
WG A% e N
i ST 7
i e e e i
! 3wz e --
= Herii w IJI!J‘{ o
ol - SFoMLE LA . W _—
e 0-G00 ma 5 I.ﬂ
] _.h L .D:u 4
., A S\ i
w;w.. S 0w ¥ e !
LG 21 e
<l 3 TS OF ANWvarw I -
-] 5 2 NSt SO
oz TRt om 200 R ]
1n ) Lt s £ roE S N
o mw) [ Caallaliiltt 1S v 1 L ORI a0 __
-.IAJII i 2 % WAR Lo !
Tt K = 4 Tdvnes R pr
b o wowe [ 8 ._, Ny
. R A ' w T TON.
{ Ce g 4B
- R .-_44_ E
. & T TH,
= Simw a0 i W
| R R B QY. R R e
| VNG Trd o4 TR
_ A STUSF 6T 24
| ' Y $Z-gior taduvd -
; . :
¥ [l / N
ALl ' Pa ") T e g %
el e AL 1 ur wroupiome e 2 e .
¥ AT K W DM -t e TUS T ]
2 o8h Vpievd Loaa Teb OO e e 3
| il e oM D e - :
o 5
_ ) $ )
e A i gk i oy
A ! o N el
By LN Ay NP
B ey } e AT AL G
LR vy PR T it g
Ly X
wr e
= —_— I 1
7€ )Ly i
3 savm
S i T el 4 .e..u..u_._
L ER Al v
AT Al SANIY It

-SE-810T 11NVd

KANIY L9987
Ra-Bioz TRV

EMECRCR L R R T TR T T
Iweiin e CHvD owrNDes Do

FAIRTR CORT M b WYL Gl PUNOD GNOON [0
OGO K01 TRMY ()

LUTREL R LRl T S S -

TR PO TSR G M D e el W Sy L

T T B B

QInZFR



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 02/19/19 Estimate of time required: |5 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

Title: Discussion/Possible Action: Consideration and possible acceptance of Grant of
Easement from Storey County (grantor) to Sierra Pacific Power Company, doing business as
NV Energy (grantee), a perpetual right and casement to construct, operate, add to, modify,
maintain, and remove aboveground and/or belowground communications facilities and
electric line systems upon, over, under, and though property described in Exhibit A and
Exhibit B of this report at McCarran, Storey County, Nevada.

Recommended motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff, I [commissioner]
motion to approve acceptance of Grant of Easement from Storey County (grantor) to Sierra
Pacific Power Company, doing business as NV Energy (grantee), a perpetual right and
easement to construct, operate, add to, modify, maintain, and remove aboveground and/or
belowground communications facilities and electric line systems upon, over, under, and
though property described in Exhibit A of this report.

Prepared by: Austin Osborne

Department: Planning Telephone: 775.847.1144

Staff summary: The subject action will for one dollar grant an easement for the purposes described
above on Amsterdam Court.

Supporting materials: Grant of Easement; Exhibit A parcel description; Exhibit A supporting map.

Fiscal impact: None on local government.
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

review required: District Attorney

9. Revi :
ﬁ Epurtment Head Department Name: Planning

10.

County Manager Other agency review:
Board action:
[ Approved (] Approved with Modifications
1 Denied [1 Continued

Agenda ltemNo, |5



APN(s): 004-093-34

The undersigned hereby affirms that this
document, including any exhibits hereby
submitted for recording does not contain
the personal information of any person or
persons (Per NRS 239B.030)

RECORDING REQUESTED BY;
WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO:
Land Resources

NV Energy

P.O. Box 10100 MS S4B20

Reno, NV 89520

GRANT OF EASEMENT

Storey County, a political subdivision of the State of Nevada, (“Grantor™), for One Dollar ($1.00) and
other good and valuable consideration — receipt of which is hereby acknowledged — and on behalf of itself and
its successors and assigns, grants and conveys to Sierra Pacific Power Company, a Nevada corporation, d/b/a
NV Energy (“Grantee™) and its successors and assigns a perpetual nght and casement:

i. to construct, operate, add to, modify, maintain and remove aboveground and/or underground
communication facilities and electric line systems for the distribution and transmission of
clectricity, consisting of poles, other structures, wires, cables, conduit, duct banks, manholes,
vaults, transformers, service boxes/meter panels, cabinets, bollards, anchors, guys, and other
cquipment, fixturcs, apparatus, and improvements (“Utllity Facilities”} upon, over, under
and through the property legally described in Exhibit A attached hereto and by this reference
made a part of this Grant of Easement (“Easement Area”);

2. for ingress and egress to, from, over and across the Easement Area for the allowed purposes
defined in numbered paragraph 1 above and for all other activities permitted by this
agreement,

3. to remove, clear, cut or trim any obstruction or material (including trees, other vegetation

and structures) from the surface or subsurface of the Easement Area as Grantee may deem
necessary or advisable for the safe and proper use and maintenance of the Utility Facilities
in the Easement Area.

Grantee will be responsible for any damages, proximately caused by Grantee negligently constructing,
operating, adding to, maintaining, or removing the Utility Facilitics, to any tangible, personal property or
improvements owned by Grantor and located on the Easement Area on the date Grantor signs the Grant of
Easement. However, this paragraph does not apply to, and Grantee is not responsible for, any damages caused
when Grantee exercises its rights under numbered paragraph 3 above.

Grantor covenants for the benefit of Grantee, its successors and assigns, that no building, structure or
other real property improvements will be constructed or placed on or within the Easement Area without the
prior written consent of Grantee, such structures and improvements to include, but not be limited to, drainage,



trees, bridges, signage, roads, fencing, storage facilities, parking canopies, and other covered facilities. Grantee
and Grantor must document Grantee's consent by both signing Grantee’s standard, recordable use agreement.
Gruntor retains, for its benefit, the right to maintain, use and otherwise landscape the Easement Area for its
own purposes; provided, however, that all such purposes and uses do not interfere with Grantee’s rights herein
and arc in all respects consistent with the Grantee’s rights herein, Grantoe’s clectrical practices, and the
National Electrical Safety Code.

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Grantor and Grantee waive any right each may have to a trial
by jury in respect of litigation directly or indirectly arising out of, under or in connection with this Grant of
Easement. Grantor and Grantee further waive any right to consolidate any action in which a jury trial has been
waived with any other action in which a jury trial cannot be or has not been waived.

[signature page follows]



GRANTOR:

The County of Storey, a political
subdivision of the State of Nevada

by and through its Board of County Commissioners

By:

Marshall McBride, Chairman

STATE OF NEVADA )
) ss.
COUNTY OF )

This instrument was acknowiedged before me on . 2018 by
as of Storey County.

Signature of Notarial Officer

Notary Seal Area >




Exhibit A

All that certain parcel of land located within a portion of the East one-half (E1/2) of
Section Thirty-three (33), Township Twenty (20) North, Range Twenty-two (22) East,
Mount Diablo Meridian, Storey County, Nevada, being all of Parcel 2018-27 as shown on
Parcel Map, File No. 128803, for Sierra Pacific Power Company, a Nevada corporation dba
NV Energy, filed in the office of the Storey County Recorder, on December 6, 2018.



Pk S By Inapny

g 7.“‘

1ha e
W) W

[ L MWD WU O W i
L R =

FrreivL W AT % RF VO WD m

VT ORI A TS Ow T S (4

WD Y B TR

NG M A3 T e VLR ©

FIZW CNBIL TR MERLG LTI WEDL S A0 O e W s @

v Nor' T e e

_ ‘-ndiﬂ.“ K
AJPATITED, © 1o TRY 4w

V) IOl B e o
JENO8 M LY eI w0 TEL

mmﬂ ur

gy euC eamy

SOSLT > o '
i . | i
SIS ¢TI
FlL Lcouesf D | oy FiL ) L1+]
ra| amuan] mec [mwm| ol e Vi e we
[ mem] amsunixxciemicw] © e 4 K0 1
il ammmal oot [wm| wer i p———— o ——
> — .-
Awi] B LU oo Bpelelanct Kot b i l -
Wi | aceamwnforrcac|aomifoina] ¢ w! B i
] amwan] sesl o] we 0 = o ——
e lmscic| i Ak | 2 ¥y v
4 = 3 : !
mur| sstsaun| rracc| e x| o .2 |
woo [ aemnws| avecr]wmnfosimd] o w_ x . O - 3 !
g Thiat 1% AFWvatvie 1n -
ahany g | misaag pno vaa| vesy| whan|d e SR ST v A SR gon SO
g - % L] E SEATH O 300 2]
Q0| Sasny ot % L LAARY LI v iCd 500 Mww
L. ) | oa ST SR RN, e iy e _
e | i kAU :
A FED IR el i o ;L C T ey T
anmas | woc] we U wn e | g 4 o
Teacmm | aoat] W { \\¥|1 . R
snpm|on| n m g
AMAEIVE | 2aw. | o o s -~ v A 30C
ety i P A —
anam | wear|[ n i s WGy TrE oY
A TR L v | %, NTWIY G20
[erssom]| | 0 i \ \ T ST-0I0Z TiIHVd a
S =% " %
Ao | wn| 0 ' 4 _ ! LA i P
[ermsm]sew. | 'n \ A : Boe 08
= sl " X 08 IR NP vy VRO * o M ey
Py Syl JTY ML | o wrommtar o, NP Tohu o e
st o il o e vl 1Beve Tubvey 3
D-ee U ' P b4
sl Vopcoeall el L _ * N 980 et
‘ —_— — o
l 25

SEMTEND ~ Ry Ll ]
Feaey e ayd ey ERMAL TR T SALr admey. "M e e 4
L 3 G CRADARG) S GRG0 Ol Eiafit— . . T \\_ PR v on ws e
ETYS1 WM | & a0 | #7400 | STOM B4 L i remd ow 30
T G Bin Smmli P YERGE T SrOTEY = cr T
b e 4 Y AO-n b P e g T T3 M
AR ! bW WIS WyERDG A bl
R e e T L

- - = s
- {00 m b .a’._jqr('q".
L - o T i | i o
TR JLIVED s NAHIY L9982 L2-R10Z TAYE
o ond | 92-9/0F TIIHVA Goih Pl
P %
| Ll
_ T
B
‘L2-810¢
N [921ed 9318 1algng

QinzFr



-

Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: February 19, 2019 Estimate of time required: 15 min.

Agenda: Consent [] Regular agenda {x] Public hearing required [x]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action: Special Use Permit (2019-001) request to operate a home
enterprise. The home enterprise will consist of beekeeping (with a maximum of 20 hives), a
greenhouse to grow produce and an aqua farm structure for raising fish. No retail sales of product
will occur at the site. The property is approximately 2.70 acres in size and is located at 144
Elizabeth Lane, Mark Twain, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 003-314-
23

2. Recommended motion: In accordance with the recommendation by the Planning Commission and
stafY, the findings of fact under Section 3.A of this report, and other findings deemed appropriate by
the Board of County Commissioners, and in compliance with the conditions of approval, I (county
commissioner), move to approve Special Use Permit 2019-001 to allow for operation of a home
enterprise. The home enterprise will consist of beckeeping (with a maximum of 10 hives), a
greenhouse ta-grow produce and an aqua farm structure for raising fish. No retail sales of product
will occur at the site. The property is approximately 2.70 acres in size and is located at 144

Elizabeth 1ane, Mark Twain, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 003-314-

23.
3. Prepared by: Kathy Canfield
4. Department: Planning Telephone: 775.847.1144
5. Staff summary: See enclosed Staff Report No. 2019-001
6. Supporting materials: Enclosed Staff Report No. 2019-001
7. Fiscal impact: None on local government.

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

8 al review required: District Attomey

._mpanment Head Department Name: Planning
County Manager Other agency review:
10. Board action:
[] Approved i] Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [1 Continued

Agenda Item No. {{p




26 South B Street, PO Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada 89440

Storey County

Planning Department
Storey County Courthouse

Phone 775-847-1144 — Fax 775-847-0949
planning@storeycounty.org

To:
From:

Meeting Date:

Meeting Location:

Staff Contact:
File:
Applicant:

Property Owner:

Property Location:

Request:

Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Storey County Planning Department

February 19, 2019 at 10:00 a.m.

26 S. B Street, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada
Kathy Canfield

2019-001

Stacy and Aaron Grimes

Stacy and Aaron Grimes

144 Elizabeth Lane, Mark Twain Estates, Storey County, Nevada, APN 003-314-
23

The applicants request a Special Use Permit (2019-001) to operate a home
enterprise. The home enterprise will consist of beekeeping {with a maximum of
20 hives), a greenhouse to grow produce and an aqua farm structure for raising
fish. No retail sales of product will occur at the site. The property is
approximately 2.70 acres in size and is located at 144 Elizabeth Lane, Mark
Twain, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN} 003-314-23.

Summary of Planning Commission Meeting: The Planning Commission heard this request at their

February 7, 2019 meeting. The applicants explained their request and provided
information regarding beekeeping and their proposal. There were several
neighborhood residents that participated in the discussion that had concerns
regarding the impacts the bees may have on their neighborhood. Discussion
included level of aggression of different bee species, prohibition of Africanized
bees for safety reasons, size of hives and boxes, use of bees onsite and
elsewhere, possible hive creation in crawl=space of area mobile homes, number
of hives appropriate for a residential area with relatively small parcels, requiring
the SUP permit holder to reside at the property, what other jurisdictions do
including Carson City, Washoe County and City of Henderson, annual review of
the use to ensure minimal or no adverse impacts to surrounding neighborhood,
traffic and noise associated with the home enterprise business, sufficient well



water for the aqua farm, whether the State Engineer may allow commercial
aqua farm use of domestic well water, and whether to hear the proposal again
in the Mark Twain community. The Planning Commission voted 5 in favor, 2
against, recommending approval of the proposed Special Use Permit, with three
additional recommended conditions of approval added, including a condition
that an annual compliance review of the operation be conducted.

Background & Analysis
A, Site Location and Characteristics: The property is located at 144 Elizabeth Lane in the

Mark Twain Estates area of Storey County. The property is 2.70 acres in size and
contains an existing single family residence. The property is relatively flat with a
drainage channel through the middle of the site. The property consists of Lots 145 and
146 of Mark Twain Estates Unit #7. Surrounding uses include 1.3 acre parcels with

residential Jand uses.

Vicinity Map






Los,) & Forfon o SET bec ) 1IN MZE, MUE BM S3-3

[ ww - ] w - a
= CRCECRE
R 4 ] - | W
F o v
l -?u -5.. 2. . i s
L %s = =.
L LAPOY
@ THS - |
Y dklo o lo e
M s 18e
& ; B B T s En
R 3 e @ |@
@ :“ i3 g : L] L] -
LI ymay ™ = e | 1em
& ‘s .
s [ UL
T oald) -&,
. 1% P1e e
-~ T : H ko ar L]
—e—
! =
=® g e ‘a
(O] " i -t - ] w3
] hali™ " 1
atliil % T IREER P B
IR - A |
l T___ ‘_m,nu.lf - s s s s E
: | r ) M .
== 1 ::I"‘l -‘r.n.‘.::n.l..l:' b ssmronmt sos dmp et Mark Twon Estafcs Ul'l!'?
P e T i au i e STOREY  COUNTY
s s prgmie b Te kel dnty peared by e Beet
Assessor’s Porcel Map
B. Proposed Use: The Applicant is proposing to establish a home enterprise which

includes beekeeping, the growing of produce within a greenhouse, and an aqua farm.
No selling of product to the public will occur at the site.

In reviewing the proposed application, staff has two areas of interest, one being
allowing for a home enterprise to be located outside of the main residence and the
second being the beekeeping activity and the impact to surrounding property owners.

The proposed use by its nature is an outdoor use. The General Provisions chapter of the
Zoning Ordinance identifies regulations associated with home enterprises (see Section
1.D for the exact wording of this code section). Section 17.12.023.D.9 identifies uses by
their nature as being outdoor as permissible. Although this seems to be in conflict with
Section 17.12.023.D.1, these items are located in the same section and are on equal
basis. Since Section 17.12.023.D.9 is descriptive of what is permissible and what is being
proposed, staff agrees this home enterprise outdoor use is allowed for the parcel,
subject to all the other applicable conditions being met.

The second concern of the project has to do with the impacts of beekeeping to the
surrounding neighborhood. The applicant has requested approval for up to 20 hives to
be located on the property. The Storey County Code does not have any regulations in
regards to beekeeping for the Estates zoning or in the General Provisions of the Zoning
Code. The Nevada Revised Statutes {NRS) Chapter 552 addresses Bees and Apiaries
(apiaries are defined as a hive or any place bees are kept and all appliances used in

4



connection with the bees). This NRS chapter does not have regulations regarding the
number of hives or development of the apiary on a property, but addresses bee
diseases and state oversight of transportation and diseases {see Appendix A of this staff
report).

Beekeeping. In reviewing the applicant’s proposal, research found that Carson City and
the City of Henderson, Nevada, have ordinances addressing beekeeping. Carson City
has a regulation of a maximum of 10 hives for parcels of land between 1 and 5 acres.
The City of Henderson has a requirement that property between 2 and 5 acres be
limited to a maximum of 6 hives. Both of these ordinances are provided in Appendix B
and Appendix C of this staff report for reference.

Staff spoke with the State of Nevada, Department of Agriculture entomologist regarding
bees and beekeeping. Although he is not aware of this particular request, he did
provide general information regarding bees and beekeeping. When asked about studies
or rules regarding how many hives should be located on a property, he stated there are
too many variables to have a fixed rule for every location. Each hive can contain
between 20,000 and 40,000 bees. They tend to forage in a 2-mile radius from the hive
and a lot of the success for hives depends on the surrounding vegetation. The bees also
need a constant water source and providing that near the hives will help keep the bees
from looking for water on surrounding properties.

Zoning Code. The property is zoned Estates which allows for “Agriculturai and
horticultural uses for domestic purposes and incidental to the permitted uses” on the
parcel. The parcel contains an existing single family dwelling and the proposed uses are
accessory to the primary residential use of the property.



Chapter 17.12.023 {General Provisions for all zones} states the following in regarding to
home enterprises:

17.12,023 Home Enterprises

A. This section applies to any home enterprise.

B. In zones where a home enterprise is allowed, the home enterprise must comply with
the provisions of Title 5 Business Licenses, and a special use permit may be required
pursuant to subsection (C) below.

C. A special use permit approved by the board with action by the planning commission
is required if the home enterprise may:

1.

Involve entry into the residential building or accessory building by customers.
patrons, or other such persons not permanently residing on the property,

Invalve seven or more motor vehicle visits per week, or two or more on any given
day, to the subject property;

Involve the storage or use of flammable or hazardous substances, storage of
products heing sold that would increase fire loading to a level over the above
standard for residential properties, or involve activities that may be potentially
harmful or hazardous (e.g., welding, automotive painting, etc.) to surrounding
residences and uses,

Involve outdoor storage; or

Produce noise, odor, dust, smoke, light, vehicular traffic, or other disturbances
that would adversely affect the health, safety, or general welfare of surrounding
residences, or the residential character of the surrounding area, withowt proper
mitigation.

D. The following minimum standards apply to any home enterprise, regardless if a
special use permil is or is not required:

1.

The home enterprise must be operated entirely within the interior portions of the
principal residential building or accessory building on the lot by a person or
persons residing in the principal dwelling unit;

The home enterprise use must be clearly a subservient uses to the dwelling for
residential purposes. The home enterprise must not change the residential
character of the dwelling unit or the residential property,

No more than one vehicle with commercial advertising displayed may be parked
on the premises except within an entirely enclosed building. Such vehicle stored
outside of the enclosed building must not exceed 10,000 pounds gross vehicle
weight rating (GVWR).

. There may be no manufacturing, processing, or similar activities on the premises

which generate noise, odor, dust, vibration, fumes, smoke, electrical interference,
vehicle traffic exceeding the number stated in this section, storage of items which
increase fire load, or other adverse impacts to adjacent properties.

. The home enterprise may not be operated by a resident-tenant without the written

consent of the owner of the real property.



6. No employees of the business may report for duty at or near the residence.

7. The home enterprise must comply with the provisions of Title 5 Business Licenses
of the county code.

8. One non-lighted advertising sign of four square-feet may be allowed on the
property. The sign must comply with chapter 17.84 Signs and Billboards.

9. Home pet and plant sales. In any CR, R, E, or SPR zone, a person may keep or
cultivate pets or raise fowl, bushes, trees, berries, or crops, or sell pets, fowl,
eggs, or crops from the premises, providing that no stores or stands are
constructed for the purpose, the operation is not conducted as a regular
commercial enterprise, and the activity is not in violation of this chapter or any
other ordinance.

As a part of the Special use Permit conditions of approval, the above regulations shall be
incorporated into any approval of the proposed project at this site.

D. Special Use Permit. A Special Use Permit is required because of the home enterprise
and the potential impact to adjacent properties. Section 17.03.150 of the Storey County
Code identifies the process for Special Use Permits. The applicant and this report follow
the requirements outlined in the Code.

E. Staff recommendation: The applicant has requested up to 20 bee hives be allowed on
the property. The Storey County Code and the Nevada Revised Statutes do not have any
regulations as to the amount of hives acceptable on a property based on property size.
The limiting amount will be based on the making the finding of “no substantial negative
impact to adjacent land uses.” Based on an estimate of 20,000 to 40,000 bees per hive,
a maximum of 20 hives would potentially provide 400,000 to 800,000 bees, the majority
located within a 2-mile radius bees typically use for foraging according to personnel of
the Nevada Department of Agriculture.

Based on research of other communities within Nevada that have beekeeping
ordinances, and the limiting amounts these communities have adopted, staff
recommends a maximum of 10 hives be permitted at this time. Storey County has no
other similar projects within the County for reference and staff believes the 10 hives are
consistent with other jurisdictions for the size of the parcel.

Staff has also proposed that if after a two year period of operation, if no valid nuisance
complaints associated with the beekeeping have occurred, the applicant may request
this Special Use Permit be revisited to allow for additional hives to be added to the site.
This would be done as an amendment to the Special Use Permit and follow the planning
process including notification to adjacent property owners.

Use Compatibility and Compliance
A. Compatibility with surrounding uses and zones. The following table documents land

uses, zoning classification and master plan designations for the land at and surrounding
the proposed project. There are no evident conflicts between the proposed project and




Storey County Title 17 Zoning or the 2016 Master Plan. The proposed use is also
consistent with the surrounding zoning and master plan designations.

Land Use Master Plan Designation Zoning
Applicant’s Land residential Estate — Rural Residential E - Estates
Land to the North reskiential Estate — Rural Residential E - Estates
Land to the East residential Estate — Rural Residential E - Estates
Land to the South residential Estate — Rural Residential E - Estates
Land to the West residential Estate — Rural Residential E - Estates

General use allowances and restrictions. Storey County Code 17.03.150, Special Use
Permit, identifies the administration for the Board and Planning Commission for
allowing a special use permit. The approval, approval with conditions, or denial of the
Special Use Permit must be based on findings of fact that the proposed use is
appropriate or inappropriate in the location. The findings listed below are the minimum
to be cited in an approval, with rationale for the findings included below each finding.

(1) Complies with the general purpose, goals, objectives, and standards of the
county master plan, this title, and any other plan, program, map, or ordinance
adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the county.

The proposed use will be a home enterprise agricultural and horticultural
outdoor activity which is permitted with a Special Use Permit for the Estates
zoning district. The proposed use maintains the rural characteristics of the
surrounding area.

(2) The proposal location, size, height, operations, and other significant features
will be compatible with and will not cause substantial negative impact on
adjacent land uses, or will perform a function or provide a service that is
essential to the surrounding land uses, community, and neighborhood.

The proposed home enterprise will utilize an outdoor area within the parcel for
beekeeping, greenhouse(s) for growing produce and an aqua farm. No retail
sales will occur at the property.

The applicant has requested up to 20 bee hives be allowed on the property
which are estimated to house 400,000 to 800,000 bees. Staff recommends a
maore cautious approach to the amount of hives/bees and suggests a maximum
of 10 hives be permitted (half the proposed amount the applicant has
requested), with the option of revisiting the amount of hives after a two year
implementation period.

(3) Will result in no substantial or undue adverse effect on adjacent property, the
character of the neighborhood, traffic conditions, parking, public
improvements, public sites or right-of-way, or other matters affecting the
public health, safety, and general welfare, either as they now exist or as they
may in the future be developed as a result of the implementation of the
provisions and policies of the county master plan, this title, and any other

8



plans, program, map or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to
an official notice, by the county, or other governmental agency having
jurisdiction to guide growth and development.

The proposed home enterprise will not generate additional traffic to the
neighborhood as no retail sales will occur at the site.

Staff recommends a maximum of 10 hives be permitted at the site at this time.
Bees, by their nature, go wherever they desire. The applicant can provide plants
and a water source onsite which can add to the habitat the bees desire, keeping
them on the property to an extent by offering their needs, but it is not
anticipated that the bees would stay on the property.

Staff is recommending the maximum 10 hives exist for a 2 year period prior to
considering an additional amount of hives be added to the site. If after that
time frame there haven’t been any issues identified by the neighbors, the
applicant could request additional hives.

If, however, Storey County receives complaints regarding problems with the
bees, staff reserve the right to review the Special Use Permit. This may include
reducing the number of hives, removal of hives, or following the Abatement of
Nuisances process identified in Section 17.03.045 in the Storey County Zoning
Ordinance.

(4) The proposed use in the proposed area will be adequately served by and will
impose no undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities, or
services provided by the county or other governmental agency having
jurisdiction in the county.

The proposed use is not expected to require any additional governmental
services or impact existing facilities.

C. Conformance with the 2016 Storey County Master Plan. The property is located within

the Mark Twain area of Storey County. The area is comprised of parcels from one acre
to 40 acres in size. The Master Plan states “Protecting the area rural lifestyle, safety,
and water resources and mitigating known alluvial flooding conditions in the adjacent
Mark Twain Estates should be considered of foremost importance when considering
new development in this area.” The Storey County Master Plan identifies the goal of
making land use decisions that maintain the existing character of the community. The
proposed home enterprise that includes agricultural and horticultural uses along with
the primary residence on the property maintain the rural characteristics of the Mark
Twain Area.

3. Findings of Fact

A. Motion for approval {Planning Commission and staff recommendation). The following

findings of fact are evident with regard to the requested special use permit when the



recommended conditions of approval in Section 4, Recommended Conditions of
Approval, are applied.

(1) This approval is for Special Use Permit 2019-001 to operate a home enterprise.
The home enterprise will consist of beekeeping (with a maximum of 10 hives), a
greenhouse to grow produce and an Aqua farm structure for raising fish. No
retail sales of product will occur at the site. The property is approximately 2.70
acres in size and is located at 144 Elizabeth Lane, Mark Twain, Storey County,
Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 003-314-23.

{2) The proposed project complies with the general purpose, goals, objectives, and
standards of the county master plan, this title, and any other plan, program,
map, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice
by the county.

{3) The proposal location, size, height, operations, and other significant features
will be compatible with and will not cause substantial negative impact on
adjacent land uses, or will perform a function or provide a service that is
essential to the surrounding land uses, community, and neighborhood.

{4) The proposed project will result in no substantial or undue adverse effect on
adjacent property, the character of the neighborhood, traffic conditions,
parking, public improvements, public sites or right-of-way, or other matters
affecting the public health, safety, and general welfare, either as they now exist
or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the implementation of
the provisions and policies of the county master plan, this title, and any other
plans, program, map or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to
an official notice, by the county, or other governmental agency having
jurisdiction to guide growth and development.

(5) The proposed use in the proposed area will be adequately served by and will
impose no undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities, or
services provided by the county or other governmental agency having
jurisdiction in the county.

(6} The Special Use Permit conforms to the 2016 Storey County Master Plan for the
Mark Twain planning area in which the subject property is located. A discussion
supporting this finding is provided in Section 2.C of this staff report and the
contents thereof are cited in an approval of this Special Use Permit.

(7} The conditions under the Special Use Permit do not conflict with the minimum

requirements in Storey County Code Sections 17.03.150, Special Use Permit and
Section 17.40 E - Estate Zone.

Alternative motion for approval {(applicant request).

(1) This approval is for Special Use Permit 2019-001 to operate a home enterprise.
The home enterprise will consist of beekeeping (with a maximum of 20 hives), a

10



greenhouse to grow produce and an Aqua farm structure for raising fish. No
retail sales of product will occur at the site. The property is approximately 2.70
acres in size and is located at 144 Elizabeth Lane, Mark Twain, Storey County,
Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN} 003-314-23.

(2) The proposed project complies with the general purpose, goals, objectives, and
standards of the county master plan, this title, and any other plan, program,
map, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice
by the county.

{3) The proposal location, size, height, operations, and other significant features
will be compatible with and will not cause substantial negative impact on
adjacent land uses, or will perform a function or provide a service that is
essential to the surrounding land uses, community, and neighborhood.

{6) The proposed project will result in no substantial or undue adverse effect on
adjacent property, the character of the neighborhood, traffic conditions,
parking, public improvements, public sites or right-of-way, or other matters
affecting the public health, safety, and general welfare, either as they now exist
or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the implementation of
the provisions and policies of the county master plan, this title, and any other
plans, program, map or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to
an official notice, by the county, or other governmental agency having
jurisdiction to guide growth and development.

{7) The proposed use in the proposed area will be adequately served by and will
impose no undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities, or
services provided by the county or other governmental agency having
jurisdiction in the county.

(6) The Special Use Permit conforms to the 2016 Storey County Master Plan for the
Mark Twain planning area in which the subject property is located. A discussion
supporting this finding is provided in Section 2.C of this staff report and the
contents thereof are cited in an approval of this Special Use Permit.

{8) The conditions under the Special Use Permit do not conflict with the minimum
requirements in Storey County Code Sections 17.03.150, Special Use Permit and
Section 17.40 E - Estate Zone.

Motion for denial. Should a motion be made to deny the Special Use Permit request,
the following findings with explanation why should be included in that motion.

(1) This denial is for Special Use Permit 2019-001 to aperate a home enterprise.
The home enterprise will consist of beekeeping, a greenhouse to grow produce
and an Aqua farm structure for raising fish. No retail sales of product will occur
at the site. The property is approximately 2.70 acres in size and is located at
144 Elizabeth Lane, Mark Twain, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel
Number {APN) 003-314-23.

11



(2) The conditions under the Special Use Permit conflict with the minimum
requirements in Storey County Code Sections 17.03.150, Special Use Permit and
Section 17.40 E — Estate Zone.

{(3) The conditions under the Special Use Permit do not adequately mitigate
potential adverse impacts on surrounding uses or protect against potential
safety hazards for surrounding use.

4. Recommended Conditions of Approval

A.

Special Use Permit. Special Use Permit 2019-001 is to operate a home enterprise. The
home enterprise will consist of beekeeping (with a maximum of 10 hives}, greenhouse(s)
to grow produce and an aqua farm structure for raising fish. No retail sales of product
will occur at the site. The property is approximately 2.70 acres in size and is located at
144 Elizabeth Lane, Mark Twain, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number
{APN) 003-314-23,

Home Enterprise. This special use permit authorizes an agricultural and horticultural
home enterprise accessory use to the existing residential use on the property. The
business activities shall be limited to the interior of the building with the exception of
the beekeeping and installation of greenhouse({s) and the aqua farm building. No
employees of the business may report for duty at or near the residence. There may be
no manufacturing, processing, or similar activities on the premises which generate
noise, odor, dust, vibration, fumes, smoke, electrical interference, vehicle traffic,
storage of items which increase fire load or other adverse impacts to adjacent
properties. The home enterprise must be subservient to the residential dwelling.

Requirements. The Permit Holder shall apply for all required permits and licenses,
including any applicable building and fire permits, for the project within 24 months from
the date of final approval of this SUP, and continuously maintain the validity of those
permits/licenses, or this approval shall be null and void. This Special Use Permit shall
remain valid as long as the Applicant remains in compliance with the terms of this
Special Use Permit and Storey County, State of Nevada, and federal regulations. No
activity shall commence prior to the Applicant securing rights to the Special Use Permit.

Compliance. The use on the subject property must comply with federal, state, and
county codes and regulations and the submitted plans as approved. The Permit Holder
shall be responsible for maintaining the premises and managing operations in
accordance with all conditions and stipulations set forth by this Special Use Permit and
all other federal, Nevada State, and Storey County codes and regulations. Failure to
comply with the requirements herein shall elicit a written warning to the Permit Holder
by Storey County on the first and second offense. A third offense shall warrant Storey
County to revoke the Special Use Permit. Storey County shall reserve the right to
conduct periodic reviews of the Permit Holder’s compliance with all conditions and
stipulations of the Special Use Permit.

12



Business License. The home enterprise must comply with the provisions of Title 5
business licenses of the county code.

Property Taxes. Before obtaining the Special Use Permit from the Planning
Department, the Property Owner must provide evidence that all property taxes on the
land are paid-to-date.

Indemnificationfinsurance. The Permit Holder warrants that the use of land will
conform to the requirements of Storey County, State of Nevada, and applicable federal
regulatory and legal requirements; further, the Permit Holder warrants that continued
and future use of the land shall so conform. The Permit Holder agrees to hold Storey
County, its officers, and representatives harmless from the costs associated with any
damage or liability, and any/all other claims now existing or which may occur as a result
of this Special Use Permit.

Transfer of Rights. This Special Use Permit {(SUP 2019-001) is non-transferable. This
Special Use Permit applies to the Permit Holder/Property Owner listed in this permit
and may not be transferred to new owners of the property.

Water Source and Use.

{1) Hives. The Permit Holder shall provide an adequate onsite continuous water source
for the hives in an amount large enough to serve the number of occupied hives on
the property.

{(2) Fish. The Permit Holder shall demonstrate that the proposed water usage
associated with the aqua farm does not exceed the water rights associated with the
property. Documentation from the State of Nevada, Division of Water Resources
demonstrating adequate water rights exist for all uses on the property shall be
provided prior to any installation of the proposed agua farm facility.

(3) Vector Control. Any water sources on the property must be maintained fresh, clean
and such to prevent the breeding and germination of disease vectors (e.g.
mosquitos and their eggs, etc...).

Site Layout. The proposed hives and associated water source shall be centrally located
on the property. All other structures shall meet Estates zoning setback requirements.
The Permit Holder shall submit a site plan {hand-drawn is acceptable) reasonably drawn
to scale, of the overall site layout, for Storey County review and approval.

Drainage. The existing drainage channel through the parcel shall be maintained to allow
for flow through the property. This condition may be waived in the future if drainage
improvements to the overall neighborhood are implemented that redirects the drainage
away from the parcel.

Nevada Department of Agriculture. The Permit Holder shall comply with all
requirements of the Nevada Department of Agriculture as related to the bees, growing
of produce and the associated home enterprise and shall comply with Chapter 552 of
the Nevada Revised Statutes.

13



Nevada Department of Behavioral and Public Health. The Permit Holder shall comply
with all requirements of the Nevada Department of Behavioral and Public Health for all
item associated with the home enterprise.

Lot Consolidation. The Permit Holder shall consolidate Lots 145 and 146 into one legal
lot of record prior to an activity commencing on the property if any accessory use is
proposed to be constructed on Lot 146.

State/Federal Taxes. Whenever Nevada law requires the payment of a sales and/or use
tax, all materials and equipment purchased or rented for this project shall when feasible
be received in Storey County and the value reported as ‘county-of-delivery’ on the
Nevada Dept. of Taxation form TXR-01.01 ‘Sales/Use Tax Return’.

Abandonment/Abatement. In the event that the bee hives are abandoned either by
bees or the Permit Holder for a period of any two consecutive years commencing after
the installation of the hives, Storey County shall reserve the right to deem the facility
abandoned and mandate the hives be removed within 180 days thereof at the Permit
Holder’s expense. The Permit Holder shall reserve the right to appeal the decision of
abandonment. The process for the appeal shall be as pursuant to Chapter 17.03
Administrative Provisions of the Storey County Code. Removal and reclamation shall
include complete removal of the bee hives and associated equipment.

Nuisance. Any complaints regarding the proposed uses authorized by this Special Use
Permit shall be investigated by the County and if appropriate, will follow the process
outlined Section 17.03.045 — Abatement of Public Nuisances, and may include
revocation of the Special Use Permit.

Maximum Hive Number. This permit authorizes a maximum 10 hives on the property.
After a two year time period from the date of installation of the hives, and if there are
no valid complaints on-file from the abutting properties during this time, the Permit
Holder may apply to Storey County for additional hives on the property. Additional
hives may be approved by the Board of County Commissioners, with action by the
Pianning Commission, during a public hearing process and review of any issues
associated with the initial two year period of implementaticn and a review of any
impacts on the surrounding neighborhood. This is not to be construed as a guarantee
for the granting of additional hives or any number of hives. Action that occurs during
the meeting will not affect the existing special use permit or its conditions, except as
may apply to additional entitlements given or by mutual consent of the County and
Permit Holder.

Residence. The Permit Holder shall reside on the property.

Africanized Bees. Africanized bees shall not be permitted.

Annual Review. At a regularly scheduled public meeting on or about the month of
February 2020, the Planning Commission, with coordination from the Permit Holder,
shall review the operations at the property and determine any significant impacts of the
proposed operation has on the adjacent neighborhood. At that time, if any negative

14



impacts are identified and brought to the attentign of the Planning Commission or
County staff, additional mitigating conditions may be added to the Special Use Permit by
the Board with action/recommendation by the Planning Commission. If no additional

mitigation measures are imposed, no Board of County Commissioners review shall be

required. At the Annual Review, the Planning Commission shall determine if further
annual reviews are required.

Public Comment

As of January 29, 2019, Staff has not received any comments from the public. An email from
Lyon County was received supporting the project with the recommended conditions of approval
applied. Several neighboring property owners provided comments at the Planning Commission
meeting.

Power of the Board

At the conclusion of the hearing, the Board of County Commissioners must take such action
thereon as it deems warranted under the circumstances and announce and record its action by
formal resolution, and such resolution must recite the findings of the Board of County
Commissioners upon which it bases its decision.

Proposed Motions

This section contains three motions from which to choose. The first motion (A) for approval is
recommended by the Planning Commission and staff in accordance with the findings under
Section 3.A of this report and limits the amount of hives on the property to a maximum of 10.
The second motion {B) for approval is requested by the Applicant and allows for a maximum of
20 hives on the property. The third motion (C) is a motion for denial and that motion should cite
one or more of the findings shown in Section 3.B. Other findings of fact determined appropriate
by the Board of County Commissioners should be made part of either motion.

A, Recommended motion for approval (Planning Commission and staff recommendation)

in accordance with the recommendation by the Planning Commission and staff, the
findings of fact under Section 3.A of this report, and other findings deemed appropriate
by the Board of County Commissioners, and in compliance with the conditions of
approval, | (county commissioner), move to approve Special Use Permit 2019-001 to
allow for operation of a home enterprise. The home enterprise will consist of
beekeeping (with a maximum of 10 hives), a greenhouse to grow produce and an aqua
farm structure for raising fish. No retail sales of product will occur at the site. The
property is approximately 2.70 acres in size and is located at 144 Elizabeth Lane, Mark
Twain, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 003-314-23.

B. Alternative motion for approval (applicant’s request)

Against the recommendation of the Planning Commission and staff, the findings of fact
under Section 3.A of this report, and other findings deemed appropriate by the Board of

15



County Commissioners, and in compliance with the conditions of approval, deleting
Recommended Condition of Approval R and amending Condition of Approval Ato a
maximum of 20 hives, | {county commissioner), move to approve Special Use Permit
2019-001 to allow for operation of a home enterprise. The home enterprise will consist
of beekeeping {with a maximum of 20 hives), a greenhouse to grow produce and an
aqua farm structure for raising fish. No retail sales of product will occur at the site. The
property is approximately 2.70 acres in size and is located at 144 Elizabeth Lane, Mark
Twain, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 003-314-23.

C. Alternative motion for denial

Against the recommendation by the Planning Commission and staff, but in accordance
with the findings of fact under Section 3.2 of this report, and other findings deemed
appropriate by the Board of County Commissioners, | {county commissioner), move to
deny Special Use Permit 2019-001 to allow for operation of a home enterprise. The
home enterprise will consist of beekeeping, a greenhouse to grow produce and an aqua
farm structure for raising fish. No retail sales of product will occur at the site. The
property is approximately 2.70 acres in size and is located at 144 Elizabeth Lane, Mark
Twain, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 003-314-23.

Appendix A — NRS Chapter 552
Appendix B - Carson City Code Chapter 7.02

Appendix C - City of Henderson Chapter 19.5

16



APPENDIX A

16



NRS: CHAPTER 552 - BEES AND APIARIES Page 1 of 4

[Rev. 6/2/2018 8:07:33 PM--2017|

CHAPTER 552 - BEES AND APIARIES

Definitions.

“Apiary” defined.

“Appliance” defined.

“Bees” defised.

“Colony” defined.

“Colony streagth” defimed.

“Department” defined.

“Director” defined.

“Disense” defined.

“Hive” defined.

“Inspector” defined.

“Location” defined.

Control of .lt,tiy"y industry: Anthority of Department; sdoption of regulations; imposition and use of civil
penalty.

Inspection of apiaries; order for destruction or treatmeat; quarantine; abatement of certsin nuisances.

Abatement of nuisance for failure to comply with order for destruction or treatment.

Right of access of inspectors.

Duties of inspectors after Inspections.

Colony strength: Establishment of standards; inspectors; certification; fees.

Importation of queens or other bees in screened cages without comb: Certificate of inspection; holding and
destruction of bees.

Fees for inspections.

Bees to be kept in movable frame hives.

Conceaslment of disease or exposure of bees to disease unlawful.

Regulation of neglected or sbandoned nsed hives or appliances.

Public nuisances: Declaration; abatement.

Extraction of honey.

Removsl or distribution of diseased bees without permission unlawful.

NRS %33 39¢ Chapter supplemental to state law governing quarantines.

NRS 552,085 Deflnitions. As used in this chapter, unless the context otherwise requires, the words and terms

defined mw to 552.0862, inclusive, have the meanings ascribed to them in those sections.
(Added to y 1939, 252, 253; A 1977, 911; 1985, 524; 1987, 564; 1993, 1704; 1999, 1387, 3635; 2001, §9)

NRS 552.0851 “Apiary” defined. “Apiary” means any hive or other place where bees are kept, located or found,
and all appliances used in connection therewith.

(Added to NRS by 1987, 564)

NRS 552.0852 “Appliance” deflmed. “‘Appliance” means any implement or device used in manipulating bees or
their brood, including honey-extracting equipment, and any container thercof.
(Added o NRS by 1987, 564)

NRS 552.0853 “Bees” defimed. “Bees” means honey-producing insects of the genus Apis, and includes adults,
e Jne, and all material, excluding honey and rendered beeswax, that is deposited into bechives by the adults.
(A to

RS by [987, 564)

NRS 552.0854 “Colony” defined. “Colony” means the bees, comb and honey contained in the hive.
(Added to NRS by 1987, 564)

NRS 552.0855 “Colony strength” defined. “Colony sirength” means the potential of a hive of bees to pollinize
horticultural or agricultural crops.

(Added to NRS by 1987, 564)

NRS 552.08555 “Department” defined. “Department” means the State Department of Agriculture.
(Added to NRS by 1999, 3634)

NRS 552.08575 “Director” defined. “Director” means the Director of the Department.

hitps://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-552.html 1/7/2019



NRS: CHAPTER 552 - BEES AND APIARIES Page 2 of 4

(Added to NRS by (999, 3634)

NRS 552.0858 “Disease” defined. “Disease” means any condition adversely affecting bees, or their brood, which
may become epidemic, including, without limitation, bacteria, viruses or invertebrate pests and the presence of undesirable
genetic characteristics including those associated with Apis mellifera scutellata or hybrids of this subspecies.

(Added to NRS by 1987, 564; A 1999, 138D

NRS 552.086 “Hive” defined. “Hive” means any receptacle or container made or prepared for the use of bees.
(Added to NRS by |987, 564)

NRS 552.0861 “Inspector” defined. *“Inspector” means any person authorized by the Department to enforce the
provisions of this chapter.
(Added to NRS by 1987, 564; A 1993, 1704; 1999, 3635}

NRS 552.0862 “Location” defined. “Location” means any place where an apiary is located.
(Added to NRS by 1987, 564)

NRS 552.095 Control of apiary industry: Authority of Department; adoption of regulations; imposition and
use of civil penalty.

1. The Department has control of al] matters pertaining to the apiary industry in this State.

2. The Director may adopt regulations to carry out the provisions of this chapter.

3. The Director may, after notice and an opportunity for a hearing, impose a civil penalty of not more than $500 for
each violation of this chafler.

4. Any money collected from the imposition of a civil penalty pursuant to subsection 3 must be accounted for
separately and:

(a) Fifty percent of the money must be used to fund a program selected by the Director that provides loans to persons
who are engaged in agriculture and who are 21 years of age or younger; and

(b) The remaining S0 percent of the money must be deposited in the Account for the Control of Weeds established by
NRS 555.035.

~(Added 1o NRS by 2015, 3583)

NRS 552.160 Inspection of apiaries; order for destruction or treatment; quarantine; abatement of certain
nuisances.

1. The Department may order the inspection of any or all apiaries and all buildings used in connection with those
apiaries in any district or districts of the State annually, or more often if deemed necessary, or upon report to it that there is
a reason to believe that any apiary may be infected with any discase, or that any honey, honeycombs or beeswax is
exposed to robber bees.

2. Ifthe inspection discloses any disease, the Department may:

(a) Order the owner or any person in possession of the apiary to destroy the diseased bees, hives and appliances in a
manner prescribed by the Department and at the expense of the owner;

(b) Order the owner or any person in possession of the apiary to treat the hives and appliances in a manner prescribed
by the Department and at the expense of the owner if, in the opinion of the inspector, the nuisance can be abated by
treatment rather than destruction; or

{(c) Proclaim a quarantine in accordance with the provisions of chapter 554 of NRS. .

3. The order for destruction or treatment must require compliance within a reasonable time with reference to the
nature of the disease.

4. If the inspection discloses honey, honeycombs or beeswax exposed to robber bees, the Department may order the
abatement of the nuisance in a manner appropriate to the circumstances.

5. The order must be served upon the owner or person in possession of the apiary personally or by registered or
certified mail, or, if that person cannot be located, by posting the order in a conspicuous place at the apiary.

[11:225:1921; NCL § 470] — (NRS A 1959, 255; 1969, 95; 1987, 566; 1993, 1705; 1999, 1387, 3635; 2001, 89)

NRS 552.170 Abatement of nuisance for failure to comply with order for destruction or treatment. If the
owner or person in sion of an apiary neglects or refuses to comply with an order issued under NRS 552.160, the
Department may authorize the inspector or other agent to abate the nuisance by the method prescribed in the order.

[12:225:1921; NCL § 471] — (NRS A 1959, 256; 1993, 1706; 1999, 3636, 2015, 3583)

NRS 552.180 Right of access of inspectors. For the enforcement of the provisions of this chapter, inspectors
shall have access to all :riaries, ag liances, structures and premises where bees or their products are kept.
[Part 13:225:1921; NCL § 47 r— (NRS A 1961, 514)

NRS 552.190 Duties of inspectors after inspections. After inspecting infected hives or fixtures, or handling
diseased bees, the inspector shall, before leaving the premises or proceeding to any other apiary:

1. ‘Thoroughly disinfect any portion of his or her own person and clothing, and any tools or appliances used by him
or her which have come in contact with disease-infected material; and

2. See that any other assistant or assistants with the inspector have likewise disinfected their persons and ciothing
and all tools and sppliances used by them.

[Part 13:225:1921; NCL § 472] — (NRS A 1961, 514)

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-552.html 1/7/2019



NRS: CHAPTER 552 - BEES AND APIARIES Page 3 of 4

NRS 552,205 Colony strength: Establishment of standards; inspectors; certification; fees. The Department
may, if the demand for pollination service is found by the Department to warrant such action:

1. Establish standards of colony strength based upon:

(a) The number of bees per hive,

(b} The number of cells containing breod per hive;

(¢) The health of the bees and brood; and

(d) Any other factors which reasonably relate to the ability of the colony to pollinize horticultural and agricultural

3.
2. Appoint qualified inspectors to determine colony strength.

3. Certify hives of bees used in commerciat pollinization on the basis of colony strength.

4, Establish reasonable fees to cover the cost of colony strength inspection and certification.
(Added to NRS by 1959, 253; A 1993, 1706; 1999, 3637)

NRS 552.212 Importation of queens or other bees in screened cages without comb: Certificate of inspection;
holding and destraction of bees.

1. A persen shall net ship or transport into this State any queens or other bees in screened cages without comb unless
:.he ;slllliipment is sccompanied by a certificate of an authorized officer of the state of origin certifying that all bees intended

or shipment:

(a) Were inspected within 60 days before the date of shipment; and

(b) Were found to be free from disease and pests.

2. The Department may hold a shipment which is not accompanied by the certificate of inspection and notify the
person who owns or cantrols the bees that they will be destroyed after 48 hours after the time of the notice unless a proper
certificate of i ion is supplied. I the certificate is not lied within that time, the bees may be destroyed.

(Added 10 NRS by 1981, 43T; A 1985, 346; 1987, 563; 1999, 1388, 3639; 2001, 89)

NRS 552,215 Fees for inspections. If an inspection is requested by any person to determine the presence of
disease or colony strength, the person who requests the inspection shall pay a reasonable fee as prescribed by the
Department to pay the expenses of the inspection.

(Added to NRS by 1959, 253; A 1973, 284; 1993, 1709; 1999, }388, 3639; 2001, 89)

NRS 552,230 Bees to be kept in movable frame hives.

1. 1t shall be unlawful for any person to have in the person’s possession any bees kept in other than movable frame
hives.

2. If any such bees are found by an inspector, the inspector shall serve written notice in person or by registered or
certified mail on the owner or owners, caretaker, or person in charge of the same, ordering the owner or owners, caretaker
or person in charge to correct the condition within a specified time of not less than 3 days.

3. If the owner or owners, carctaker, or person in charge shall neglect, fail or refuse to correct the condition by
providing accessible movable frame hives within the time specified in the written notice, the bees, hives and combs shali
be condemned and destroyed by the inspector, without compensation.

[Part 17:225:1921; A 1955, 349] — (NRS A 1969, 95)

NRS 552.240 Concealment of disease or exposure of bees to disease unlawful. 1t shall be unlawful for any
person to conceal the fact that any disease exists among the person’s bees or to expose to bees any infected bees, bee
products, hives or appliances.

[Part 17:225:1921; A [955, 349)

NRS 552.250 Regulation of neglected or abandoned used hives or appliances. Neglected or abandoned used
hives or appliances containing beeswax or bee comb, unless kept in an enclosure so constructzd as to prevent access by
bees, are by declared to be lic nuisances, and it shall be unlawful to maintain them. Any such neglected or
abandoned hives or appliances shall be subject to seizure and destruction by an inspector, without compensation.

{Part 17:225:1921; A 1955, 349]

NRS 552.255 Public nuisances: Declaration; abatement. The following may be declared to be public nuisances
and are subject to abatement under the provisions of this chapter:

1. Diseased bees and any apiary in which they are found.

2. Honey, honeycombs andp beeswax containing honey which are exposed to robber bees.

(Added to NRS by 1959, 253; A 1999, 1388)

NRS 552.260 Extraction of honey.

1. Any and all extracting of honey shall be done in a place to which bees cannot gain access either during or after
such extracting process.

2. Any inspector shall prohibit or stop the extraction of honey in any place to which bees have access until such
place is made bee-tight.

[Part 17:225:1921; A 1955, 349]

NRS 552.280 Removal or distribution of diseased bees without permission unlawful. It shall be unlawful for
the owner, owners, lessee, lessees, agent or caretaker of any apiary, including appliances, structures, buildings and honey,
wherein disease exists, to move or distribute any diseased bees, whether they are queens or workers, colonies,

https://www .leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-552.html 1/7/2019



NRS: CHAPTER 552 - BEES AND APIARIES Page 4 of 4

honeycombs, appliances or structures beyond the already established boundaries of such apiary wherein disease exists
without written permission from the Director or his or her designee.
(19:225:1921; A 1925, 38; NCL § 478} — (NRS A 2015, 3583)

NRS 552290 Chapter supplemental to state law governing quarantines. Except as provided in this
nothing in this chapter shall be construed as in any way affecting the provisions of chapter 354 of NRS, but this chapter
shall be considered as supplementary to chapter 554 of NRS.

[22:225:1921; NCL § 481]

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-552.htm] 1/7/2019



APPENDIX B CJH'{-
Cagsen U1

Chapter 7.02 - BEEKEEPING

SHARE LINK TO SECTION PRINT SECTION DOWNLOAD (DOCX) OF SECTIONS EMAIL SECTION
COMPARE VERSIONS

7.02.010 - Definitions.

SHARE LINK TO SECTION PRINT SECTION DOWNLOAD (DOCX) OF SECTIONS EMAIL SECTION
COMPARE VERSIONS

L

Apiary: In accordance with NRS 552.0851, an "apiary" means any hive or other place where bees are kept,
located or found, and all appliances used in connection thereof.

Beekeeper: A person who owns or has charge of one (1) or more colonies of bees.

3.

Colony: Shall mean a hive and its equipment and appurtenances, including bees, comb, honey, pollen and
brood.

Department: Refers to the Carson City Health and Human Services Department, or any subsequent
department deemed responsible by Carson City.

5.

Disease: In accordance with NRS 552.0858, a "disease” means any condition adversely affecting the bees or
their brood which could become epidemic.

Enforcement officer; Enforcement/animal services officer or their designee.

7.

Hive: Means a removable frame receptacle or container made or prepared for the use of bees described in
NRS 552.086 and NRS 552.230. All other hives shall be deemed unlawful.

( Ord. No. 2012-8, § ll, 4-5-2012)

7.02.020 - Allowable property type (use).

SHARE LINK TO SECTION PRIN'T SECTION DOWNLOAD (DOCX) OF SECTIONS EMAIL. SECTION
COMPARE VERSIONS

1.

Hives will be allowed on any property, excluding parcels containing a multi-family residential dwelling, that
meet the requirements of this section.



A person shall not locate or allow a hive on property owned or occupied by another person without fiest
obtaining written permission from the owner or occupant.

(Ord. No, 2012-8, 31V, 4-5-2012)

7.02.030 - Lot size, number of hives and location on property.

SHARE LINK TO SECTION PRINT SECTION DOWNLOAD (DOCX) OF SECTIONS EMAIL SECTION
COMPARE VERSIONS

Lot less than one-half (0.5) acre: Maximum of two (2) hives.

2,
Lot one-half (0.5) acre and above up to one (1.0) acre: Maximum of five (5) hives.

3.
Lot one (1) acre and above up to five (5) acres: Maximum of ten (10) hives.

4,
Lots above five (5) acres: No restrictions so long as not deemed a nuisance by the department.

5.

A hive shall be placed on property so the general flight pattern of bees is in a direction that will deter bee
contact with humans and domesticated animats.

No hive may be within ten (10) feet of any property line.

7.

Hives that are located closer than twenty-five (25) feet from any property line or public right-of-way must
have a "flyaway barrier" of at least six (6) feet in height between the hive and such property line.

{Ond. No. 2012-8, § V, 4-5-2012)

7.02.040 - Water.

SHARE LINK TO SECTION PRINT SECTION DOWNLOAD (DOCX) OF SECTIONS EMAIL SECTION
COMPARE VERSIONS

A water source must be placed in the immediate vicinity of all hives between April 1 and September 30.

( Ord. No, 2012-8, § VI, 4-5-2012)

7.02.050 - Flyaway barrier.

SHARE LINK TO SECTION PRINT SECTION DOWNLOAD (DOCX) OF SECTIONS EMAIL SECTION
COMPARE VERSIONS

Flyaway barrier requirements:



8.

Must surround the hive(s) on any side that is within twenty-five (25) feet of a property line or public right-
of-way.

b.
Must be no less than six (6) feet in height.

c.
Must consist of a material impenetrable by bees (wood fencing, dense shrubbery, chain link with slats, etc.).

d

Must allow at least a four-foot separation from the barrier to the hive entrance to allow for proper movement
and landing of the bees.

e.
The location and height of the barriers must comply with applicable zoning and building code requirements.

( Ord. No. 2012-8, § VII, 4-5-2012))

7.02.060 - Extraction of honey.

SHARE LINK TO SECTION PRINT SECTION DOWNLOAD (DOCX) OF SECTIONS EMAIL SECTION
COMPARE VERSIONS

In accordance with NRS 552.260, honey may only be extracted in an area where there is no access by
bees before, during, or after the extraction process.

7.02.070 - Nuisance.

SHARE LINK TO SECTION PRINT SECTION DOWNLOAD (DOCX) OF SECTIONS EMAIL SECTION
COMPARE VERSIONS

1.

Any hive that has been abandoned by the owner will be considered a public nuisance and must be removed
by the owner at the owner's expense in accordance with Title 8§ Chapter 8.08 of the Carson City Municipal
Code.

2.
if the hive is occupied by bees, the owner must make arrangements for the bees to be relocated at his or her
expense.

If the hive is occupied by diseased bees, the hive must be destroyed at the owner's expense.
( Ord. No. 2012-8, § 1X, 4-5-2012)
7.02.080 - Queens,.

SHARE LINK TO SECTION PRINT SECTION DOWNLOAD (DOCX) OF SECTIONS EMAIL SECTION
COMPARE VERSIONS



In any instance in which a colony exhibits unusually aggressive characteristics by stinging or
attempting to sting without due provocation or exhibits an unusual disposition towards swarming, it shall be
the duty of the beekeeper to re-queen the colony. Queens shall be selected from stock bred for gentleness
and non-swarming characteristics.

(Ord. No. 2012-8. § X, 4-5-2012)

7.02.090 - Disease.

SHARE LINK TO SECTION PRINT SECTION DOWNLOAD (DOCX) OF SECTIONS EMAIL SECTION
COMPARE VERSIONS

If any hive is found to be diseased:

(a)
If the hive and appliances thereof can be treated so as to completely eradicate the disease in question, it shall
be done immediately at the owner's expense.

(b)
If the hive is not treatable, the hive and all appliances thereof will be destroyed at the owner's expense in a
manner prescribed or deemed reasonable by the department.

If a hive is found to be diseased, the problem must be addressed as determined by the department.

(Ord. No. 2012-8, § X1, 4-5-2012)

7.02.100 - Enforcement.

SHARE LINK TO SECTION PRINT SECTION DOWNLOAD (DOCX) OF SECTIONS EMAIL SECTION
COMPARE VERSIONS

1.

Enforcement officers shall have access to all apiaries, appliances, products, structures and premises on
which bees are kept and shall have the right to inspect any apiary between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00

p.m.

2,
Violations to this Code:

a.
Must be corrected by the fourth day after receiving notice of a violation.

b.

If not corrected, the bees will be removed at the owner's expense.

{ Ord. No, 2012-8, § X1I, 4-5-2012)

7.02.110 - Severability.



SHARE LINK TO SECTION PRINT SECTION DOWNLOAD (DOCX) OF SECTIONS EMAIL SECTION
COMPARE VERSIONS

If any of the provisions of this chapter or the application thereof to any person or circumstance is held
invalid, such invalidity shall not impair the other provisions of this chapter. To this end the provisions of
this chapter are declared to be severable.

(Ord. No. 2012-8, § X111, 4-5-2012 )



APPENDIX C

CHAPTER 19.5: USE REGULATIONS

SECTION 19.5.5 COMMERCIAL USES | 19.5.5.D ANIMALS AND RELATED SERVICES

(c)

(d)

(8) Coops must be maintained and cleaned at all times fo minimize odors and
other nulsances.

(9} Chickens may not be ralsed for slaughter or bred for sale.
(10} Per Title 7, roosters are not permitted in any zoning district.

(11}  These standards do not apply to fowl kept in accordance with 19.5.5.D.6,
Equines/Bovines.

Off-Strest Parking Requirement

No additional requirement beyond the residential use requirement.
Off-Street Loading Group

None.

12. Aplaries

KESIDENTIAL

Definition

{n) Aplary means any hive box or other place where bees are kept by any
person, and all beskesping equipment used in connection therewith,

{2) Bees meons honey-producing Insects of the genus Apis, and Includes
advults, eggs, lorvae, pupce, and all material, excluding honey and
rendered beeswax, that is deposited Into colonies by the adults.
Beskeeping of anything other than bees as defined herein and regulated
by this Section Is not permitted within the boundaries of the City.

(3) Beekeeper meamns o person who owns or has charge of one or more
apiaries.

(4) Beekeeping equipmemt means anything used In the operation of an
apiary including, but not limited to, hive boxes, supers, frames, top and
bottom boards, and extractors.

{5) Colony means the bees, comb, and honey contained in the hive box.

(6) Disease means ony condition adversely affecting bees or their brood
which may become epidemic including, without limitation, bocterla, viruses
or invertebrate pests and the presence of undesirable genetic
characteristics Including those assoclated with Apis Mellifera Scuteliato or
hybrids of this subspecies.

{7) Feral bse means wild bees, which are generally aggressive, have a
tendency to swarm, and are of little value for commercial honey
production or for pollination of crops.

City of Henderson | Development Code
Adopted 1/19/10 ~ Revised 1/8/19 | Page 5-67



CHAPTER 19.5: USE REGULATIONS

SECTION 19.5.5 COMMERCIAL USES | 19.5.5.D ANIMALS AND RELATED SERVICES

(b)

®

(9

(10

Flyway barrier means o solld wall, fance, or dense vegetation that will
modify bees’ flight patterns. Flyway barrlers must be at least 6 feet In
height as measured from the ground adjacent to where the hive box is
located and must run clong the adjacent property lines and extend 10
feet In either directlon beyond the hive box. If a different height is
needed for commerclol purposes, it must be opproved by the City
through the zoning approval.

Hive box means the structure with movable frames in which o bee colony
lives and which may not exceed a height of 56 inches. It shall be unlawful
for ony person to have in the person’s possession any bees kept in other
than hive boxes.

Aggressive bees or oggressive bee behavior means defensive actions
such os unprovoked attacks, robbing of hives, significantly increased
flying speed, formation of a dark cloud above the hives, and reaction te
carbon dioxide.

City Approval and Registration

)

(2)

(3)

(4)

Community Development and Services Depariment opproval {zoning
approval} described In this Section is required prior to housing an aplary
on ony real property within the City boundaries. No person shall
participate in any beekeeping activity or otherwise keep, maintain, or
ollow to be kept any hive box or other facility for the housing of bees on
or In any property within the Clty without first obtaining zoning approval.
A home occupation license and other approvals required through the
City's business licensing divislon may olsc be applicable.

Participation in the Nevada Department of Agriculture Voluntary Aplary
Registration Program is required.

Zoning appreval shall not be transferable. Only the owner of the real
property where the apiary 1s proposed, or on occupant of the real
property where the oplary is proposed, with the owner's written
permission, Is eligible to apply for an aplary zoning approval. Each
beskeeper shall be responsible for obtaining o separate zoning
approval for his or her aplaries. Only one (1) apiary approval shall be
approved per parcel.

Applicants shall provide af a minimum the following information with the
submittal for zoning approval to demonstrate compliance with the
requirements of this Section:

i A detailed lot diagram or site plan Including location, materials
and height of flyway barrier, location of hive box, and
beekeaping equipment with distances to property lines and from
nearby structures on neighboring properties, and type ond
number of flowering plants and description of water source,

il Sufficient proof in staff's discretion of beekeeping
education/training from a local technical college, university, or
beekeeping association or organization to obtain competency in
beekeeping must be submitted at the time of submittal for zoning
approval. Beekeeping training and membership Is encouraged
fo promots recognized best management practices that provide
safe and healthy living conditions for the bees while avoiding

Clty of Henderson ) Development Code

Adopted 1/19/10 — Revised 1/8/19 | Page 5-68



(e)

iii.

iv.

Standards

CHAPTER 19.5: USE REGULATIONS
SECTION 19.5.5 COMMERCIAL USES | 19.5.5.D ANIMALS AND RELATED SERVICES

nuisance impacts on surrounding properties and persons and
protecting the public heclth, safety and welfare,

Sufficient documentation to demonstrate that all standards have
been met.

Additional Items as deemed necessary by staff in thelr discretion
for the subject location.

m All Districts

iv.

v,

Apiaries are limited to the following numbers of hive boxes,
based upon the size of the loh

1. Hive boxes are not permifted on lots that are less than
5,500 square feet;

2. A lot that is 5,500 square feet or larger but equal to or
smoller than Y2-acre may have a maximum of 2 hive
boxes;

3. A lot that is lorger than Ya-acre but equal to or smaller

than 2 acres may have a maximum of 4 hive boxes;

4. A lot that is larger than 2 acres but equal o or smaller
than 5 acres may have a moximum of 6 hive boxaes;

5. A lot that is larger than 5 acres may have a maximum of
25 hive boxes if the beakeeper con support the number
of hive boxes with sufficient water {approximately 1
gallon per hive box per day) and with available forage.

Apiaries are permitted only as an accessory use for all zoning
districts with the exception of Development Holding (DH). On
lond zoned DH, aplaries may be the primory or only use.

All apiaries located adjacent to parks, trails, or schools, or within
or adjacent to o PS zoning district, shall be locoted ond
maintained behind &-foot barriers (notural or otherwise) to
encourage bees to fly above such places. Additionol setbacks
may be required if determined necessary for the protection of
public health and safety.

In order to emsure the appropriate height of the bee flight path,
hive boxes must face away from, or be parallel to, the nearest
property line adjacent to onother lot.

Hive boxes must be located a minimum of 20 feet from any
street,

if hive boxes are located less than 30 feet from any street, or
less than 15 feet from ony property line, a fiyway barrier is
required. If flyway borrlers are comprised of vegetation on
latticework or shrubbery or other plantings, they must be
maintained and pruned around the hive box except as needed to
allow reasonable access.

CHy of Henderson | Development Code
Adopted 1/19/10 — Revised 1/8/19 | Page 5-69



CHAPTER 19.5: USE REGULATIONS

SECTION 19.5.5 COMMERCIAL USES | 19.5.5.0 ANIMALS AND RELATED SERVICES

(2)

vil.

viii.

xii.

xiv.

XV,

Hive boxes, related beekeeping equipment, and the entire lot
where the aplary Is located, must be clean, maintained In good
oondition, and kept free of any bulld-up of wax, comb or other
materials that might encourage robbing by other bees (including
bees other than honey bees). The area must be clear of remnant
boxes or other debris that are left upon the grounds of the
apiary lot. Such materials once removed from the site shall be
hondled and stored in secled containers or placed within a
building or othes insect-proof container.

Woater shall be made available to the bees on the lot at all times
throughout the year and in a location that minimizes the potential
for bees fo seek water on other properties.

Colonies shall be re-queened biannually or as often as necessary
to prevent swarming or other aggressive behavior. Gueens shall
be selected from stock bred for non-aggressive behavlor.

Beekeepers shall maintain all recelpts and records related to
beekeeping activities for at leas! two years from the dote of such
record. Beekeepers may be required by the City ond the
Nevodo Dspartment of Agriculure to submit such records In
response fo o nuisance complaint or regulatory enforcement
activities.

No beekeeper shall own or operate an oplary that exhibits
aggressive bee behavior, contains aplary pests, or is an
abandoned apiary.

No grandfathering rights shall be attached to any property, lot,
entity, organization, person, business, or Institution under this
Section.

High pollen and nectar producing plants must be provided con-site
for purposes of pollination and avoiding nectar dearths that
could cause aggressive behavior. Beekeepers shall maintain such
flowering plants in proportion to the number of hive boxes they
possess fo support bee foraging and os reflected in their site
plan.

An apiary establishment that offers products for sale must obtain
o producer’s certification from the Nevada Depariment of
Agriculture.

Beekeepers shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and
clty code, laws, regulations, and requirements.

Commercial and Industricl Districts

.

Hive boxes and beekeeping equipment shall be kept In a secure
location on the premises that is inaccessible to the public.

Beekeepers shall identify the beekeeper's nome ond telephone
number on all hive boxes in o mannar that is dearly readable. A
copy of the zonlng approval shall be placed in a conspicucus
place near the hive box.

City of Henderson | Development Code
Adopted 1/19/10 - Ravised 1/8/19 | Poge 5-70



CHAPTER 19.5: USE REGULATIONS

SECTION 19.5.5 COMMERCIAL USES | 19.5.5.D ANIMALS AND RELATED SERVICES

{d)

{e)

{f

(9}

il. An aplary establishment that offers products for sale must comply
with City business licensing requiraments,

{3) Residential Districts
i Hive boxes shall not be located In a front yard.

ti. Bees shall not be ralsed or bred for sale. Bees may be raised or
bred for the cultivation and sale of honey and other products in
compHance with the home occupation provisions of Section
19.5.7.D.5, and any other applicable law. However, the honey
extraction process may be performed in the same outdoor area
where the hive boxes are permitted to be maintained. Approval
of the City's business licensing division may also be required prior
to commencing any sales of bee products.

m. Hive boxes and beekeeping squipment shall be kept a minimum
of 10 feet from the side and 5 feet from the rear property lines
ond in 0 gated area that is inaccessible to the public.

Public Nuisance

The following may be declared to be public nulsonces subject to abatement,
removal, and/or destruction

(1) Bees other than as defined in this Section, abandoned colonles, diseased
bees, feral bees, or oggressive bees found to be living in hive boxes;

(2) Honey, honaycombs and beeswax contalning honey, if any of these items
are exposed to robber bees; or

(3) Any bees lacking on odequate fresh and clean supply of water on the
premises at all times.

The cost of abatement, removal, ond/or destruction of any of the above, may be
assessed against the beekeesper and/or the property aowner through the lien and
special assessment provisions of Title 15.

Off-Street Parking Requirement

No additional requirement beyond the applicable residentiol, commercial or
Industrial use requirement.

Off-Street Loading Group
None.
Penalty for Viclation

Failure to comply with the provisions of this Section or the terms of the zoning
approval will resvlt in a fine up to $500 per day per violation for each day the
violation continues and could result in revocation of the zoning approval for the
aplary. With respect to violations that are continuous, each day that the violation
continves is a separate offense. Nothing in this Section sholl be deemed to limit
the City's right to exercise remedles under Title 7, Title 15 or Section 19.11,
including the imposition of criminal penalties.

Clty of Henderson | Development Code
Adopted 1/19/10 — Revised 1/8/19 1 Page 5-71



26 South B Street, PO Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada 89440

Storey County
Planning Department
Storey County Courthouse

Phone 775-847-1144 - Fax 775-847-0949
planning@storeycounty.org

To:
From:

Meeting Date:

Meeting Location:

Staff Contact:
File:
Applicant:

Property Owner:

Property Location:

Request:

Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Storey County Planning Department

February 19, 201% at 10:00 a.m.

26 S. B Street, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada
Kathy Canfield

2019001

Stacy and Aaron Grimes

Stacy and Aaron Grimes

144 Elizabeth Lane, Mark Twain Estates, Storey County, Nevada, APN 003-314-
23

The applicants request a Special Use Permit (2019-001) to operate a home
enterprise. The home enterprise will consist of beekeeping (with a maximum of
20 hives), a greenhouse to grow produce and an agua farm structure for raising
fish. No retail sales of product will occur at the site. The property is
approximately 2.70 acres in size and is located at 144 Elizabeth Lane, Mark
Twain, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN} 003-314-23.

Summary of Planning Commission Meeting: The Planning Commission heard this request at their

February 7, 2019 meeting. The applicants explained their request and provided
information regarding beekeeping and their proposal. There were several
neighborhood residents that participated in the discussion that had concerns
regarding the impacts the bees may have on their neighborhood. Discussion
included level of aggression of different bee species, prohibition of Africanized
bees for safety reasons, size of hives and boxes, use of bees onsite and
elsewhere, possible hive creation in crawl=space of area mobile homes, number
of hives appropriate for a residential area with relatively small parcels, requiring
the SUP permit holder to reside at the property, what other jurisdictions do
including Carson City, Washoe County and City of Henderson, annual review of
the use to ensure minimal or no adverse impacts to surrounding neighborhood,
traffic and noise associated with the home enterprise business, sufficient well



water for the agua farm, whether the State Engineer may allow commercial
aqua farm use of domestic well water, and whether to hear the proposal again
in the Mark Twain community. The Planning Commission voted 5 in favor, 2
against, recommending approval of the proposed Special Use Permit, with three
additional recommended conditions of approval added, including a condition
that an annual compliance review of the operation be conducted.

Background & Analysis

A, Site Location and Characteristics: The property is located at 144 Elizabeth Lane in the
Mark Twain Estates area of Storey County. The property is 2.70 acres in size and
contains an existing single family residence. The property is relatively flat with a
drainage channel through the middle of the site. The property consists of Lots 145 and
146 of Mark Twain Estates Unit #7. Surrounding uses include 1.3 acre parcels with

residential land uses.

o ’ .".'":H

Lt 4

Vicinity Map




U S e T TR, g ) - s
P YA P e -
i TN T, AT L Ay P e~

g -« ]
IS

P.‘:‘- - '\

View looking east




Forton of SE™ Sec A HifN,Mece, MO B BM 3¥-3

T T T
£y N
(L] ; (L] 9 ‘ILIUI I \Il-z
B | b | ma EYee l ine !

I I |
-t

nICiy

WUTE ' Thin plai Is tar avssrmml wod pwy aan Mark Twain Estates Ut L 7
‘%w‘ < i mad a8 l:'.'..'l.'"llrﬁ" of 100 “‘l..wzlll‘ smy CmJNrY

o Soctus, Usa of mue slal for edber Them  nobabdgal
o STt s, T pucpoots |0 lesbrdides usis spprovsd By fhe Oupt
S Wamatbam Aioirian of Barkvameds Arandeoda

Assessor’s Parcel Map

B. Proposed Use: The Applicant is proposing to establish a home enterprise which
includes beekeeping, the growing of produce within a greenhouse, and an aqua farm.
No selling of product to the public will occur at the site.

In reviewing the proposed application, staff has two areas of interest, one being
allowing for a home enterprise to be located outside of the main residence and the
second being the beekeeping activity and the impact to surrounding property owners.

The proposed use by its nature is an outdoor use. The General Provisions chapter of the
Zoning Ordinance identifies regulations associated with home enterprises (see Section
1.D for the exact wording of this code section). Section 17.12.023.D.9 identifies uses by
their nature as being outdoor as permissible. Although this seems to be in conflict with
Section 17.12.023.D.1, these items are located in the same section and are on equal
basis. Since Section 17.12.023.D.9 is descriptive of what is permissible and what is being
proposed, staff agrees this home enterprise outdoor use is allowed for the parcel,
subject to all the other applicable conditions being met.

The second concern of the project has to do with the impacts of beekeeping to the
surrounding neighborhood. The applicant has requested approval for up to 20 hives to
be located on the property. The Storey County Code does not have any regulations in
regards to beekeeping for the Estates zoning or in the General Provisions of the Zoning
Code. The Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) Chapter 552 addresses Bees and Apiaries
(apiaries are defined as a hive or any place bees are kept and all appliances used in

4



connection with the bees). This NRS chapter does not have regulations regarding the
number of hives or development of the apiary on a property, but addresses bee
diseases and state oversight of transportation and diseases {see Appendix A of this staff
report}.

Beekeeping. In reviewing the applicant’s proposal, research found that Carson City and
the City of Henderson, Nevada, have ordinances addressing beekeeping. Carson City
has a regulation of a maximum of 10 hives for parcels of land between 1 and 5 acres.
The City of Henderson has a requirement that property between 2 and 5 acres be
limited to a maximum of 6 hives. Both of these ordinances are provided in Appendix B
and Appendix C of this staff report for reference.

Staff spoke with the State of Nevada, Department of Agriculture entomologist regarding
bees and beekeeping. Although he is not aware of this particular request, he did
provide general information regarding bees and beekeeping. When asked about studies
or rules regarding how many hives should be located on a property, he stated there are
too many variables to have a fixed rule for every location. Each hive can contain
between 20,000 and 40,000 bees. They tend to forage in a 2-mile radius from the hive
and a lot of the success for hives depends on the surrounding vegetation. The bees also
need a constant water source and providing that near the hives will help keep the bees
from looking for water on surrounding properties.

T ; A
Y AP { i+ Sl o T
Approximate 2 mile radius from proposed hives.

Zoning Code. The property is zoned Estates which allows for “Agricultural and
horticultural uses for domestic purposes and incidental to the permitted uses” on the
parcel. The parcel contains an existing single family dwelling and the proposed uses are
accessory to the primary residential use of the property.

5



Chapter 17.12.023 {General Provisions for all zones} states the following in regarding to
home enterprises:

17.12.023 Home Enterprises

A. This section applies to any home enterprise.

B. In zones where a home enterprise is allowed, the home enterprise must comply with
the provisions of Title 5 Business Licenses, and a special use permit may be required
pursuant (o subsection (C) below.

C. A special use permit approved by the board with action by the planning commission
is required if the home enterprise may:

L

Involve entry into the residential building or accessory building by customers,
patrons. or other such persons not permanently residing on the property,

Involve seven or more motor vehicle visits per week, or two or more on any given
day, 1o the subject property;

Involve the storage or use of flammable or hazardous substances. storage of
products being sold that would increase fire loading to a level over the above
standard for residential properties, or involve activities that may be potentially
harmful or hazardous (e.g., welding, automotive painting, etc.} to surrounding
residences and uses;

Involve outdoor storage. or

Produce noise, odor, dust, smoke, light, vehicular traffic, or other disturbances
that would adversely affect the health, safety, or general welfare of surrounding
residences, or the residential character of the surrounding area. without proper
mitigation.

D. The following minimum standards apply to any home enterprise, regardless if a
special use permit is or is not required:

L:

The home enterprise must be operated entirely within the interior portions of the
principal residential building or accessory building on the lot by a person or
persons residing in the principal dwelling unit;

The home enterprise use must be clearly a subservient uses to the dwelling for
residential purposes. The home enterprise must not change the residential
character of the dwelling unit or the residential property;

No more than one vehicle with commercial advertising displayed may be parked
on the premises except within an entirely enclosed building. Such vehicle stored
outside of the enclosed building must not exceed 10,000 pounds gross vehicle
weight rating (GVWR).

. There may be no manufacturing, processing. or similar activities on the premises

which generate noise, odor. dust, vibration, fumes, smoke, electrical interference,
vehicle traffic exceeding the number stated in this section, storage of items which
increase fire load. or other adverse impacts to adjacent properties.

. The home enterprise may not be operated by a resident-tenant without the written

consent of the owner of the real properiy.



6. No employees of the business may report for duty at or near the residence.

7. The home enterprise must comply with the provisions of Title 5 Business Licenses
of the county code.

8. One non-lighted advertising sign of four square-feet may be allowed on the
property. The sign must comply with chapter 17.84 Signs and Billboards.

9. Home pet and plant sales. In any CR, R, E, or SPR zone, a person may keep or
cultivate pets or raise fowl, bushes, trees, berries, or crops, or sell pets, fowl,
eggs. or crops from the premises, providing that no stores or stands are
constructed for the purpose, the operation is not conducted as a regular
commercial enterprise, and the activity is not in violation of this chapter or any
other ordinance.

As a part of the Special use Permit conditions of approval, the above regulations shall be
incorporated into any approval of the proposed project at this site.

D. Special Use Permit. A Special Use Permit is required because of the home enterprise
and the potential impact to adjacent properties. Section 17.03.150 of the Storey County
Code identifies the process for Special Use Permits. The applicant and this report follow
the requirements outlined in the Code.

E. Staff recommendation: The applicant has requested up to 20 bee hives be allowed on
the property. The Storey County Code and the Nevada Revised Statutes do not have any
regulations as to the amount of hives acceptable on a property based on property size.
The limiting amount will be based on the making the finding of “no substantial negative
impact to adjacent land uses.” Based on an estimate of 20,000 to 40,000 bees per hive,
a maximum of 20 hives would potentially provide 400,000 to 800,000 bees, the majority
located within a 2-mile radius bees typically use for foraging according to personnel of
the Nevada Department of Agriculture.

Based on research of other communities within Nevada that have beekeeping
ordinances, and the limiting amounts these communities have adopted, staff
recommends a maximum of 10 hives be permitted at this time. Storey County has no
other similar projects within the County for reference and staff believes the 10 hives are
consistent with other jurisdictions for the size of the parcel.

Staff has also proposed that if after a two year period of operation, if no valid nuisance
complaints associated with the beekeeping have occurred, the applicant may request
this Special Use Permit be revisited to allow for additional hives to be added to the site.
This would be done as an amendment to the Special Use Permit and follow the planning
process including notification to adjacent property owners.

Use Compatibility and Compliance

A, Compatibility with surrounding uses and zones. The following table documents land

uses, zaning classification and master plan designations for the land at and surrounding
the proposed project. There are no evident conflicts between the proposed project and



Storey County Title 17 Zoning or the 2016 Master Plan. The proposed use is also
consistent with the surrounding zoning and master plan designations.

Land Use Master Plan Designation Zoning
Applicant’s Land residential Estate — Rural Residential E - Estates
Land to the North residential Estate — Rural Residential E - Estates
Land to the East residential Estate — Rural Residential E - Estates
Land to the South residential Estate — Rural Residential E - Estates
Land to the West residential Estate — Rural Residential E - Estates

General use allowances and restrictions. Storey County Code 17.03.150, Special Use
Permit, identifies the administration for the Board and Planning Commission for
allowing a special use permit. The approval, approval with conditions, or denial of the
Special Use Permit must be based on findings of fact that the proposed use is
appropriate or inappropriate in the location. The findings listed below are the minimum
to be cited in an approval, with rationale for the findings included below each finding.

(1) Complies with the general purpose, goals, objectives, and standards of the
county master plan, this title, and any other plan, program, map, or ordinance
adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the county.

The proposed use will be a home enterprise agricultural and horticultural
outdoor activity which is permitted with a Special Use Permit for the Estates
zoning district. The proposed use maintains the rural characteristics of the
surrounding area.

(2) The proposal location, size, height, operations, and other significant features
will be compatible with and will not cause substantial negative impact on
adjacent land uses, or will perform a function or provide a service that is
essential to the surrounding land uses, community, and neighborhood.

The proposed home enterprise will utilize an outdoor area within the parcel for
beekeeping, greenhouse(s) for growing produce and an aqua farm. No retail
sales will occur at the property.

The applicant has requested up to 20 bee hives be allowed on the property
which are estimated to house 400,000 to 800,000 bees. Staff recommends a
more cautious approach to the amount of hives/bees and suggests a maximum
of 10 hives be permitted {half the proposed amount the applicant has
requested), with the option of revisiting the amount of hives after a two year
implementation period.

(3} Will result in no substantial or undue adverse effect on adjacent property, the
character of the neighborhood, traffic conditions, parking, public
improvements, public sites or right-of-way, or other matters affecting the
public health, safety, and general welfare, either as they now exist or as they
may in the future be developed as a result of the implementation of the
provisions and policies of the county master plan, this title, and any other

8



plans, program, map or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to
an official notice, by the county, or other governmental agency having
jurisdiction to guide growth and development.

The proposed home enterprise will not generate additional traffic to the
neighborhood as no retail sales will occur at the site.

Staff recommends a maximum of 10 hives be permitted at the site at this time.
Bees, by their nature, go wherever they desire. The applicant can provide plants
and a water source onsite which can add to the habitat the bees desire, keeping
them on the property to an extent by offering their needs, but it is not
anticipated that the bees would stay on the property.

Staff is recommending the maximum 10 hives exist for a 2 year period prior to
considering an additional amount of hives be added to the site. If after that
time frame there haven’t been any issues identified by the neighbors, the
applicant could request additional hives.

If, however, Storey County receives complaints regarding problems with the
bees, staff reserve the right to review the Special Use Permit. This may include
reducing the number of hives, removal of hives, or following the Abatement of
Nuisances process identified in Section 17.03.045 in the Storey County Zoning
Ordinance.

{4) The proposed use in the proposed area will be adequately served by and will
impose no undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities, or
services provided by the county or other governmental agency having
jurisdiction in the county.

The proposed use is not expected to require any additional governmental
services or impact existing facilities.

C. Conformance with the 2016 Storey County Master Plan. The property is located within

the Mark Twain area of Storey County. The area is comprised of parcels from one acre
to 40 acres in size. The Master Plan states “Protecting the area rural lifestyle, safety,
and water resources and mitigating known alluvial flooding conditions in the adjacent
Mark Twain Estates should be considered of foremost importance when considering
new development in this area.” The Storey County Master Plan identifies the goal of
making land use decisions that maintain the existing character of the community. The
proposed home enterprise that includes agricultural and horticultural uses along with
the primary residence on the property maintain the rural characteristics of the Mark
Twain Area.

3. Findings of Fact

A. Motion for approval {Planning Commission and staff recommendation}. The following
findings of fact are evident with regard to the requested special use permit when the




recommended conditions of approval in Section 4, Recommended Conditions of
Approval, are applied.

(1) This approval is for Special Use Permit 2019-001 to operate a home enterprise.
The home enterprise will consist of beekeeping {with a maximum of 10 hives), a
greenhouse to grow produce and an Agua farm structure for raising fish. No
retail sales of product will occur at the site. The property is approximately 2.70
acres in size and is located at 144 Elizabeth Lane, Mark Twain, Storey County,
Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 003-314-23.

(2} The proposed project complies with the general purpose, goals, objectives, and
standards of the county master plan, this title, and any other plan, program,
map, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice
by the county.

(3) The proposal location, size, height, operations, and other significant features
will be compatible with and will not cause substantial negative impact on
adjacent land uses, or will perform a function or provide a service that is
essential to the surrounding land uses, community, and neighborhood.

(4} The proposed project will result in no substantial or undue adverse effect on
adjacent property, the character of the neighborhood, traffic conditions,
parking, public improvements, public sites or right-of-way, or other matters
affecting the public health, safety, and general welfare, either as they now exist
or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the implementation of
the provisions and policies of the county master plan, this title, and any other
plans, program, map or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to
an official natice, by the county, or other governmental agency having
jurisdiction to guide growth and development.

(5} The proposed use in the proposed area will be adequately served by and will
impose no undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities, or
services provided by the county or other governmental agency having
jurisdiction in the county.

(6) The Special Use Permit conforms to the 2016 Storey County Master Plan for the
Mark Twain planning area in which the subject property is located. A discussion
supporting this finding is provided in Section 2.C of this staff report and the
contents thereof are cited in an approval of this Special Use Permit.

(7} The conditions under the Special Use Permit do not conflict with the minimum
requirements in Storey County Code Sections 17.03.150, Special Use Permit and
Section 17.40 E - Estate Zone.

Alternative motion for approval (applicant request).

(1) This approval is for Special Use Permit 2019-001 to operate a home enterprise.
The home enterprise will consist of beekeeping (with a maximum of 20 hives), a

10



greenhouse to grow produce and an Aqua farm structure for raising fish. No
retail sales of product will occur at the site. The property is approximately 2.70
acres in size and is located at 144 Elizabeth Lane, Mark Twain, Storey County,
Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 003-314-23.

{2) The proposed project complies with the general purpose, goals, objectives, and
standards of the county master plan, this title, and any other plan, program,
map, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice
by the county.

{(3) The proposal location, size, height, operations, and other significant features
will be compatible with and will not cause substantial negative impact on
adjacent land uses, or will perform a function or provide a service that is
essential to the surrounding land uses, community, and neighborhood.

{6) The proposed project will result in no substantial or undue adverse effect on
adjacent property, the character of the neighborhood, traffic conditions,
parking, public improvements, public sites or right-of-way, or other matters
affecting the public health, safety, and general welfare, either as they now exist
or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the implementation of
the provisions and policies of the county master plan, this title, and any other
plans, program, map or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to
an official notice, by the county, or other governmental agency having
jurisdiction to guide growth and development.

{7) The proposed use in the proposed area will be adequately served by and will
impose no undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities, or
services provided by the county or other governmental agency having
jurisdiction in the county.

(3] The Special Use Permit conforms to the 2016 Storey County Master Plan for the
Mark Twain planning area in which the subject property is located. A discussion
supporting this finding is provided in Section 2.C of this staff report and the
contents thereof are cited in an approval of this Special Use Permit.

(8) The conditions under the Special Use Permit do not conflict with the minimum
requirements in Storey County Code Sections 17.03.150, Special Use Permit and
Section 17.40 £ - Estate Zone.

Motion for denial. Should a motion be made to deny the Special Use Permit request,
the following findings with explanation why should be included in that motion.

(1) This denial is for Special Use Permit 2019-001 to operate a home enterprise.
The home enterprise will consist of beekeeping, a greenhouse to grow produce
and an Aqua farm structure for raising fish. No retail sales of product will occur
at the site. The property is approximately 2.70 acres in size and is located at
144 Elizabeth Lane, Mark Twain, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel
Number (APN) 003-314-23.

11



(2) The conditions under the Special Use Permit conflict with the minimum
requirements in Storey County Code Sections 17.03.150, Special Use Permit and
Section 17.40 E — Estate Zone.

(3) The conditions under the Special Use Permit do not adequately mitigate
potential adverse impacts on surrounding uses or protect against potential
safety hazards for surrounding use.

4, Recommended Conditions of Approval

A.

Special Use Permit. Special Use Permit 2019-001 is to operate a home enterprise. The
home enterprise will consist of beekeeping (with a maximum of 10 hives), greenhouse(s)
to grow produce and an agua farm structure for raising fish. No retail sales of product
will occur at the site. The property is approximately 2.70 acres in size and is located at
144 Elizabeth Lane, Mark Twain, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number
(APN) 003-314-23.

Home Enterprise. This special use permit authorizes an agricultural and horticultural
home enterprise accessory use to the existing residential use on the property. The
business activities shall be limited to the interior of the building with the exception of
the beekeeping and installation of greenhouse(s) and the aqua farm building. No
employees of the business may report for duty at or near the residence. There may be
no manufacturing, processing, or similar activities on the premises which generate
noise, odor, dust, vibration, fumes, smoke, electrical interference, vehicle traffic,
storage of items which increase fire load or other adverse impacts to adjacent
properties. The home enterprise must be subservient to the residential dwelling.

Requirements. The Permit Holder shall apply for all required permits and licenses,
including any applicable building and fire permits, for the project within 24 months from
the date of final approval of this SUP, and continuously maintain the validity of those
permits/licenses, or this approval shall be null and void. This Special Use Permit shall
remain valid as long as the Applicant remains in compliance with the terms of this
Special Use Permit and Storey County, State of Nevada, and federal regulations. No
activity shall commence prior to the Applicant securing rights to the Special Use Permit.

Compliance. The use on the subject property must comply with federal, state, and
county codes and regulations and the submitted plans as approved. The Permit Holder
shall be responsible for maintaining the premises and managing operations in
accordance with all conditions and stipulations set forth by this Special Use Permit and
all other federal, Nevada State, and Storey County codes and regulations. Failure to
comply with the requirements herein shall elicit a written warning to the Permit Holder
by Storey County on the first and second offense. A third offense shall warrant Storey
County to revoke the Special Use Permit. Storey County shall reserve the right to
conduct periodic reviews of the Permit Holder's compliance with all conditions and
stipulations of the Special Use Permit.

12



Business License. The home enterprise must comply with the provisions of Title 5
business licenses of the county code.

Property Taxes. Before obtaining the Special Use Permit from the Planning
Department, the Property Owner must provide evidence that all property taxes on the
land are paid-to-date.

Indemnification/Insurance. The Permit Holder warrants that the use of land will
conform to the requirements of Storey County, State of Nevada, and applicable federal
regulatory and legal requirements; further, the Permit Holder warrants that continued
and future use of the land shall so conform. The Permit Holder agrees to hold Storey
County, its officers, and representatives harmless from the costs associated with any
damage or liability, and any/all other claims now existing or which may occur as a result
of this Special Use Permit.

Transfer of Rights. This Special Use Permit (SUP 2019-001) is non-transferable. This
Special Use Permit applies to the Permit Holder/Property Owner listed in this permit
and may not be transferred to new owners of the property.

Water Source and Use.

{1) Hives. The Permit Holder shall provide an adequate onsite continuous water source
for the hives in an amount large enough to serve the number of occupied hives on
the property.

{(2) Fish. The Permit Holder shall demonstrate that the proposed water usage
associated with the aqua farm does not exceed the water rights associated with the
property. Documentation from the State of Nevada, Division of Water Resources
demonstrating adequate water rights exist for all uses on the property shall be
provided prior to any installation of the proposed aqua farm facility.

(3) Vector Control. Any water sources on the property must be maintained fresh, clean
and such to prevent the breeding and germination of disease vectors (e.g.
mosquitos and their eggs, etc...}.

Site Layout. The proposed hives and associated water source shall be centrally located
on the property. All other structures shall meet Estates zoning setback requirements.
The Permit Holder shall submit a site plan {hand-drawn is acceptable) reasonably drawn
to scale, of the overall site layout, for Storey County review and approval.

Drainage. The existing drainage channel through the parcel shall be maintained to allow
for flow through the property. This condition may be waived in the future if drainage
improvements to the overall neighborhood are implemented that redirects the drainage
away from the parcel.

Nevada Department of Agriculture. The Permit Holder shall comply with all
requirements of the Nevada Department of Agriculture as related to the bees, growing
of produce and the associated home enterprise and shall comply with Chapter 552 of
the Nevada Revised Statutes.

13



Nevada Department of Behavioral and Public Health. The Permit Holder shall comply
with all requirements of the Nevada Department of Behavioral and Public Health for all
item associated with the home enterprise.

Lot Consolidation. The Permit Holder shall consolidate Lots 145 and 146 into one legal
lot of record prior to an activity commencing on the property if any accessory use is
proposed to be constructed on Lot 146.

State/Federal Taxes. Whenever Nevada law requires the payment of a sales and/or use
tax, all materials and equipment purchased or rented for this project shall when feasible
be received in Storey County and the value reported as ‘county-of-delivery’ on the
Nevada Dept. of Taxation form TXR-01.01 ‘Sales/Use Tax Return’.

Abandonment/Abatement. In the event that the bee hives are abandoned either by
bees or the Permit Holder for a period of any two consecutive years commencing after
the installation of the hives, Storey County shall reserve the right to deem the facility
abandoned and mandate the hives be removed within 180 days thereof at the Permit
Holder's expense. The Permit Holder shall reserve the right to appeal the decision of
abandonment. The process for the appeal shall be as pursuant to Chapter 17.03
Administrative Provisions of the Storey County Code. Removal and reclamation shall
include complete removal of the bee hives and associated equipment.

Nuisance. Any complaints regarding the proposed uses authorized by this Special Use
Permit shall be investigated by the County and if appropriate, will follow the process
outlined Section 17.03.045 — Abatement of Public Nuisances, and may include
revocation of the Special Use Permit.

Maximum Hive Number. This permit authorizes a maximum 10 hives on the property.
After a two year time period from the date of installation of the hives, and if there are
no valid complaints on-file from the abutting properties during this time, the Permit
Holder may apply to Storey County for additional hives on the property. Additional
hives may be approved by the Board of County Commissioners, with action by the
Planning Commission, during a public hearing process and review of any issues
associated with the initial two year period of implementation and a review of any
impacts on the surrounding neighborhood. This is not to be construed as a guarantee
for the granting of additional hives or any number of hives. Action that occurs during
the meeting will not affect the existing special use permit or its conditions, except as
may apply to additional entitlements given or by mutual consent of the County and
Permit Holder.

Residence. The Permit Holder shall reside on the property.

Africanized Bees. Africanized bees shall not be permitted.

Annual Review. At a regularly scheduled public meeting on or about the month of
February 2020, the Planning Commission, with coordination from the Permit Holder,
shall review the operations at the property and determine any significant impacts of the
proposed operation has on the adjacent neighborhood. At that time, if any negative

14



impacts are identified and brought to the attention of the Planning Commission or
County staff, additional mitigating conditions may be added to the Special Use Permit by
the Board with action/recommendation by the Planning Commission. if no additional
mitigation measures are imposed, no Board of County Commissioners review shall be
required. At the Annual Review, the Planning Commission shall determine if further
annual reviews are required.

Public Comment

As of January 29, 2019, Staff has not received any comments from the public. An email from
Lyon County was received supporting the project with the recommended conditions of approval
applied. Several neighboring property owners provided comments at the Planning Commission
meeting.

Power of the Board

At the conclusion of the hearing, the Board of County Commissioners must take such action
thereon as it deems warranted under the circumstances and announce and record its action by
formal resolution, and such resolution must recite the findings of the Board of County
Commissioners upon which it bases its decision.

Proposed Motions

This section contains three motions from which to choose. The first motion (A) for approval is
recommended by the Planning Commission and staff in accordance with the findings under
Section 3.A of this report and limits the amount of hives on the property to a maximum of 10.
The second motion (B) for approval is requested by the Applicant and allows for a maximum of
20 hives on the property. The third motion (C) is a motion for denial and that motion should cite
one or more of the findings shown in Section 3.B. Other findings of fact determined appropriate
by the Board of County Commissioners should be made part of either motion.

A. Recommended motion for approval {Planning Commission and staff recommendation)

In accordance with the recommendation by the Planning Commission and staff, the
findings of fact under Section 3.A of this report, and other findings deemed appropriate
by the Board of County Commissioners, and in compliance with the conditions of
approval, | (county commissioner), move to approve Special Use Permit 2019-001 to
allow for operation of a home enterprise. The home enterprise will consist of
beekeeping {with a maximum of 10 hives), a greenhouse to grow produce and an aqua
farm structure for raising fish. No retail sales of product will occur at the site. The
property is approximately 2.70 acres in size and is located at 144 Elizabeth Lane, Mark
Twain, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 003-314-23.

B. Alternative motion for approval (applicant’s request)

Against the recommendation of the Planning Commission and staff, the findings of fact
under Section 3.A of this report, and other findings deemed appropriate by the Board of

15



County Commissioners, and in compliance with the conditions of approval, deleting
Recommended Condition of Approval R and amending Condition of Approval A to a
maximurmn of 20 hives, | {county commissioner), move to approve Special Use Permit
2019-001 to allow for operation of a home enterprise. The home enterprise will consist
of beekeeping (with a maximum of 20 hives), a greenhouse to grow produce and an
aqua farm structure for raising fish. No retail sales of product will occur at the site. The
property is approximately 2.70 acres in size and is located at 144 Elizabeth Lane, Mark
Twain, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN} 003-314-23.

C. Alternative motion for denial

Against the recommendation by the Planning Commission and staff, but in accordance
with the findings of fact under Section 3.2 of this report, and other findings deemed
appropriate by the Board of County Commissioners, | (county commissioner), move to
deny Special Use Permit 2019-001 to allow for operation of a home enterprise. The
home enterprise will consist of beekeeping, a greenhouse to grow produce and an agua
farm structure for raising fish. No retail sales of product will occur at the site. The
property is approximately 2.70 acres in size and is located at 144 Elizabeth Lane, Mark
Twain, Storey County, Nevada, Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 003-314-23.

Appendix A — NRS Chapter 552
Appendix B — Carson City Code Chapter 7.02

Appendix C — City of Henderson Chapter 19.5

16



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: February 19, 2019 Estimate of time required: 15 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [ X | Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Consideration and possible approval of Storey County Multidisciplinary
Memorandum of Understanding regarding to strengthen commumnity support and services
for vulnerable populations in Storey County.

2 Recommended motion: 1| (Commissioner) move to approve the Storey
County Multidisciplinary Team Memorandum of Understanding

3. Prepared by: Keith Loomis

4. Department: District Attorney’s Office Telephone: 847-0964
5. Staff summary: In late 2017, representatives from various Storey County entities

including the Fire Protection District, Community services, Senior Center, Sheriff, and
Community Chest, Inc, came together with a shared goal of strengthening community
support and services for vulnerable populations in Storey County. The result of these
meetings throughout the past year is the MOU that is being presented for possible approval
that outlines what the various entities will as the Storey County Multidisciplinary team.
The team will be engaged in developing and implementing plans to strengthen behavioral
health resources and coordination in Storey County.

6. Supporting materials: Storey County Multidisciplinary Team Memorandum of
Understanding

7. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

8. Legal review required:

X__ Dastrict Attorney
8. Reviewed by:

{77



Department Head Department Name:
County Manager Other agency review:

Board action:
[] Approved

[ Approved with Modifications
] Denied [

Continued

L —

Agenda Item No.



Storey County Multidisciplinary Team Memorandum of
Understanding

WHEREAS, Storey County’s stakeholders have come together with the shared goal of
stabilizing individuals experiencing chronic crisis by addressing their basic needs and
behavioral health concems, and increasing access lo care.

WHEREAS, a multidisciplinary team of community leaders and decision-makers has
been established, and has committed to strengthen community supports and services
for vuinerable populations in Storey County;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Storey County Muitidisciplinary Team
will serve as the team of county leaders, stakeholders, and decision-makers, who will
engage in developing and implementing a plan to strengthen behavioral health
resources and coordination in the county.

Purpose

This memorandum of understanding (MOU) sets forth the basic terms under which the
agencies listed herein agree to participate in meeting the goals of the Storey County
Multidisciplinary Team. The agencies hereby agree, except to the extent that any such
agency listed herein is restricted by federal law, state law/rules, or policy, to pledge the
resources and assistance to initiate and implement a successful program as described
in the agency commitment section of this MOU. Each agency participant agrees to
adhere to the roles and responsibilities as stated below, and will support the goals and
objectives of the Storey County Multidisciplinary Team, including participating in short-
term and long- term strategic planning activities. Storey County Multidisciplinary Team
will focus on development and sustainability within the community, as well as
development and implementation of a coordinated community response to those living
with behavioral health issues, including mental health and substance use disorders.

1. Participate in collaborative efforts that will identify community gaps, needs, and
priorities and will result in strategic planning efforts.

2. Create a multidisciplinary community response to address and support
individuals facing barriers such as transportation, lack of medical care, behavioral
health issues, and other basic needs, and those who are or may be involved in

the criminal justice system,



3. Develop and formalize relationships and processes that allow community
providers, law enforcement, and emergency services to coordinate response to
calis that might include behavioral health issues and domestic violence;

4. Provide and participate in training programs (e.g., CIT, Mental Health First Aid) to
assist law enforcement, first responders, local courts, and health and human
services organizations in recognizing and addressing the needs of those living
with behavioral health issues and experiencing self-neglect and abuse.

Mission and Vision of the Storey County Multidisciplinary Team

Mission: Creating and sustaining a culture of collaboration within Storey County which
includes planning and developing an integrated and efficient health and social services
system across all the county, through community mobilization, development &
advocacy.

Vision: A community that respects, supports, and embraces vuinerable populations that
may experience behavioral health issues, and whose systems of health, behavioral
health, law enforcement, justice, human services, public safety, and advocacy work
together in a deliberate and coordinated fashion to optimize the level of services
provided for them in order to prevent crisis and decrease risk of incarceration in the
county detention center.

Values:

Promoting a culture of colfaboration, and follow through.

Maintaining consistency in services and schedules.

Maintaining open communication

Understanding that everyone plays a vital role, and maintaining commitment to
overcome barriers and find solutions together.

e Treating every client with respect and dignily as we consider everyone of equal
value.

Working to build trust among providers and our clients.

Prioritizing the health of our people and our communities.

Agency Commitments

Storey County Sheriff's Office will:



e Provide leadership for this initiative in their role as the criminal justice
collaborating agency,

e Actively participate and be represented on the Storey County Multidisciplinary
Team that will be responsible for strategic planning and implementing this cross-
disciplinary initiative;

e Actively participate in an initial planning process that will begin to develop an
initial local community response for individuals who are living with mental illness
or co-occurring mental health, substance abuse disorders, health issues, and are
lacking access to basic needs and services.

e Commit an agreed upon percentage of officers to be trained in appropriate law
enforcement trainings that target work with those with mental illness or co-
occurring substance use [e.g., Crisis Intervention Team (CIT), Mental Health First
Aid);

e Review agency policies and protocols to ensure they are responsive to the needs
of those living with mental health or co-occurring mental health and substance
abuse disorders;

¢ Participate in evaluation by gathering and reporting statistical data as required by
the grant program.

Community Chest will:

e Provide leadership for this initiative in their role as behavioral health
collaborating agency,

e \We commit to being an active partner with full participation in the Storey County
Multidisciplinary Team whose goal will be to identify resources for individuals
who are living with mental illness or co-occurring mental health, substance abuse
disorders, health issues, and are lacking access to basic needs and services.

e Participate in the initial, ongoing planning and development through
representation on the Storey County Multidisciplinary Team in an effort to
improve outcomes for this target population;



e Help Storey County evaluate service gaps and needs, and identify resources for
individuals who are living with mental iliness or ¢o-occurring mental health,
substance abuse disorders, health issues, and are lacking access to basic needs
and services.

e Provide CIT and Mental Health First Aid training as available within our resources
and assist with locating additional resources to meet the need of the community
as Storey County implements strategies to improve outcomes for this target
population; and

e Will be an engaged partner in the Storey County Multidisciplinary Team even
while not responsible for managing or administering any grants associated with
this effort.

¢ Provide trauma-informed training for an agreed upon percentage of those staff
who are actively involved in the comprehensive community response to those
living with mental iliness or co-occurring mental iliness and substance abuse and
are involved in the criminal justice system;

Storey County Senior Services

e Actively participate and be represented on the Storey County Multidisciplinary
Team that will be responsible for strategic planning and implementing this cross-
disciplinary initiative,

e Actively participate in an initial planning process that will begin to develop an
initial local community response to the issue of those citizens, who are living with
mental illness or co-occurring mental health, substance abuse disorders, health
issues, and are lacking access to basic needs and services.

e Review agency policies and protocols to ensure that they are responsive to the
needs of those living with mental iliness or co-occurring mental health and
substance abuse disorders, including training to staff;

e Commit an agreed upon percentage of agency staff to be trained in how to work
with those with mental illness or co-occurring substance use [e.g., Crisis
Intervention Team (CIT), Mental Health First Aid];

e Be an active partner in the continuum of health related services for the target
population, including screening, assessment, treatment follow-up services, and
referral to the appropriate local service continuum; and



e Participate in evaluation by gathering and reporting statistical data as required by

the grant program.

Storey County Fire Protection District

Actively participate and be represented on the Storey County Multidisciplinary
Team that will be responsible for strategic planning and implementing this cross-
disciplinary initiative;

Actively participate in an initial planning process that will begin to develop an
initial local community response to the issue of those citizens, who are living with
mental iliness or co-occurring mental health, substance abuse disorders, health
issues, and are lacking access to basic needs and services.

Review agency policies and protocols to ensure that they are responsive to the
needs of those living with mental iliness or co-occurring mentai health and
substance abuse disorders, including training to staff;

Commit an agreed upon percentage of agency staff to be trained in how to work
with those with mental illness or co-occurring substance use [e.g., Crisis
Intervention Team (CIT), Mental Health First Aid];

Be an active partner in the continuum of health related services for the target
population, including screening, assessment, treatment follow-up services, and
referral to the appropriate local service continuum; and

Participate in evaluation by gathering and reporting statistical data as required by
the grant program.

Storey County

Actively participate and be represented on the Storey County Muitidisciplinary
Team that will be responsible for strategic planning and implementing this cross-
disciplinary initiative;

e Actively participate in an initial planning process that will begin to develop an

initial local community response to the issue of those citizens, who are living with
mental illness or co-occurring mental health, substance abuse disorders, health
issues, and are lacking access to basic needs and services.



¢ Review agency policies and protocols to ensure that they are responsive to the
needs of those living with mental iliness or co-occurring mental health and
substance abuse disorders, including training to staff;

o Commit an agreed upon percentage of agency staff to be trained in how to work
with those with mental illness or co-occurring substance use [e.g., Crisis
Intervention Team (CIT), Mental Health First Aid];

e Participate in evaluation by gathering and reporting statistical data as required by
the grant program.

TERM

e This MOU shall be effective beginning (date) and is intended to continue for a
term of three (3) years, automatically renewing for successive three (3) year
periods upon the execution date of this agreement. The parties commit, but are
not obligated, to give thirty (30) days written notice that it does not wish to renew
participation in the MOU. All notices required or permitted under this MOU shall
be in writing and shall conclusively be deemed to have been delivered upon (a)
personal delivery, (b) successful facsimile transmission, or (c) electronic mail to
the Project Director at Storey County, who will be responsible for giving notice to
agencies listed herein.

TERMINATION

The agencies may jointly terminate this MOU by unanimous action at any time. Any
agency shall have the authority to terminate its participation for its convenience and
commits to give thirty (30) notice to the Project Director of its intent to terminate its
participation. However, the withdrawal of less than all of the agencies shall not act as a
termination of the MOU or the responsibilities of the remaining agencies in accordance
with the terms of the MOU.

Dated this , day of , 2019.
Storey County
Attest:
By. Marshall McBride Vanessa Stephens
Chairman Board of County Storey County Clerk/Treasurer

Commissioners of Storey County



Dated this day of

Storey County Fire Protection District

, 2019,

By:

Dated this day of , 2019.

Storey County Senior Services

By:

Dated this day of , 2019.
Storey County Sheriff's Office

By: Gerald Antinoro, Sheriff

Dated this day of , 2019,

Community Chest, tnc.

Signed by:



Board of Commissioners of the Storey County Fire

Protection District
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: February 19, 2019 Estimate of time required: 15 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [ X | Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Consideration and possible approval of Storey County Multidisciplinary
Memorandum of Understanding regarding to strengthen community support and services
for vulnerable populations in Storey County.

2 Recommended motion: | (Commissioner) move to approve the Storey
County Multidisciplinary Team Memorandum of Understanding

3. Prepared by: Keith Loomis

4. Department: District Attorney’s Office Telephone: 847-0964

5. Staff summary: In late 2017, representatives from various Storey County entities
including the Fire Protection District, Community services, Senior Center, Sheriff, and
Community Chest, Inc, came together with a shared goal of strengthening community
support and services for vulnerable populations in Storey County. The result of these
meetings throughout the past year is the MOU that is being presented for possible approval
that outlines what the various entities will as the Storey County Multidisciplinary team.
The team will be engaged in developing and implementing plans to strengthen behavioral
health resources and coordination in Storey County.

6. Supporting materials: Storey County Multidisciplinary Team Memorandum of
Understanding

7. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

8. Legal review required:
X  District Attorney I q



8.

Reviewed by:

Department Head
County Manager

Board action:

[] Approved
[] Denied

Department Name:

Other agency review:

) bl

Approved with Modifications
Continued

Agenda Item No.



Storey County Multidisciplinary Team Memorandum of
Understanding

WHEREAS, Storey County’s stakeholders have come together with the shared goal of
stabilizing individuals experiencing chronic crisis by addressing their basic needs and
behavioral health concems, and increasing access to care.

WHEREAS, a multidisciplinary team of community leaders and decision-makers has
been established, and has committed fo strengthen community supports and services
for vulnerable populations in Storey County;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Storey County Multidisciplinary Team
will serve as the team of county leaders, stakeholders, and decision-makers, who will
engage in developing and implementing a plan to strengthen behavioral health
resources and coordination in the county.

Purpose

This memorandum of understanding (MOU) sets forth the basic terms under which the
agencies listed herein agree to participate in meeting the goals of the Storey County
Multidisciplinary Team. The agencies hereby agree, except to the extent that any such
agency listed herein is restricted by federal law, state law/rules, or policy, to pledge the
resources and assistance to initiate and implement a successful program as described
in the agency commitment section of this MOU. Each agency participant agrees to
adhere to the roles and responsibilities as stated below, and will support the goals and
objectives of the Storey County Multidisciplinary Team, including participating in short-
term and long- term strategic planning activities. Storey County Multidisciplinary Team
will focus on development and sustainability within the community, as well as
development and implementation of a coordinated community response to those living
with behavioral health issues, including mental health and substance use disorders.

1. Participate in coliaborative efforts that will identify community gaps, needs, and
priorities and will result in strategic planning efforts.

2. Create a multidisciplinary community response to address and support
individuals facing barriers such as transportation, lack of medical care, behavioral
health issues, and other basic needs, and those who are or may be involved in
the criminal justice system;



3. Develop and formalize relationships and processes that allow community
providers, law enforcement, and emergency services to coordinate response to
calls that might include behavioral health issues and domestic violence;

4. Provide and participate in training programs (e.g., CIT, Mental Health First Aid) to
assist law enforcement, first responders, local courts, and health and human
services organizations in recognizing and addressing the needs of those living
with behavioral health issues and experiencing self-neglect and abuse.

Mission and Vision of the Storey County Multidisciplinary Team

Mission: Creating and sustaining a culture of collaboration within Storey County which
includes planning and developing an integrated and efficient health and social services
system across all the county, through community mobilization, development &
advocacy.

Vision: A community that respects, supports, and embraces vuinerable populations that
may experience behavioral health issues, and whose systems of health, behavioral
health, law enforcement, justice, human services, public safety, and advocacy work
together in a deliberate and coordinated fashion to optimize the level of services
provided for them in order to prevent crisis and decrease risk of incarceration in the
county detention center.

Values:

Promoting a culture of collaboration, and follow through.

Maintaining consistency in services and schedules.

Maintaining open communication

Understanding that everyone plays a vital role, and maintaining commitment to
overcome barriers and find solutions together.

e Treating every client with respect and dignity as we consider everyone of equal
value.

Working to build trust among providers and our clients.

Prionitizing the health of our people and our communities.

Agency Commitments

Storey County Sheriff's Office will:



e Provide leadership for this initiative in their role as the criminal justice
collaborating agency,

e Actively participate and be represented on the Storey County Multidisciplinary
Team that will be responsible for strategic planning and implementing this cross-
disciplinary initiative;

e Actively participate in an initial planning process that will begin to develop an
initial local community response for individuals who are living with mental illness
or co-occurring mental health, substance abuse disorders, health issues, and are
lacking access to basic needs and services.

¢ Commit an agreed upon percentage of officers to be trained in appropriate law
enforcement trainings that target work with those with mental iliness or co-
occurring substance use [e.g., Crisis Intervention Team (CIT), Mental Health First

Aid);

e Review agency policies and protocols to ensure they are responsive to the needs
of those living with mental health or co-occurring mental health and substance
abuse disorders;

e Participate in evaluation by gathering and reporting statistical data as required by
the grant program.

Community Chest will:

e Provide leadership for this initiative in their role as behavioral health
collaborating agency,

e We commit to being an active partner with full participation in the Storey County
Multidisciplinary Team whose goal will be to identify resources for individuals
who are living with mental illness or co-occurring mental health, substance abuse
disorders, health issues, and are lacking access to basic needs and services.

e Participate in the initial, ongoing planning and development through
representation on the Storey County Multidisciplinary Team in an effort to
improve outcomes for this target population;



e Help Storey County evaluate service gaps and needs, and identify resources for
individuals who are living with mental illness or co-occurring mental health,
substance abuse disorders, health issues, and are lacking access to basic needs
and services.

e Provide CIT and Mental Health First Aid training as available within our resources
and assist with locating additional resources to meet the need of the community
as Storey County implements strategies to improve outcomes for this target
population; and

e Will be an engaged partner in the Storey County Multidisciplinary Team even
while not responsible for managing or administering any grants associated with
this effort.

¢ Provide trauma-informed training for an agreed upon percentage of those staff
who are actively involved in the comprehensive community response to those
living with mental illness or co-occurring mental iliness and substance abuse and
are involved in the criminal justice system;

Storey County Senior Services

e Actively participate and be represented on the Storey County Multidisciplinary
Team that will be responsible for strategic planning and implementing this cross-
disciplinary initiative;

e Actively participate in an initial planning process that will begin to develop an
initial local community response to the issue of those citizens, who are living with
mental illness or co-occurring mental health, substance abuse disorders, heaith
issues, and are lacking access to basic needs and services.

e Review agency policies and protocols to ensure that they are responsive to the
needs of those living with mental iliness or co-occurring mental health and
substance abuse disorders, including training to staff;

¢ Commit an agreed upon percentage of agency staff to be trained in how to work
with those with mental iliness or co-occurring substance use [e.g., Crisis
Intervention Team (CIT), Mental Health First Aid];

e Be an active partner in the continuum of health related services for the target
population, including screening, assessment, treatment follow-up services, and
referral to the appropriate local service continuum; and



Participate in evaluation by gathering and reporting statistical data as required by
the grant program.

Storey County Fire Protection District

Actively participate and be represented on the Storey County Multidisciplinary
Team that will be responsibie for strategic planning and implementing this cross-
disciplinary initiative,;

Actively participate in an initial planning process that will begin to develop an
initial local community response to the issue of those citizens, who are living with
mental illness or co-occurring mental health, substance abuse disorders, health
issues, and are lacking access to basic needs and services.

Review agency policies and protocols to ensure that they are responsive to the
needs of those living with mental illness or co-occurring mental health and
substance abuse disorders, including training to staff;

Commit an agreed upon percentage of agency staff to be trained in how to work
with those with mental illness or co-occurring substance use [e.g., Crisis
Intervention Team (CIT), Mental Health First Aid];

Be an active partner in the continuum of heaith related services for the target
population, including screening, assessment, treatment follow-up services, and
referral to the appropriate local service continuum; and

Participate in evaluation by gathering and reporting statistical data as required by
the grant program.

Storey County

Actively participate and be represented on the Storey County Multidisciplinary
Team that will be responsible for strategic planning and implementing this cross-
disciplinary initiative;

e Actively participate in an initial planning process that will begin to develop an

initial local community response to the issue of those citizens, who are living with
mental iliness or co-occurring mental health, substance abuse disorders, health
issues, and are lacking access to basic needs and services.



¢ Review agency policies and protocols to ensure that they are responsive to the
needs of those living with mental iliness or co-occurring mental health and
substance abuse disorders, including training to staff;

o Commit an agreed upon percentage of agency staff to be trained in how to work
with those with mental illness or co-occurring substance use [e.g., Crisis
Intervention Team (CIT), Mental Health First Aid];

e Participate in evaluation by gathering and reporting statistical data as required by
the grant program.

TERM

e This MOU shall be effective beginning (date) and is intended to continue for a
term of three (3) years, automatically renewing for successive three (3) year
periods upon the execution date of this agreement. The parties commit, but are
not obligated, to give thirty (30) days written notice that it does not wish to renew
participation in the MOU. All notices required or permitted under this MOU shall
be in writing and shall conclusively be deemed to have been delivered upon (a)
personal delivery, (b} successful facsimile transmission, or (¢) electronic mail to
the Project Director at Storey County, who will be responsible for giving notice to
agencies listed herein.

TERMINATION

The agencies may jointly terminate this MOU by unanimous action at any time. Any
agency shall have the authority to terminate its participation for its convenience and
commits to give thirty (30) notice to the Project Director of its intent to terminate its
participation. However, the withdrawal of less than all of the agencies shall not act as a
termination of the MOU or the responsibilities of the remaining agencies in accordance
with the terms of the MOU.

Dated this , day of , 2019.
Storey County
Attest:
By: Marshall McBride Vanessa Stephens
Chairman Board of County Storey County Clerk/Treasurer

Commissioners of Storey County



Dated this day of , 2019,

Storey County Fire Protection District

By:
Dated this day of , 2019.

Storey County Senior Services

By:

Dated this day of , 2019,

Storey County Sheriff's Office

By: Gerald Antinoro, Sheriff

Dated this day of , 2019.

Community Chest, Inc.

Signed by:



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date:|2-19-19 Estimate of time required: 0- 5
Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Business License Second Readings — Approval

2. Recommended motion; Approval
3. Prepared by Sarah Dillon
Department: Community Development Telephone: 847-0966

4, Staff summary: Second readings of submitted business license applications sre normally
approved unless, for various reasons, requested to be continued to the next meeting. A
follow-up letter noting those to be continued or approved will be submitted prior to the
Commission Meeting. The business licenses are then printed and mailed to the new
business license holder.

S. Supporting materials: Sce attached Agenda Letter
6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Liegal raview required:

___ District Attomey
8. Reviswed by
X ent ﬁ Department Name:
Oy VA —=

. County Manager Other agency review:
9. Board. action;

{1] Approved (] Approved with Modifications

(] Denied (] Continued

Agenda Item No, 2 ‘



Storey County Community Bebelopment
Buginegs o Licenging

P O Box 526 + Virginia City NV 89440 + (775) 847-0966 + Fax (775) 8470935 » mfield@storeycounty.org

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office February 11, 2019
Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email
Fr: Sarah Dillon

Please add the following item(s) to the February 19, 2019 COMMISSIONERS Agenda:

Storey County Building Department has inspected and found that the following businesses meet code
requirements necessary to operate in the county:

LICENSING BOARD
SECOND READINGS

A. AAA FIRE SPRINKLER — Professional / 630 Kregge Ln ~ Sparks, NV
SLONE GEAR INTERNATIONAL, INC — General / 714 East Monument Ave ~ Dayton, NV

ATCO INDUSTRIES, INC ~ General / 7200 Fifteen Mile Road ~ Sterling Heights, MI

CSG ELECTRIC LLC - Contractor / 600 Valle Verde ~ Sparks, NV

“C” STREET MASSAGE — Massage/ 240 C Street ~ Virginia City, NV

CASS NV, LLC — General/ 2555 USA Parkway ~ McCarran, NV

WINBCO TANK COMPANY - 1200 East Main Street ~ Ottumwa, LA

PINYON POTTERY, LLC — 4250 Hobart Road ~ Carson City, NV

CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS HOLDING, LLC — Contractor/ 9335 Prototype Drive, Reno, NV

FEAMEY AR

Ec: Community Development Planning Department Sheriff’s Office
Commissioners’ Office Comptroller’s Office



Storey County Board of County Commissioners

and Storey County Board of Fire Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 02/19/19 Estimate of time required: 60 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [ ] Public hearing required [ ] (x Closed Session)

1. Title: Call to Order Closed Session meeting pursuant to NRS 288.220 for the purpose of
conferring with county management and legal counsel regarding labor negotiations with the
Storey County Firefighters’ Association IAFF Local 4227 and the Storey County Employees’
Association Comstock Chapter, AFSCME Local 4041. This meeting will begin immediately
following the regular meeting of the Board of County Commissioners and Board of Fire
Commissioners.

2. Recommended motion. No action
3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne
Department: Human Resources Telephone: 775.847.0968

4, Staff summary: Pursuant to NRS 288 and the existing 2017-19 bargaining agreements between
the Storey County Firefighters Association and the Storey County Board of Fire
Commissioners, and the existing 2016-19 bargaining agreement between the Storey County
Employees’ Association and the Storey County Board of County Commissioners, the
bargaining agreements are proposed to be modified separately as tentatively agreed
between the parties.

5. Supporting materials: Provided at closed session meeting.

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: n/a Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

——
N b

Agenda Item No. ¢Q4"



